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The HSS Hire Group is a leading
provider of tools, equipment and
related services in the UK and
Ireland. Our nationwide network
ensures easy access o an
extensive range that has grown
to include specialist capabilities
including power solutions
business, ABird and powered
access provider, UK Platforms.

Focused on delivering Safety, Value,
Availability and Support, we work
predominantly with ‘business-to-
business’ customers in the *fit-out,
maintain and operate’ sectors.

We are dedicated to helping them
all work safely, efficiently and
cost-effectively.

In addition to our financial
performance, this Report provides
you with an overview of our Strategic
Review which was undertaken and
presented during 2017. This has
allowed us to develop a clear plan
going forward, which will restore

the business to historic levels of
performance, delever the Group

and make us maore resilient.

The conclusions of our Strategic Review have
been used to define three new strategic
priorities for the Group which are as follows:

Delever

the Group

Read more p7

Repair the
Tool Hire business

Read more p8

Strengthen
the Group’s
commercial
proposition

Read more p8

Rental

Our Rental segment comprises rental
income aarned fram HSS nwned tonls and
equipment and directly related revenue
2.g. resale, transport and other ancillary
revenues. Through our core HSS brand
and specialist brands of ABird, All Seasons
Hire, Apex and UK Platforms, we can offer
customers access to a wide range of
owned equipment categories which can
be delivered or picked up nationwide

from our national network of Customer
Distribution Centres (COCs} and

local branches.

Services

Our Services segment directly
complements our Rental offering and
comprises income from the Group’s
third party supplier rehire business (H5S
OneCall} and H3S Training. In addition to
trading directly with customers, together
with our Rental offering, these businesses
atlow us to provide a truse one-stop-shop
tool and equipment hire and related
service offering to our customers across
the UK.
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Highlights

Decisive management action
returned Group to profit in H2
after challenging H1

Revenue Adjusted EBITDA Adjusted EBITA

£335.8m £48.9m £1.8m
FY16: £342.4m FY16: £68.6m | FYie:£205m

Operating loss Reported EPS (basic and diluted) Adjusted EPS (diluted)

(£71.4m (49.96)p (5.68)p
FY16: (£2.7)m FY16: loss of (11.18)p  FY16: earnings of 2.94p

Core utilisation (LTM) Specialist utilisation (LTM} Find out more in our Financial Review

50% 13%

FY16: 50% FY16: 75%

Strategic Report Corporate Governance Financial Statements

Qur Business and OQur Performance Governance 56 Independent Auditor’s Report
1 Highlights and Contents ... 28 Chairman's Infroduction .. 81 Consolidated tncome Statement
L } .. B2 Consohdated Statement
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6 - 'Ch;ef Executive Officers Strateglc Rewew 37  Audit Commlttee Report i
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,1,,2,,,,,,Our Key Performance Indicators Nomination Committee Report 65 Consolrdated Statemem Of Cash F'°WS
14 Principal Risks and Uncertainties Directors’ Remuneration Report 86  Notes to the Consofidated

Financial Statements

ant of Changes in Equity

112 Definitonsand Glossary

This Repart cortains certain forward-looking statements with respect to the operations, strategy, performance, financial condition and growth opportunities of the Group.

By their nature, these statements involve uncertainty and are based on assumptions and involve risks, uncertainties and other factors that could cause actual results and
deveicpments to differ materially from those anticipated. The forward-lcoking statements reflect knowledge and information available at the date of preparation of this Report
and, other than in aceerdance with its legal and regulatory obligations, HSS Hire Group ple undertakes no obligation to update these forward-looking statements. Nothing
in this Report should be construed as a profit foracast.
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Strategic Report

Our Business
at a Glance

Our story

The HSS Hire Group is a leading provider of tools,
equipment and related services in the UK and
Ireland. Our nationwide network ensures easy
access to an extensive range that has grown to
include specialist capabilities including power
solutions business, ABird and pcowered access
provider, UK Platforms.

Focused on delivering Safety, Value, Availability and Support,
we work predominantly with 'business-to-business’ customers

in the 'fit-out’, maintain and operate sectors. We are dedicated
to helping them all work safely, efficiently and cost-effectively.

Our team of H8Sers are the reason we are able to deliver a hire
experience that, we believe, is the best in the industry so we are
committed to making sure they have the skills and support they
need to flourish,

We take a responsible approach to the way we conduct all
business activities and we are I1SQ 2001, ISO 14001, OHSAS
18001, CHAS and SafeHire Certifiad.

We are delighted to share our story with you.

Key accounts

Other B2B accounts

£175.9m

Cash accounts

£24.1m

Sales

£335.8m

Our network:

UK and Ireland

During 2017 we closed a
number of branches across
the network due to lower
Rental revenue growth

and a loss of focus on

our Tool Hire business.

We now have branches in more than
250 lccations, and following recent
network reconfiguration changes,

we will now be able to provide a
greater availability of services 1o our
customers across the UK and Ireland.
This will inctude the expansion of test
and run into all HSS branches and
customer distribution centres (CDCs)
and more intensive repair into a
number of strategically located
workshop CDCs. In addition the
workshop CDCs will link to a national
crass dock centre in Oxford that will
enable the overnight movement kit
to service our customers delivery
requirements between all of cur
CDCs in England and Wales.

Locations

>250
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Our products

Core businesses

Specialist powered access providers operating on a national

Provides an extensive range of tools and equipment for hire
across over 1,600 product lines.
Our sourcing division works with over 300 approved hire

partners, providing a range of specialist equipment.

QOffers training on over 260 industry-accredited courses

throughout the UK and Ireland through one of our Centres

of Excellence.

basis, supplying the latest technology in access platforms to

the construction, facilities management and service sectors.

Our specialist generator hire businesses are leading
providers of temporary power equipment and operate

 throughout the UK.

Operating on a national basis, specialising in the supply and
installation of temporary, large-scale heating and cocling

eguipment across a wide range of business sectors.

Our values

Across the business we have committed employees who live our core values, they are
how we do business. They support the delivery of our culture and strategy throughout

the organisation.

Safety

Safety is our priority and we wark hard 0 ensure
ihe safety of our customers and the equipment

we hirg to them as well as supporting their own
progress fowards 'Zero Harm' and ‘Target Zero'
goals. We drive safer product design throughotut
aur supply chain - such as the unigue anti-
entrapment system Activ'Shield on our UK Platform
diesel booms — and we ensure that every single bit
of kit is robustly maintained and tested through
strictly controlled processes before every hire so

it is always safe to use. Qur dedicated training
division, HSS Training, offers over 260 industry-
recognised technical and safety courses that cover
equipment operation and safe working practices.

Availability

Making sure our custemers have ready availability
of the kit they need, when and where they need

it is key to our service offering, enabling us to
guarantes that they can order by 7pm and get by
noon the next day. We have a multi-channal offer
that includes onling and call centre ordering for
delivery or collection as well as a strategically
positioned branch network, stocked with the
mast pepular kit ready to take away.

Colleagues

c.2,900

Value

To make sure our customers receiva value from
their hire, we work with them to drive down ‘the
true cost of hire' — providing reliable equipment
and an excellent service as weil as helping them
1o understand, manage and control thelr costs.
We continue {o invest in our fully transactional
e-commerce platiorm and Remote Fleet
Management systems, which help customars
to better manage hire volumes and durations
as wall as saving them time. In 2017, we continued
o underpin our commitment 1o value with a
simplffied pricing structure.

Support

Supperting cur customers is about making life
easier for them. We offer a range of hire-refated
services to help our custormers and which
includes a Managed Service Provider offer that
enables us to manage the complex supply ¢hains
of some of our larger customars. W also support
cur custormers by ensuring that — from recruiting
the right people to providing them with ongoing
training and develcpment — our colleagues are
better equipped with the skills and knowledge
they need tc provide an excelent hire service.

podey cibalens
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Strategic Report

Chairman’s Statement

Board priorities
for 2018

Following on from the findings of our Strategic Review,
we identified three areas of focus for 2018: reduce the
Group’s debt to manageable levels; Repair and revitalise
the Tool Hire business; and Strengthen our commercial
proposition across the Group.

1 Delever the Group
2 Repair and revitalise the Tool Hire business

3 Strengthen the Group’s commercial proposition

Dear shareholder,

Following decisive action taken by the Group
Board and senior management during 2017,

we have seen a significant improvermnent in our
performance in the second half of the financial
year and we will now build upon this momentum
by implementing our clear sirategic priorities.

Alan Peterson
Chairman



Strategic Review and progress made
We conducted a thorough, all-encompassing
Strategic Review, reviewing the profitability of
each customer, product and branch, as well
as the most efficient operating model to
support our business going forward.

To this end there are three clear areas of
focus for the year ahead:

o Delever the Group

Repair and revitalise
the Tool Hire business

Strengthen the Group ]

e commercial propos;tion

| am encouraged by the outcome of the
Strategic Review, the findings of which we
presented in December 2017, and am
cenfident that the delivery of these three
priorities will improve Group profitability in
2018 and beyond.

We have already made good progress in
the impiementation of the strategy, and
we are on track to deliver the annualised
savings of £10m-£14m, which we
presented in December.

As we communicated as part of the
Strategic Review in Decemlbzer 2017, an
agreement was reached in principle with
Unipart at the end of 2017 and was finalised
on 13 February 2018. This allows us to
make significant changes to cur supply
chain, in order 1o optimise our network.
The National Distribution and Engineering
Centre model was initially envisaged to
support a much larger branch network.
Based on the size of our current network,
this model is no longer cost-effective. We
therefore decided to move testing and
some engineering back into the network
and as a consequence, significantly reduce
distribution costs. These changes have
been positively received and will lead to
improved praduct availability and contribute
annualised cost savings of around £11m of
the total anticipated cost savings stated
above. These changes resulted in an
exceptional cost of £41m, which includes
various one off payments in 2018 and cash
payments of £33.8m over the following
seven year period.

Our resutts

We have seen an improving trend in our
performance in the second half of the
financial year, with strong Adjusted EBITA
growth compared with the first half. These
improving trends are demonstrated by our
underlying rental revenue growth where
we report 1.1% growth in H2 17 compared
tc H2 16. This underlying measure strips
out the impact of branch closures in the
two years, business divestments in 2017,
the effect of week 53 in 2016, and rental
ravenues and disposal proceeds arising
from the material asset disposals made in
2016, This was augmented by continued
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growth in our services segment revenue
and contribution which delivered 11.1%
and 13.5% growth respectively in H2 17
compared to H2 16. Our relentless focus
on cost reduction led to our cverheads

in Q4 17 being £3.3m below the level in

Q1 17, However, notwithstanding these
improvements we have made, year on year
revenue decreased by 2% to £335.8m,
with a decline in rental, which was
impacted by operating model changes

in 2016 and branch closures, offset by a
growth in services, generating an Adjusted
EBITA of £1.8m and Return on Capital
Employed (ROCE) of 0.9%.

Our results are discussed in more detail in
the Financial Review on pages 18 tc 21.

Our Board and management team
In June we welcomed the appointment

- of Steve Ashmore as our CEQ. He brings

considerable leadership experience to bear
and consistent delivery of growth and value
in a range of industries. Steve previously
held a number of senior roles at Exel,

the supply chain and third party logistics
provider, and was UK Managing Director

at Wolseley, the £2.0bn revenue distributor

* of plumbing and heating products and

supplier of building materials. More recently
he was the UK Managing Director of
Brammer, the specialist distributor of
industrial products.

On behalf of the Board, | wouid like to thank
John Gill, who stepped down as CEO in
May, for his considerable contribution over
more than eight years at the Company.

Governance

We are committed to high standards

of corporate governance and as such,

! am pleased to announce that the Group
has complied with the UK Corporate
Governance Code (the Code) during 2017.

During the year, and continuing into

2018, the Group has assessed and is
implementing changes as required

in preparation for the General Data
Protection Regulation (GDPR} becoming
iaw. This year also saw the introduction

of the Criminal Finances Act, placing
increased emphasis on controls to prevent
the facilitation of tax evasion. The Board
has given top level commitment to this,
including a new policy, a risk assessment
and bespoke e-learning training modules.
We also continued to monitor the Group’s
policies and procedures in respect of the
Modern Slavery Act.

Qur people

| continue to be extremely impressed
with the motivation, can-do attitude and
achievermnent of HSS people across
our Group, which is reflected in our
consistently high customer satisfaction
scores. | am very confident that with
their support, H3S will be successful
in delivering on our strategic priorities
and building upon the momentum of
the second half of 2017.

Corporate responsibility

Qur primary responsibility is to atways
ensure the safety of HSS colleagues and
customers, and the Board remains fully
committed to providing a safe environment
for all. We also pay close attention to
reducing the impact we have on the
environment and in the role that we play
as a community business across the UK
and freland.

Refinancing

We announced in February 2018 that we
had agreed with our lenders 1o extend
the £80m Revolving Credit Facility (RCF),
which will now expire on 6 July 2019.
Under the terms of the agreement, if the
Group has not completed a refinancing by
30 September 2018, the facility will expire
at the option of the lenders on 30 Aprit
2019. Management continues to make
good progress towards refinancing the
Group and expects to complete this
during 2018.

We have prepared the accounts on a
going concern basis as the Board is
confident that the Group will be able to
refinance these debt facilities well in
advance of their maturity dates.

Dividend

The Board is focused on reducing net
debt and, after careful consideration of the
performance of the Group during the year,
and in line with the clear pricrities set out
in our Strategic Review, believes it is in the
best interests of the sharehoiders of the
Group, to not pay a final dividend in
respect of 2017,

Looking ahead

The positive trading momentum in the
second half of the financial year has
continued into 2018. Underlying revenue
grew by 6% in the first quarter of 2018
against prior year with underlying rental
revenue growing 3% and our already
actioned cost initiatives are delivering
benefits as expected. Based on this
positive start to the new financial year we
expect the LTM Adjusted EBITDA at the
end of March to be around £54m with the
first quarter Adjusted EBITDA being more
than 50% higher than the previous year.
This clearly benefits the net leverage ratio
of the Group, which has reduced to 4.3x
as at the end of Q1 18. Looking forward
we expect Net Leverage to reduce to
3.2x following the impiementation of the
identified strategic actions.

Our tocus will be on developing a leaner
operation, improving product availability
and enhancing customer service, and
reducing our debt to manageabile levels.
We will continue to drive operational
efficiency across the Group, improving
profitability and returns, and growing

a profitable share of the markst.

Alan Peterson
Chairman
5 Aprit 2018

Hodey cifiejens
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Strategic Report

Chief Executive Officer’s
Strategic Review

Focused

on executing
the Group’s
new strategy

After a difficult start to 2017, | am pleased with how the business
responded in the second half of the year, Having joined the Group
in June, | instigated a thorough strategic review process, the resulis
of which have given us clear direction and an ambition to restore
the business to historic levels of performance. | ook forward to
building upon this as we look ahead to 2018 and beyond.

Steve Ashmore
Chief Executive Officer
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Overview of our new strategy

Strategy Review

identified three clear strategic priorities

Immediate
action

Given us a thorough o Delever Cost reduction
understanding of the Group programme
the business

e Repair Optimise branch
A clear route map the Tool Hire performance
of how to return business

HSS to historical
performance levels

o Strengthen

Rationalise
product base

commercial proposition

Improve customer

profitability

2018 & beyond

Capture growth opportunity

Customer segmentation
Geographic focus

Saies channel
development

Overview of my first year

| was honoured to be asked to lead

HSS Hire. It is a business with a strong
prand and leading positions in its chosen
rnarkets across the UK and Ireland.
Having worked in the industry for many
years, | have atways admired HSS,

so when the opportunity arcse to lead
this fantastic organisation, it was an
opportunity not to be missed.

1 arrived at a challenging time for the
Group, and it was evident that a lot of work
needed to be done. In some areas within
the business we were experiencing
reduced margins, the new distribution
network had led to lower rental revanue
growth and there was a loss of focus on
our Tool Hire business. Repairing each of
these areas will take time and we must
continue to remain foGused on the task in
hand, as we implement changes across
the Group and our business evolves,

Notwithstanding thesg challenges, 1
continue to strongly believe that there
remains huge potential at MSS. Over the
past few months | have spent a lot of time
with different parts of the business, and
have been incredibly impressed by the
motivation, achievernants and cormmitrent
of HSS people across our Group.

Our wide ranging strategic review
During the year, we engaged an
independent third party to work with the
HSS management team to undertake the
most extensive Strategic Review of the
business to date. The review was wide
ranging in scope and involved the analysis
of 20 million contract lines, more than

35,000 customers, 1,600 products and
250 locations. We focused on a number
of areas including profitability, the cost
of our operations, processes we have
in place, and the market opportunity,

® Find out more about Our Business Model
on page 10

My initial perceptions reaffirmed

We presented our findings of the Strategic
Review on 7 December 2017. The review
not only highlighted areas of focus, but
also reaffirmed my initial perceptions.

We have a strong brand having served
our customers for 60 years and our NPS
score is above market average. Within our
chosen markets we are joint number 2 in
the UK tool and equipment rental market
by revenue, we have good national
coverage and we operate primarily in the
highly attractive ‘repair, maintain and
operate' segment of the market. The
2,200 employees across the Group are
committed and knowledgeable, and

were named winners of the UK customer
experience award in 2016. QOur business
model is innovative and forward thinking,
with multi-channel digital technology, and
a healthy network of branches which allow
for high levels of utilisation of our stock
across the Group.

® Find out more in our Financiat Review
on pages 18to 21

Qur new strategy

Upon completion of the review, we
identified three key strategic priorities:
Delever the Group, Repair the Tool Hire
business and Strengthen the Group's
commercial proposition.

Delever

During 2017 we took a number of cost
reduction actions which rasulted in us
delivering annualised savings of £13m
compared with the Q1 FY17 runrate. This
was achieved through working with our
suppliers to reduce costs, reducing our
central headcount, closing 55 branches,
and network efficiencies.

The Strategic Review announced in
December 2017 outlined initiatives to
reduce costs by a further £10m-£14m

on an annualised basis, including up to
£10m related to changes in the supply
chain medel. We were therefore pleased
to announce in February 2018 that
agreement had been finalised to make
these changes enabling ¢.£11m of cost
benefit, £1m higher than the amounts
originally communicated. The changes are
expected to give rise to a net cash cutflow
of approximately £3m in 2018 followed by
net cash savings of approximately £8m
annuaily over the following seven years.

Last but not least, we will drive further
efficiencies across the business through
eliminating duplication in some areas and
simplifying our processes. This should
generate savings of between £3m-£4m.
Full impiementation of each of these cost
saving initiafives will take time and is not
going to happen overnight; however, we
have a clear plan in place and are focused
on executing these changes in order to
reduce the leverage of our business.

Lodey ofiglens
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Strategic Report

Chief Executive Officer’s Strategic Review

continued

Repair

Three key areas to repalr the Tool Hire
business were identified: customer,
product and branch.

Customer

Taking customer first, we have identified
several areas where we can work with
our customers to look at ways in which
we ¢an improve the customer eéxperience
that we are able to offer them. We warnt
to improve our utilisation rates and ensure
that we are always in a position to fulfil
the needs and reguirements of each and
every one of our customers.

Product

On occasions, highiy valuable

products have been commodity-priced
with certain customers. There has

also been inconsistent pricing within
product categories and we have seen
circumstances where the stock profile
does not match the profit oppartunity.
A lot of work has been done to introduce
smart pricing to reflect asset utilisation
and service, and we are locking at
improving discount effectiveness and
rationalising ranges, as well as ensuring
that we optimise our ficet size.

Branch

We closed a number of branches over

the last year or so, and now feel that

our network is of a size which is flexible
and that we are comfortable with. It is

a network which can be adapted and
modified accordingly as we remain ever
vigilant to market conditions. Howsver,
when we look at the branches, thereis a
variety of differing perforrnance across the
business which needs to be resoived. We
are therefore locking at a number of areas
where we can improve, to ensure that all
our branches are coniributing as efficiently
and effectively as they possibly can.

Strengthen

The third and final strategic priority is to
strengthen the Group’s commercial
proposition. The actions being taken

here are arcund customer segmentation,
geographic focus and sales channel
development. Taking customer
segmentation first, customers have different
needs and therefore we have to respond in
different ways. We have to ensure that the
products we can offer are relevant for those
customer segments. For geographic focus,
we know the areas where driving initiatives
will be much more advantageous for us.
Qur target areas have been identified, and
we have begun working through these anct
wili continue to do so over the medium to
long term, Further progress has also been
made on developing our sales channels,
with investrnent having been made to
improve our digital capabilities. This will
help to enhance and improve the
proposition and customer experience

that we are able to offer.

Our market

The size of our addressable market for
tool hire, powered access and power
generation hire in the UK is in the region
of £1.8bn. The market has grown by 1-2%
CAGR since 2013 and is expected to grow
at a similar rate over the next three years'.
The market is highly fragmented with the
vast majority of registered hire companies
amplaying fewer than 50 staff and serving
their local geography often from one,

and usually from fewer than ten locations.
The Group is one of a small number of
‘nationals’. We are placed second or third
in each of our three primary markets with
between 9-14% market share.

The Group has a large and diverse
customer base and operates across a
diverse set of end markets, This provides
us with some protection against cyclical
trends that are evident in sorme sectors,
such as construction. Our main customer
groups are in the facilities management,
retail operations, commercial fit-out,
property, utilities and waste, infrastructure
and energy suppiy services sectors.

We also work with charities, government
entities, house builders and

construction contractors.

The European Rental Association notes that
the ‘UK market is relatively concentrated’
but this is in contrast to the fragmented and
less mature markets of continental Europe.
It estimates that the larger rental players with
betwean 50 and 250 employees are 50%
of the UK market. In our view there is room
for further market consolidation to create
scale rental players able to detiver further
sfficiency benefits for customers, and
enhanced returns 1o sharehalders.

Management team

The executive team in place at HSS is
relatively new in terms of tenure, with

Paul Quested, Chief Financial Officer,
being the longest-serving executive

having joined the business in August

2016. Notwithstanding this limited time
within the executive team, 1 have been very
encouraged since joining the business in
June, by the dedication and commitment
of the management team, and the strength
and depth of the experience which

we have across the Group. | am very
confident that with their support, we

will be successful in delivering on our
strategic pricrities set out in December.

1 AMA market research estimates.



HS$S Hire Group ple Annual Report and Financial Staternents 2017

Market opportunity

Attractive markets

Tool hire

Powered access

Power generation

Size of addressable £1.1bn

market
Market sharg!

Position in market

Competitive advantage — Store footprint

= Brand trust

-> Product offering
and quality

- Knowledgeable
staff

1 Estimate based on AMA market research.
2 2017-2020.

= Diverse end markets L
- Leadership positions

- High barriers to erry

= Large and diverse customer base e

14%
Joint2
Expected grow1h”ré'té'2m 1-2‘%

£430m

3

- Scale
- Specialist
expertise

12% e
2%

= Customer base

£350m

g%
3
1%

- Customer base

- Scale
= Specialist
expertise

Example opportunities in Tool Hire market

9vaerseendmarkets
- High barriers to entry
= Largo and diverse customer pase

Example opportunities

Low Level Powered Access
Growing market, driven by safety
legislation. Potential for margin
improvement

Lighting

Growing faster than overall market,
driven by satety requiremants for better
lit spaces and declining operating
costs from more efficient technology

Access

Health and safety regulations
are putting more emphasis on
quality of equipment

Heating, Cooling, Drying

A segment where we have good
penetration, strong differentiation
and good margins

£1.1bn market

14% total market share

2018 and beyond

The Strategic Review has been a massive
step forward for us and gives us a real
understanding of our business. We have a
clear map forward, with steps identified to
deliver significant change in performance
within HSS. The strategy has been reset,
with three tevers: Delever the Group,
Repair the Tool Hire business and
Strengthen the Group’s commercial
proposition. Our immediate focus in 2018
is to undertake a number of cost reduction
actions which will create a leaner
operation, but we have 1o get the balance
right and get this business working
effectively and efficiently. We must get the
branch optimisation right, lifting levels of
profitability not only across the network,
but alsc more widely across the

entire business.

Cver the next few years, we will be
examining our customer segmentation;
deploying and working with our teams in
areas where we see the most profitable
opportunities is key. We will also continue
to develop our sales channels, maximising
our digital competitive advantage to
increase the use and mix of innovative
low-cost channels.

Steve Ashmore
Chief Executive Officer
5 Aprit 2018
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Strategic Report

Our Business Model

We aim to maximise the utitisation of our hire fleet by
ensuring it is well maintained, safe, serviced and available
to our customers wherever and whenever they need it.
Our operational network comprises our CDCs and

iocal branches.

Gur values
Qur focus is on what matters
most te our customers:

Safety o
Value )
Availability

Support |

OQur strategic priorities
o Delever the Group

o Repair the Tool Hire business

e Strengthen commercial proposition

Gur strategic enablers

Guided by our values, our strategy
is realised through a focus on our
three strategic enablers:

A strong commercial
managemesnt framework

The right tools to support

decision making

Incentivised and motivated team

Build long-term
relationships

Qur customers

We work with a wide range of
customers from tradespeopie to
large businesses operating across
the UK. At the heart of building and
developing these relationships is
recognition of what our customers
value and our ability to innovate our
service offerings to deliver mutualty
beneficial outcomes.

>90%

Our suppliers

We work closely with lsading
equipment suppliers 1o source the
broad range of toals and eguipment
that our customers rely on for

their projects. The strength of

these relationships has resulted in
product innovation — including the
development of our award-winning
anti-entrapment device, Activ'Shield,
for our powered access fleet.

>200

Suppliers

Qur parthers

We have developed strong long-term
relationships with other, typically
specialist, plant and equipment hire
businesses to support the rehire
services we offer via HSS OneCall.

This enables us to expand the range
of products we offer our customers

and drives sales for our partners.

>300

Partners

>35,000

B2B customers  Live accounts

Re-invest

Purchase and
source products

We invest in our hire fleet throughout
the year, constantly reviewing
product developments, customer
demand and opportunities to refine
our hire fleet offering. This includes
assessing whether it would be more
capital efficient to purchase hire
fleet or source it through a trusted
rehire provider.

Build the
right team

Qur people are at the heart of cur
business model, and key to the
delivery of our leading customer
service propositicn. Our excellent
customer appreciation levels testify
to the skill, motivation and drive

of our workforce at all levels within
our business,

NPS score
® Find out morg
Corporate Responsibility

on pages 22 to 25

@ Find out morg
Our Board of Directoers an
pages 30 and 31



Maximise equipment
utilisation

We operate in a capital-intensive
industry where it is important to drive
asset utilisation, with sensible pricing
control and discipiing, to genearata
returns on our investment. The
innovation and cost efficiencies
implemernted in cur cperating model
through 2017 are designed to help us

further enhance our utilisation rates.

50%

Core utilisation

73%

Specialist

utilisation

Create added-value
services

In addition to our core rental offering
we have developed value-added
services such as outsourced
equipment management, specialist
training courses and online
e-commerce and reporting systems
1o support our customers

industry-recognised courses

® Find cut more

Qur Business Mode! on page 10

H$S Hire Group plc Annual Report and Financial Statements 2017

Drive operational
efficiency

In early 2018 we made

some changes to the distribution
network to drive operational
efficiency, moving the test and
repair of all fast moving products
back inte our branches, closer to
HSS's customers.

@ Find out more
Financial Review on pages 18 to 21

Drive capital
efficiency

Moving test and repair back into our
regionai CDCs and branches, enables
us to drive capital efficiency and target
enhanced utilisation rates and improve
avallability for our customers.
Combined with the ‘recycling’
credentials of our refurbishment
centre, this increases the retums

we can generate on our capitat
investmant.

@ Find out more

Financial Review on pages 18 to 21

Deliver value

Customers

Our business model is designed to
make sure we dsliver the right kit and
services at the rignt time and in the
right place for our customers, enabting

them to focus 100% on their projects.

44
NPS score

Shareholders

Cur focus on enhanced operational
and capital efficiency means we
can increase profitability and drive

shareholder returns.

Employees

Through our training and development
programmes, we offer our people
continued pearsonal development
opportunities regardless of their gender,

background or crigin.

37%

Manageriat roles filled through

internal candidates,

Scciety

Equiprment hire is inheraently more
sustainable than individual ownership
of tools and equipment. By making
our service offering increasingly
cost-effective and easy to use we

are contributing directty to society.

b
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Strategic Report

Our Key Performance
Indicators

Financial

KPI

Group revenue

ﬁental -é-nd
related revenues

Adjusted EBITDA

and margin

Adjusted EBITA

and margin

Adjusted EPS

(diluted)

Return on Capital

Employed (ROCE}

Leverage

Fleet investment

lmprbrtam.:erorfrkPl. 7

Simplest measure of the cngoing growth of
the Group’s sales from which profits can be
generated and shareholder value created.

@ See Financial Review page 19

Sirﬁblest ht-é-a\sure 6f the bﬁéloihg growfh of the
Core Hire Business’ sales from which profits can

he generated and shareholder value created.

@ Soe Financial Review page 19

Widely recognised measure of profitability before
amortisation, impacts of depreciation policies, capitat
structure (interest and tax) and exceptional costs.
Metric also used in leverage and covenant calculations.

@ See Financial Review page 20

Measure of profitability before amartisation,

impacts of capital structure (interest and tax)
and exceptional costs.

® See Financial Review page 20

Measure of adjusted profitabitity per share. Widely
recognised measure of sharehoider value (profit)
being generated by a business excluding non-
recurring or exceptional items and amortisation and
after charging the prevaiiing rate of cerporation tax.

® See Financial Revisw page 21
Measure of the return-generating ability of

the business adopted at the direction of the
Remuneration Committee.

@ See Financial Review page 21

Measure of net debt present in the business,

expressed as a multiple of Adiusted EBITDA.

@ See Financial Review page 21

Measure of investment in hire fleet, Excludes

assets acquired through acquisition.

® See Financiat Review page 21

FY17 performance

£335.8m

FY16; £342.4m

£247.8m

F¥16: £262.8m

‘£489m

14.6% margin

0.8% margin

(5.68)p

FY16: down 8.62p
per share

FYi16: 9.7%

4.8x

Fyi6: 3.2x

FY16: £27.3m

Track recard

FY17 £335.8m 1.9%
FY18 £342.4m 9.6%

£312.3m

FY17 £247.8m
FY16 £262.8Bm level
FY15 £262.9m 0.5%

£48.9m
FY16 £68.6m 20.0%

Y15 £71.0m 22.7%

FY17 £1.8m 0.5%
FY16  £20.5m 6.0%

Fy15  £20.3m 6.5%

10% .

Fy17 (5.68)p
FY18

FY15

Y17

FY18 B

FY17 4.8x 7

FY16 £27.3m
FY15 £65.0m

Denotes key performance indicators which are considered when
assessing FY17 Executive Director remuneration (see pages 42 and 43).
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Performance

KPRl

Utilisation (CDre) o

Utilisation

(Specialist)

Importance of KP)

Useful measure as to how efiectively we have

employed capital invested in our Core hire fleet.
Assessed over the last 12 months. Should be
considered in tandem with ROCE to assess
whether assets are being profitability deployed.

® See Financial Review page 19

Useful measure as to how effectively we have

employed capital invested in our Specialist hire
fleet. Assessed over the last 12 months. Should
be considered in tandem with ROCE to assess
whether assets are being profitability deployed.

@ See Financial Review page 19

FY17 performance

50%

level with FY16

T

FY18: 758%

Track record

Frig 50%

FY15 48%

Fy17 73%

Fy1e 75%

F¥15 76%

Responsibility

KPt

RlDDORs et e e e

Carbon emissions
in our built environment
(kg CO, per m?}

Importance of KPI

Widely recognised measure of safety in the workplace.

Safety is at the heart of how HSS operates.
® See Corporate Responsibility page 25

As we pursue our new strategy we recognise

we have a duty to do so in a manner where
our impact on the environment is minimised.

We therefore track our carbon emissions per m2,

® See Corporate Responsibility pages 23 and 24

FY17 performance

0.39

FY16: 0.40

'30kgCO,

FY16: 36kg CO,

Track record
Fy17 0.39

FY16 0.40
FY15 0.48

FY17 30
FY16 36
F¥15 43
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Strategic Report

Principal Risks
and Uncertainties

Managing risk

The Board sets the strategic priorities for the Group and the
KPls and performance monitoring relating to these priorities,
and establishes the risk appetite.

Overall responsibility for the Group’s risk management lies
with the Chief Executive Officer (CEO) and Chief Financial
Officer (CFQ), who have ownership of risk in reporting to the
Board of Directors,

The Group then manages its risk through a group risk register
which is maintained by the Risk and Assurance Director. This is
subject 16 quarterly review by both the Executive Management
Team and the Audit Committee, where changes to the risk
landscape, risk ratings and assurance activity are discussed
and necessary action and changes agreed.

A risk-based internal audit prograrmme is in ptace to ensure
assurance activity is targeted at key risk areas, as identified
below. Risk-based assurance work is then reported to the Audit
Committee on a quarterly basis for review. In addition the Risk
and Assurance Director reports to the Executive Board and

the senior management team on a monthly basis to review

the findings of risk-based assurance activity and investigation,
provided by the internal audit and Health, Safety, Environment
and Quality {(HSEQ) teams.

2017 risk management devefopments

Through 2017 the Group has continued to improve its
approach to the management of risk, which is now a

gquarterly agenda item for the Executive Management
Team to review.

—9 The Rlsk and Assurance D1rector held one- to one
sessions with the Executive Management Team and
senior management to improve risk management
cunure in the Group

-9 Improvements in the mormonng of nsk and
identification of risk trends by enhancing the
measurable |ndicators on the key rlsks

-é Increased trammg o lmprcve the ownershrp of nsk '
at Executive Management ievel. This was noted in
last year's Annual Report.

Principal risks and strategy

The Board has carried out a robust assessment of the principal
financial and eperating risks facing the Group, based on its three
strateglc pnormes

e Delever the Group

> Reparr the TooJ Hrre busmess
—) Strengtheﬂ the Group S comrnerCIaI proposmon

These risks, how they have changed and how they are mitigated
are shown in the tabie opposite.

2018 pianned improvements

to risk management process

In 2018 the internal audit team is working with
individual departments to document risks and
opportunities relating to their role in the
corporate strategy

—) A dedlcated pro;ect management of'flce has been
set up to oversee strategy work streams, monitering
performance against plan and tracking and
mltlgatlng rlsks

;> Assurance work er be rewsed lh Itne wrth the -
new operating model, focusing on profitability,
key controis and areas of risk.

> lncreased Cross worklng of assurance teams to
support the strategy and to ensure we are focused
on guality, envircnment and heaith and safety.
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Key risk
Macroeconomic
conditions

Competitor
challenge

Description and impact

An economic downturn inthe UK and Ireland

may adversely affect the Group's revenue and
operating results by decreasing the demand for
its services and the prices it may charge.

The Brexit referendum result has caused economic
uncertainty with potential short-term and long-term
effects on demand for services within the Group's
industry and broad custormer base.

The Group’s industry is highly competitive, and

competition may increase. The equipment rental
industry is highly fragmented, with competitors
ranging from national equipment rental companies
to smaller multi-regional companies and smail,
independent businesses operating in a fimited
number of locations. Competition in the market

: has led to frequent excess capagcity and resultant

Distribution
Network

IT infrastructure

pricing pressura.

The provision of the Group's expected service

levels depends on its ability tc transport its hire
tleet across its network in a timely and cost-
atfective manner, and on the successful operation
of its Customer Distribution Centres “CDCs"” ang
branch network.

resourced tc support the business, Any [T system
malfunction may affect the ability to manage its
operations and distribute its hire fleet and service
to custormers, affecting revenue and reputation.

A cyber security attack on the business systems
couid lead 1o a potential loss of cenfidential
information and disrupt the business’ transactions
with customers and suppliers.

The Group requires an iT system that |sappropr|ately

Mitigation

The Group focuses on the 'fit-out, maintain
and operate’ markets, which are less
cyclical, less discretionary and have a larger
proportion of recurring spend than the
new-build construction sector. While the
Group is not isolated from the construction
sector, it focuses on the non-construction
portion of the market, with specific
exposure in the facilities management,
cperations, commercial fit-out, property,
utilities and waste, infrastructure and energy
services operations.

The Group Is ranked second or thirdin

gach of our three primary markets and
the resulting economies of scale enable
it to be highly competitive, whilst the
fragmented nature of the market may
offer consolidation opportunities.

The Group’s national presence, effective
distribution service model and wel-
maintained fleet provide improved

customer availability.
The Group has a flexible distribution

model incarporating CDCs which support
the branch network. Performance is
moenitored continually to identify areas
where we can improve the cost and the

efficiency of the network.
The current IT systermn has been fully

reviewed to ensure that it is the best
possible option to optimise the success
of the Group's strategy.

Disaster recovery tests are carried out

on a regular basis. Firewalls are in place
to protect against malicious attempts to
penetrate the IT environment. Penetration
testing is carried out on a regular basis 1o
detect weaknesses in our IT and cyber
security. Software has been implemented
to identify any malicious attack.

Risk change

Unchang-édw :

" Unchanged

 Unchanged

vodsy obsjeng
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Strategic Report

Principal Risks and Uncertainties

continued
Key risk Description and impact fitigation Risk change
Insufficient Some of the Group's customers may have liguidity The Group is focused on working capital Increased
liquidity issues and ultimately may not be able to fulfil the management and KPIs are reviewed in 2017 due
headroom terms of their rental agreements with the Group. reguiarly. to higher
E:rc.;i, igzti);; j:;i;r?rgﬁclfsses can also arise due to Thg Group runs axtensive credit c_rleqking 3:@1::1 g'ar;g
far its account customers and maintaing tollowing the
Unauthorised, incorrect or fraudulent payments strict credit control over its diversified refocation of
could be made, feading to financial loss or delays customer base. the credit
in payment which could adversely affect the . I
. — ) The Group’s investigation team conducts control
relationship with suppliers and lead to & : d " I in order 4 function fram
disruption in supply. praactive and reac ive work in order to
minimise the Group’s exposure to fraud. ll\-AOIWd?jﬂ o
Continuing losses of the Group or delays in the anchester
implementation of cost Savingz may lead to a lack Payments and amendments should only and, looking
of liquidity. be mag:fe in line wﬁ_h a regularly reviewed forward 1o
authorisation matrix. 2018, an
The Group has a clear strategy, supported ~ Slement of the
with detailed project plans, to return cash costs
to historic levels of profitability. The associated
successtul implerentation of these with the
plans is underpinned by a Programme network
Management Office which has been set change arising
up to ensure each project is delivered on before the
time and realises the sxpected benefits. benefits fully
accrue.
The management is working with
appointed debt advisers, to ensure that
the future capital structure, as part of
the refinancing process, provides
sufficient liquidity for the Group.
Equipment The reliabie supply of safe and good-guality The Group makes every effort to evaluate Unchanged
supply, equipment is critical for delivering cur customer its counterparties prior to entering into
maintenance promise; unavailable or unreliable equipment signiticant procurement contracts and

and availability

can reduce potential revenue and drive additional
costs into the business.

The Group is dependent upan its retationships
with key suppiiers 1o obtain equipment and other
sarvices an acceptapie terms. Any disruption

in supply could affect its abillity to provide its
custorners with expected service levels, increasing
the risk of lost customers or reduced trading fevels.

The changes in the way we operate can impact

seeks to maintain a range of suppliers.

Refining the Group's operating model
during the year, and the right balance
of centralised and decentralised
responsibilities have been astablished.

The 2018 operational plan is based on
improving the availability of equipment
and the efficiency of our operating
model to drive profitability.

the ava_1lability af supply during implementation. ]
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Key risk

Customer h

retention
and brand
reputation

Outsourcing

of services

Inabilityto

attract and

retain and train

personnel

Lega|and

regulatory
requirements

Description and impact

A decling in the Group's customer service

levels could result in a loss of customers
and market share.

The Group's business depends on strong brands
and any failure to maintain, protect and enhance
its brands could have an adverse effect onits
ability o grow the business.

business to third parties.

If any third parties become unable or refuse to

fulil their obligations, or viotate laws or regulations,
there could be a negative impact on the Group's
operations or it could lead to adverse publicity and
a decline in demana,

Turnover of members 6f the Grbﬁp’s management -

and colleagues and its ability to attract, train and
retain key personnel may affect its ability tc efficiently
manage its business and execute its strategy.

Failure to comply with laws or regulation, such as

the Companies Act 2006, accounting regulaticns,
health and safety law, the Bribery Act 2010 or the
Road Traffic Act, leading to material misstatement
and potential legai, financial and reputational
liabilities for non-compliance.

roup outsources certain activities of its Cutsourcing of services by the

Mitigation

The Greup is looking to improve regional
interaction in areas such as customer care
in 2018.

The Group invests in areas such as
marketing, community relations and
colleague training, aimed at delivering
the highest standards of customer
service and colleague engagement.

The Group actively engages in
online advertisements and email
communications, and engages on
a regular basis in public relations
and sponsorship activities to

pro

Risk change

Unchanged

roup
is subject to stringent procurement

and service criteria and all contracts

are subject to demanding service level
agreements which are closely monitored
and enforced.

Performance and guality metrics anc KPls

are tracked throughqut ,th? ]ife of contracts.

The Group has established and maintains
competitive pay and benefit packages, as
well as the right working environrment for
its colleagues. Training for colleagues is
provided within branches of excellence.

The Group is reviewing colleague

incentives in 2018.
Robust governance within the Group,

including a strong financial structure, with
adequate assurance provision from internal
and external audit. Additional assurance
and support is provided by a fully skilled
HSEQ team and an internal group
investigation tearm.

n

educe
2017 as
operating
model was
refined.

Unchanged
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Strategic Report

Financial Review

Revenue Adjusted EBITDA Adjusted ESITA
£335.8m £48.9m £1.8m

FY16: £342.4m FY16: £68.6m FY16: £20.5m

Operating loss Reported EPS (basic and diluted) Adjusted EPS (diluted)
(£71.4m (49.96)p (5.68)p

FY16: (£2.7)m FY16: loss of (11.18)p  FY16: earnings of 2.94p
Core utilisation (LTM) Specialist utilisation (LTM)

50% 13%

FY16: 50% FY16: 75%

We reported a substantial loss during 2017 driven by a poor
trading performance in the first half of the year and the recognition
of a number of one off costs which we disclosed as exceptional
items. Actions taken improved the trends in both the trading
performance and Adjusted EBITA in the second half of the year.

Paut Quested
Chief Financial Officer



HSS Hire Group plc Annual Report ang Financial Statements 2017 19

Financial highlights

Revenue

£m

Contribution’ Adif TDA?

Adjusted EBITA?

™ 2017 2 207 2016 .

Rental £247.8m £262.8m E£158.1m £179.4m

Services £88.0m £79.6m £11.9m £10.3m

Group £335.8m £342.4m £169.9m £189.7m £48.9m £68.6m £1.8m £20.5m (£71.4m) (£2.7m)

1 Contribution s defined as revenue less cost of sales (excluding depreciation and exceptional items), distripution costs and directly attributable costs (for each segrment).
2 These measures are not raported on a segmental basis because branch and selling costs, central costs and exceptional items {(non-finance} are aliocated centrally rather

than to each reportable segment.

Overview

The first half of 2017 was heavily impacted
by changes to the operating model in the
prior financial yeas, with a higher cost base
and reducea availability during these
changes, adversely impacting Rental
revenue. This fed to an Adjusted EBITA
loss of £7.3m in the first half of the year.

Decisive management action taken has
delivered like for like Rental revenue
growth of 1.1% in H2 17, and reduced
annualised costs by £13m against the Q1
17 run rate. This led to Adjusted EBITA
profit of £9.1m in H2 17,

We alsc completed our Strategic
Review with the clear actions to
Delever the Group, Repair the Tool
Hire Business and Strengthen the
Group's Commercial proposition.

| am confident that these are the right
steps to build on the momentum of H2
17 performance and deliver sustainable
and improved profitability.

Revenue

Group revenue declined by 1.9% to £335.8m
(FY16: £342.4m) behind the anticipated UK
tool and eguipment hire market growth rate
for 2017 as estimated by the ERA. The main
drivers of this result were:

-» FY17 was a normal 52 week year

-» Another year of strong growth in our
Services revenues, up 10.6% year
on year to £88.0m, mainly driven by
performance in our rehire business, HSS
OneCall, augmented with further growth
from our HSS Training business; and

-> A reduction of 5.7% in Rental and
related revenues, to £247.8m which
were negatively impacted by the
establishment of the new operating
moedel during the second half of FY16
and the first half of FY17. Rental and
related revenues were further impacted
by the decision to close a total of
73 branches since Q3 of FY16.

Our performance on rental and
related revenues improved in the
second half of FY17.

Revenue and revenue growth are two of

our KPIs as, combined with estimates of
market size and growth rates, they provide
us with a measure of our market share.
We underperformed the UK tool and
equipment hire market during the year

for the reasons set out.

Segmental performance

Rental and related revenues

Cur Rental revenues were down 5.7% year
on year at £247.8m (FY16: £262.8m) and
accounted for 73.8% of Group revenue
(FY16: 76.8%). Parformance in the first half
of the year, particularty amongst our small
and medium customers in England and
Wales, was affected by the implementation
of our new operating modet, including

the set-up of the NDEC, which caused
disruption to avaitability. This did not

affect the second half of the year.

Contribution, defined as revenue less
cost of sales (exciuding depreciation

and exceptional items), distribution costs
and directly attributable costs of £158.1m
{FY18: £179.4m) was 11.9% lower year on
year reflecting both a change in revenue
mix, and a growth in operating cost
coming from the new operating model
which had been designed for a farger-
sized branch netwark.

LTM core utilisation remained level at 50%
(FY16: 50%} and LTM speciaiist brand
utilisation was lower at 73% (FY16; 75%).
These are both KPls. As a consequence of
management action taken, our utilisation
rates have improved through the second
half of 2017, being ahead of the same
period in 2016 at 53% for core equipment
and 75% for specialist brands.

Services

Services revenues increased by 10.6% to
£88.0m {FY16: £79.6m) and accounted for
26.2% (FY18: 23.2%) of Group revenues.
This was principally due to strong growth
in HSS OneCall and the centinued
development of HSS Training. Our
Services revenues benefitad from existing
and new key account contracts where our
one-stop-shop offering has provided clear
market differentiation.

Contribution from Services grew by 16.1%
to £11.9m (FY16: £10.3m), slightly ahead of
the revenue growth rate, reflecting further
margin improvement achieved using the
existing teams and infrastructure to
support increased tevels of activity.
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Strategic Report

Financial Review
continued

Costs

Our cost analysis set cut belowisona
reported basis and therefore includes
exceptional investment associated with
our operating model change. Year on
year variances dgriven by such costs
are identified in the commentary.

Owr cost of sales increased by £9.1m
(6.2%;) during the year to £154.3m, mainly
reflecting the growth in our Services
revenues {principally HSS OneCall and
HSS Training) and the associated third
party supply costs incurred to support
this activity. This also included £0.2m of
exceptional costs compared with £3.4min
2016. The high tevel of exceptional costs in
2016 related to changes in our operating
modei and the identification as part of
that process of some aged resale siock
that reguired impairment. A change in
depreciation rates on one class of product
during the year has led to an increase in
depreciation charge of £0.6m. Changes to
depreciation rates made during FY 16 led
to a decreased charge of £4.2m during
that vear.

OQur distribution costs increased by £1.0m
(2.39%:j from £45.im to £46.1m. Within this
axceptional costs were £0.1m compared
with £1.3m in FYT86. The higher exceptional
costs in FY16 relate largely to the dual
running costs as the Group migrated its
activities to the NDEC whilst running its
existing network in paratiel.

Our administrative expenses graw by
£51.7m (33.1%) to £207.7m (FY16:
£156.0m). Exceptional costs accounted
for a £53.8m increase year on year. The
current year excepticnat items include
£40.7m network reconfiguration costs
relating to the agreement with Unipart to
terminate the NDEC contract. Additionally,
the cost of onerous leases increased by
£2.4m to £6.9m reflecting an increased
number of branch closures year on year.
The onerous lease provisions reprasent
the discounted value of future rent
payments on properties we are not trading
from until lease expiry. There was an
impalrment of property, plant & machinery
in closed branches of £8.3m. Looking
forwards the Group incurred £3.7m of
costs relating to delivering a cost reduction
programme, £1.0m on senior management
changes, £1.2m gonducting its Strategic
Review and £0.7m on preparatory
rafinancing expenses. Administrative
expensas also include the £4.9m loss

on disposal of the Reintec and TecServ
cleaning equipment and maintenance
businesses which were sold in

November 2017,

Adjusted EBITDA and Adjusted EBITA
Our Adjusted EBITDA far 2017 was
£48.9m, 28.8% iower than in FY18
([£68.6m) driven by the decline in Rental
and related revenues ana the increased
costs associated with the NDEC. Whilst
this was offset by Services revenue
growth, this was at a lower margin.

As a result, the Group's Adjusted EBITDA
margin for FY17 was 14.8% {FY¥16: 20.0%).
Adjusted EBITDA and margin are included
in our KPIs.

Our Adjusted EBITA declined fo £1.8m
{Fy16: £20.5m). The significant reduction
was driven by the higher costs of our
operating network and our performance
on rental and related revenue during the
first half of the year. The business made an
Adjusted EBITA loss in the first half of the
year but returned to Adjusted EBITA profit
in the second half.

This combined with a growth in fower
margin Services revenue led to a reduction
in EBITA margin to 0.5% (FY16: 8.0%)
Adiusted EBITA and margin are included

in our KPls},

Other operating income

Other operating income reflects the income
received from the sub-letting of non-trading
stores. This decreased by £0.3m year on
year as the portfolio of non-trading stores
tully or pantially sub-et reduced. We
continually assess our portfclio to identify
revenue opportunities or 1o pursue
attractive lease surrender opportunities

as and when they arise.

Operating foss

Our operating loss increased from £2.7m
in 2016 to £71.9m in 2017, driven by lower
revenue and increased operating costs
including £66.6m of exceptional costs,

The £49.6m growth in exceptional tems to
£686.6m (FY16: £17.0m), and the reduction
in Adjusted EBITDA from £68.6m to
£48.9m driven by lower Rental revenug
and the increased network costs acccunts
for the majority of this decline.

Exceptional items

We have incurred significant one off
expenditure in a numper of areas of

the business as we seek t© make cost
redyctions in order to take the business
forward in the coming years. These
totalled £68.6m. The majority of these
exceptional items had no cash flow impact
during 2017

Branch closures led to onerous lease
provisions of £6.9m (FY16: £4.5m). The
cost included adjustments to expected
future sub-iet income from these closed
properties and other properties that the

group has closed in previous years.
Sub-let incorme from vacant properties
declined from £1.1m to £0.9m.

Impairmenis of £8.3m were recorded in
respect of closed branches (FY16: £nil).

In the first half of the year the Group
started a cost reduction programme
aiongside the branch closures. This
included making refinements to how the
network operated and reductions in
headcount. The total cost was £3.7m and
thig included a property impairment ot
£1.2m as head office functions were
centralised in Manchester. Total average
headcount across the Group reduced from
3,254 to 3,006.

Following the appointment of Steve
Ashmorea in June 2017 we announced in
August 2017 that we wouid be undertaking
a Strategic Review and weé engaged an
independent third party to assist. We
believe that this was the most extensive
review and analysis of the business ever
conducted. The costs of this were £1.2m.
We announced the outcome of this review
in December 2017.

When we announced the cutcome of our
Strategic Review we identified significant
cost savings that would be made. Principal
to this was to save between £7m and
£10m on an annualised basis from making
changes to our supply chain model. In
December 2017 heads of terms were
agreed with Unipart to make significant
changes to how we managed our
centralised engineering at the NDEC.

We will bring the Test and Run activity

far high-volume products back into

our branch netwerk with repair and
maintenance consclidated into regional
distribution centras. Unipart will remain
responsible for our spare parts
wareghousing and will provide cross-
docking space to enable us to rebalance
our fleet across the network. A formal
agreement with Unipart was announced
in February 2018 and an exceptional cost
of £40.7m is recorded in the year. This
represents an impairment of fixed assets
of £1.9m, an intangible asset impairment of
£1.2m, the write off of a security deposit of
£4.5m, and the provision for termination
payments and an onerous contract of
£32.8m. Of the total provision created
£9.6m will be payable in 2018 with the
balance payable between in broadly equal
annual amounts each year to 2026.

in November 2017 we soid our non-core
Reintec and TecServ cleaning equipment
hire and maintenance businesses for
proceeds net of costs of £1.2m giving
rise to a loss on disposal of £4.9m.



Finance costs

Net finance expense (finance expenses
less finance income} reduced tc £13.7m
(FY16: £14.7m). Drawings on our RCF
increased during the year whilst our
finance lease liability reduced. The
reduction was driven by the financial
period being one week shorter and a
reduction in the interast unwind on
discounted provisions.

Taxation

The Group generated a net tax credit of
£5.2m compared with a credit of £0.1m in
FY16. The Group made an overall loss for
tax purposes in the UK, and the charge
represents current tax suffered in Ireland
offset by a £4.9m deferred tax credit
arising from the offset of tax losses against
the previously recognised deferred tax
liability on intangible assets.

Reported and adjusted

earnings per share

Our basic and diluted reported loss per
share increased to 46.96p (FY16: loss of
11.18p). This was due 1o the larger loss
generated in the year, partially offset by an
increase in the weighted average number
of shares from 154.8m to 170.3m shares
as aresult of the share placing completed
in December 2016.

Our basic adjusted earnings per share,
being profit before amortisation and
exceptional costs less tax at the prevailing
rate of corporation tax divided by the
weighted average number of shares,
moved from 2.98p in FY16 to a loss of
5.68p in FY17. Qur diluted adjusted
earnings per share, calculated in the same
manner as basic adjusted earnings per
share but with the weighted average
number of shares increased to reflect LTIP
and Sharesave options, was also a loss

of 5.68p (FY16: 2,.94p). These reflect the
significant reduction in Adjusted EBITA in
FY17 compared with FY16, which was
driven by our performance in the first half
of the year. Adjusted EPS (diluted) is one
of our KPIs and is also used to assess
Executive Diractor remuneration.

Capital expenditure

Fixed asset additions in the year were
£34.5m, a £7.9m or 18.6% decline year on
year. Within this £25.8m was spent on hire
fleet (2016: £27.3my} reflecting another
managed reduction of spend in these
areas after two years of significant
expenditure and including the capital
efficiency benefit of centralising
engineering activity into fewer locations.
The remaining £8.7m was spent on
non-hire additions {land, buildings, pfant
and machinery} (2018: £15.1m}. The
changes to the Group's operating moedel
centred on the NDEC were designed to
support enhanced capital and operational
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efficiency across the Group. We do not
anticipate a material increase in our 2018
capital expenditure requirements due 1o
efficiency gains through our fast moving
products being tested in branches and
more targeted investment using insight
from the Strategic Review. Fleet
investment is cne of our KPIs.

Return on Capitai Employed (ROCE)
Our ROCE for FY17 was 0.9% compared
with 9.7% for FY168. ROCE is calculated as
Adjusted EBITA divided by the total of
average total assets (excluding intangible
assets and cash} less average current
liabilittes {excluding current debt items).
Adjusted EBITA dropped by more than
90% during the year whilst the average
capital employed by the Group decreased
by 10.0% from the level calculated at the
end of 2016, reflecting depreciation and
asset disposals being higher than capital
expenditure. This is one of our KPIs and is
also used to assess Executive Director
remuneration.

Cash generated from/utilised

in operations

Cash generated from operating activities
was £10.1m for FY17, a decrease of
£16.5m over the prior year {FY16: £26.6m).
This reflects the reduction in profits which
was offset by a planned reduction in hire
fleet asset capital expenditure and an
improvement in working capital compared
with FY16.

Leverage and net debt

Net debt (stated gross of issue costs)
increased by £13.4m to £232.8m
(FY16: £219.4m).

As at 30 December 2017 the Group had
access to £29.8m of combined liquidity
from available cash and undrawn
committed borrowing facilities. Qur
leverage, cafculated as net debt divided by
Adjusted EBITDA, increased from 3.2x in
FY16 to 4.8x at the end of FY17. This was
primarily due to the lower Adjusted EBITDA
generated in FY17. Leverage or Net Debt
Ratio is one of our KPls and is also used to
assess Executive Director remuneration.

Use of alternative performance
measures to assess and

monitor performance

In acdidition to the statutory figures
reported in accordance with IFRS, we
use alternative performance measures
(APMSs) to assess the Group'’s ongeing
performance. The main APMs we use
are Adjusted EBITDA, Adjusted EBITA,
Adjusted profit before tax, Adjusted
earnings per share, leverage (or Net Debt
Ratio} and ROCE, all of which are inciuded
in our key performance indicators as set
cut on pages 12 and 13.

We believe that Adjusted EBITDA, a widely
used and reported metric amongst listed
and private companies, presents a
‘cleaner’ view of the Group's operating
profitability in each year by excluding
exceptional costs associated with
non-recurring projects or events,

finance costs, tax charges and non-cash
accounting elements such as depreciation
and amortisation.

Additionally analysts and investors
assess our operating profitability using

- the Adjusted EBITA metric, which treats

depreciation charges as an operating cost
to reflect the capital-intensive nature of the
gector in which we operate. This metric is
used to calcuiate any annual bonuses
payable to Executive Directors.

Analysts and investors also assess our
earnings per share using an Adjusted

earnings per share measure, calculated by

dividing an adjusted profit after tax by the
weighted average number of shares in
issue over the period. This approach aims
to show the implied underlying earnings of
the Group. The Adjusted profit before tax
figure comprises the reported loss betore
tax of the business with amortisation and
exceptional costs added back. This
amount is then reduced by an illustrative
tax charge at the prevailing rate of
corporation tax {currently 19%j} to give an
adjusted profit after tax. Adjusted earnings
per share is used as a performance metric
for the vesting of 2016 LTIP and 2017
market value option awards.

The calculation of Adjusted EBITDA

and Adjusted EBITA can vary between
companies, and a reconciliation of Adjusted
EBITDA and Adjusted EBITA to operating
profit/{loss) and Adjusted profit before tax
to loss before tax is provided on the face

of the Group's income statement. A
reconciliation of reported loss per share

to Adjusted earnings per share is provided
in note 10 of the accounts.

In accordance with broader market
practice we comment on the amount of
net debt in the business by reference to
leverage (or Net Debt Ratio}, which is the
multiple of our Adjusted EBITDA that the
net debt represents. This metric is also
used in the calculation of any annual
bonuses payable to Executive Directors.

We use RQOCE to assess the return {the
Adjusted EBITA) that we generate on the
average tangible fixed assets and average
working capital emploved in each year.
We exclude all elements of net debt from
this calculation. This metric is also used
as a performance metric for the vesting
of 2016 LTIP awards.

Paul Quested
Chief Financial Officer
5 April 2018
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Corporate Responsibility

As a large national ccmpany,

we are aware that we have
responsibilities to our customers,
our colleagues and our locat
communities, as well as to

the wider economy and the
environment, We build on the
sustainable nature of our business
mode! with an equally responsible
approach to how we conduct cur
busingss activities, both inside
and outside of our organisation.

Qur primary respansibility is, as
always, safety — of our colleagues,
our customers and of the
equipment we hire — and making
sure that HSS is a safe place for

pecple to work in and to hire from.

We are also focused on ensuring
that we operate with transparency
and integrity, and on delivering a
sound economic performance
whilst reducing our impact on the
environment, supporting our
colleagues and our customers,
and playing a positive role in our
local communities.

1

Economic performance
and governance

A respensible company generates and
shares wealth in order to perform for its
stakeholders — delivering a financial return
for sharsholders as well as ensuring
continuity of supply and support for its
customers and secure employment and
development for its colieagues. As this
Report details, HSS generated revenues
of £335.8m which was shared amongst
the various stakeholders in our business
including our suppliers and their own
supply chains, our colleagues and
investors, the government and our local
communities as well as a retained element
to help fund future investment and growth.

We operate with integrity and transparency

and social governance with a strong
management team and robust governance
structures in place. We work to — and are
audited against - a number of external
accreditations, inciuding the British ISO
standards for health and safety and the
environment. We are Safe Hire accredited
and members of the British Safety Council,
We are alse FORS accredited for our
commercial vehicte flest.

@ Full details of our corporate governance are set out
in pages 28 to 36 of this Report

Our ful Corporate Responsibility Report is published at
www.hsshiregroup.com/corporate-responsibility and the
following pages summarise our activities and achievements.

2

- Listening to

- our customers

We recognise that HSS plays an important
' and vital role in the supply chain and

: operations of our customers, so we take
: aresponsible approach towards ensuring

that we deliver a service which meets their

: expectations. Part of this commitment

Includes surveying our customers at all

¢ {evels and industries on a regular basis to

' assess the service they raceive from us,

: and where they believe there is scope to

. improve. For a number of years we have

i partnered with TNS to conduct thorough,

| impartial NPS interviews with our customer
" base twice each year. This insight has

- directly impacted our strategy and

i operations, and led to positive change

; : . which improves the hire experience we

to ensure the highest levels of environmentat offer our customers. The NPS score we
. achisved this year is significantly higher
¢ than the industry benchmark of 21.

: NPS score

© (2016: 42)



3

Reducing environmental
impact through our
product lifecycle

There are environmental and social
impacts at every stage of the product

we are committed to sourcing, operating

i and disposing of our equipment in the
most responsible way possible. Qur
innovative, purpose-built refurbishment
centre in Manchester has provided the
capacity for us to significantly increase our
refurbishment capability, and in 2017 we
further increased the number of machines
going through the centre each year.

Machines refurbished through centre

. (2016: 526)

i Replacement value of
i refurbished equipment

£7.2m

| (2016: £5.32m)
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4

Reducing
- environmental impact
: though our operations

: We work responsibly to limit potentiat
i negative environmental impacts which
lifecycle of all the equipment in our fleet, so
: operations. We are committed to driving

: energy efficiency within our buitt

¢ environment as well as through our

i operational networks. We work to, and are
¢ accredited against, industry recognised

; environmental standards, and work hard

: to regulate our use of natural resources,

! reduce polluting emissions and minimise

: waste.

- We are accredited to ISO and OHSAS
standards:

© 3 9001 Quality
i = 14001

-9 18001 'Heat an

arise from our day-to-day business

afety Policy

¢ From April 2018 the 9001 and 14001

i accreditations will be audited against the
: revised standards criteria. The OHSAS

" 18001 standard is transferring to the new
¢ IS0 45001 standard later in 2018. We are

currently working towards our
reaccreditation.

: Greenhouse gas emissions

i The Group reports on all of the emission

¢ sources required under the Large and

: Medium-sized Companies and Groups

¢ (Accounts and Reports} Regulations 2008
i as amended in 2013. We use GHG

: Protocol Corporate Accounting and

¢ Reporting Standard data gathered to fulfil
¢ the reporting requirements under the CRC
. energy efficiency scheme and Defra

i conversion factors to caleulate all building
i and transport emissions within the three

! reporting scopes:

= all direct greenhouse gas emissions

from sources owned or controlled by
the Company;

- indirect greenhouse gas emissions from

the consumption of purchased
electricity, heat or steam; and

i = other indirect emissicns; here we report
; business travel.

Unless ctherwise stated all data is

provided for the period 1 April 2016 to

31 March 2017. This reporting period does
not cover the same period covered by the
Financial Statements, but has been
adopted to allow the majarity of data used
tc be actual recorded data rather than
estimated consumption.

The total emissions produced by the
Group during this period were 27,853.8
TCO, (2016: 28118).

ESOS

The UK Government established ESOS
(the Energy Savings Oppertunity Scheme)
to imptement Article 8 (4 to 6) of the EU
Energy Efficiency Directive (2012/27/EU}.
The ESOS Regutations 2014 give effect to
the scheme and the Environment Agency
is the UK scheme administrator. ESOS is a
mandatory energy assessment scheme for
organisations in the UK that meet the
qualification criteria.

65 kWh/m?

Group selectricity usage
(2016: B9 KWIVY) e

| 30kg

¢ carbon emissions per m?
: )

commercial waste diverted from landfill
: (2016: 68%)
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Corporate Responsibility
continued

2017 2016
-------- Convers:on EmlSSIDI‘IS ) o o COI’WVEI'SIOI’IV o EmlSSIOI"IS
} 7 ) Consumption factor reo) ~ Gonsumption factor (Teo,)
. Scope 1 emissions . ) I
¢ Fuel combustion 934,187 kWh  0.183645 176 2,515,448 kWh C.18407 480
Company vehicles 4,557,734 litres 2.19697 18,687 4,956,014 litres 2.5839 12,829
t_eeds bunkered diesel 160,159 litres 0.24592 394 209,000 litres 2.5839 540
Fugitive emissions’ 22,380 litres 1.50938 33.8 16,335 litres 0.21488 24.7
: Scope 2 emissions
: Purchased electricity 14,480,788 kWh 0.44662 6,540 14,127,033 kWh 0.49636 7,012
. Scope 3 emissions
Business travel? 7,903,725 miles 0.30088 2,378 24,355,118 miles 0.293416 7,794
Total greenhouse gas emissions 27,854 28,116

' The methodologies used to calculate the information in the greenhouse gas emissions table are set out below.

Em|ssmn category Methodology
: Fuel combus‘nons (gas data Based on CRC Statements prowded by gas supphers for the perlod 1 Aprll 2016 to 31 March 2017
: for HSS building portfolic)
: Company vehicle emissions Collated using data from fuel card provider and direct purchase records for cars and commercial
vehlcles in Iltres converted accordmg o Defra gundehnes )
; Leeds bunkered dlesB| fuel Collated wﬁh the use of mtemal purchase order records converted accordmg to Delra gmdelmes
f Fugltlve emlss:ons o Collated wnh the use of lnternal purc

Purchased electrzcnty Based on CRC stalemenls prowded by electr:cny supp |ers for the period E Apﬂ
- ffor lTl‘SS"bl\‘.‘llldlrjg‘porrtfddlto) ] ] 31 March 2017
i Business travel Collated from expensed mﬁeage clalms ancl converted accordmg to Delra gwdellnes

1 2016 fugitiva emissions have been restated as a result of a discrepancy in last year's calculations.
: 2 The significant difference in business travel figures between 2017 and 2016 is as a result of discrepancies in the 2016 data.



5

. Colleagues

! Central to the successhul delivery of our

¢ strategy are our people. Our colleagues

: make HSS, so we are committed to

i ensuring we create a diverse workforce,

: representative of the communities in

: which we operate. Colleague safety is

i our utmost priority, and we aim to provide

| for and protect their wellbeing and invest in

: their training and development 1o ensure

: that they are both appropriately skilled

¢ and motivated. in 2017 we were pleased

! 1o see a continued reduction in RIDDOR

i occurrences thanks in part to an increased

internal focus on safe working practices.

¢ Our commitment to offering continued

! training and development for our

! colleagues at all levels saw us move

: to a blended approach to learmning,

i encompassing training courses delivered

¢ onling, through the management

: population, as well as more traditicnal

" classroomn or depot-based learning.

" Calleagues involved in professionaj
diploma or certification programmes

; are allowed time away from their roles

* to complete these each year.

¢ As at 30 December 2017, 15% of all of our
: colleagues were femaie. Despite this figure
i being in line with many cother companies

¢ in our industry, we recognise the need

: to improve this. Our gender pay gap report
i has demonstrated our commitment to

i rewarding all colleagues at a fair and

: equal level regardless of gender.
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RIDDOR

0.39

{2016: 0.40)
Women
(FY16: 17%)

Gender pay gap

8%

6

- Communities

¢ Qur extensive branch and operations

i network allows us to play a part in

{ hundreds of communities across the UK

¢ and Ireland, and we are committed to

i making a positive impact wherever we can.
¢ Qur head office in Manchester reguiarly

i holds dress down days to raise money

: for our charity partners, and we donate

: the 5p charge from all our carrier bags

: to Damentia UK. We are also committed

. to supporting educational efforts in our

i communities and offer work placements in
i our head office support teams to students
i from some of the locai universities.

Approval of the Strategic Report
rategic Report on pages 2 to 25
gd by the Beard of Directors

5 April 2018
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Corporate Governance

Chairman’s Introduction

Ensuring good
governance is
an integral part
of our business

On behalf of the Board, | am pleased to present the corporate governance report
for the 2017 financial year.

This part of the Annual Report provides an overview of the Group's existing
approach to corporate governance and how we continue to evolve our corporate
governance structure(s) to better mitigate risk and ensure compliance with
prevailing legislation on an ongoing basis. Reports from the Chairs of each

of the sub-committees of the Board (the Audit, Nomination, Market Disclosure
and Remuneration Committees) are included in the following pages and outline
the work and inftiatives each has undertaken during the year.

During the course of 2017 we saw a number of changes take
place within the Company; however, our vision that corporate
govermance should form the backbone of our culture remains
unchanged. We have strong governance structures through our
Committees, systems and policies and together these contribute
to our day-to-day activities, the protection of our assets and the
delivery of our business plan.

Alan Peterson
Chairman



The main corporate governance issues
addressed by the Board or one of the
four sub-committees of the Board during
the year were as follows:

Strategic Review

During 2017, the Board engaged with

an independent party to work with HSS
management, to undertake the most
extensive review of the business 1o date.
Three key Strategic priorities were identified;

o Delever the Group
e Repair the Tool Hire business

e Strengthen commercial proposition

As a result of our findings, a number

of cost control inittatives have been
implemented. This is tc ensure that the
business is operating as efficiently and
effectively as possible, and that it is well
placed to recover from its disappointing
performance in the first half of 2017 and
improve sharsholder returns.

The Board remains confident that the
changes impiemented will position the
business to drive improved earnings per
share. Qur focus in 2017 has been firmly
on cost contral, operational and capital
efficiancy and driving a clear compaetitive
advantage from our enhancsd customer
proposition.

Board evaluation

We completed our 2017 internal Board
and Committee evaluation in early 2018,
Further details on this process and its
findings are provided in the Nomination
Committes report on pages 40 and 41.

The Nomination Committee is
reccmmending that all Board Dirgctors
are re-elected at our Annual General
Meseting (AGM).

Senior management reorganisation

In early 2017, we made further
appointments to our senior leadership
team, including a Group HR Director and a
Chief Commercial Officer, the latter being
specifically focused on reinvigorating our
core Rental and related revenue growth. In
June 2017 we appointed Steve Ashmore
as our new CEQ, replacing John Gill who
stepped down from the Group, having
served for eight years in the Company.
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Legislative/regulatory change and
related training for colleagues

The Directors and senior management are
informed of notable legal and regulatory
changes via a combination of internal
legal and audit professionals and also

via external advisers. During 2017 and
continuing into 2018, the Group has
assessed and is implementing changes
as required in preparation for the GDPR
becoming law in 2018. 2017 alsc saw the
introduction of the Criminal Finances Act,
placing increased emphasis on controls to
prevent the facilitation of tax evasion. HSS
has given top level commitment to this,
including a new policy, a risk assessment
and bespoke e-learning training modules.
The Group has also continued to monitor
its policies and procedures in respect of
the Modern Slavery Act 2015 and will

-publish an anti-slavery and human

trafficking statement for FY17 during 2018.
The Group released its gender pay gap
report which shows a gap of 8.2%,
significantly lower than the national average
of 18.1%. We are committed to creating a
fair and equal reward structure across our
workforce, regardless of gender.

Equality and diversity policy

The Group's equality and diversity policy
applies across all levels of the business,
including at Board level, and is designed

to reflect the importance that we believe
promoting equal opportunities and diversity
plays in the long-term success of HSS.

Currently we have one female Non-
Executive Director, meaning 50% of cur
Independent Non-Executive Directors are
fernale and 17% of the Board is female.
Further detait on the gender split for senior
management and employees is provided
within the Strategic Report on page 25.

Based on our annual Board evaluation

we believe that the current mix of
experience, background and perspectives
amongst the Directers contributes to the
effectiveness of the Board as a whole;
however, we recognise that female
representation and diversity at Board level
remains limited and represents continuing
developrment opportunities for the Group.

As and when Director or senior
management appointments are being
made or succession planning is being
undertaken, all candidates are considered
on merit and against objective criteria,
with due regard for the benefits of diversity
on the Board and amongst the senior
management team, including gender.

Further details on cur appreach to equality
ana diversity can be found on page 25
and within our Corporate Responsibility
Report availabie for downioad at www.
hashiregroup.com/corporate-responsibility.

Looking ahead

The implementation of the findings from our
Strategic Review and the new management
team give me great confidence that we have
assembled a strong cperational team and an
experienced Board, both of which will drive
the long-term success of the business.

In December, the management team
presented the findings of the Strategic
Review, which determined that the current
size of the network, 255 locations, was the
appropriate level for the Group. This was
much lower than originally envisaged when
the NDEC was set up and thersfore the
network was no langer cost-effective.

On this basis, the testing of fast moving
core hire fleet has been moved back into
the branch network with engineering
consolidated into a number of CDCs,
ensuring continued high product utilisation
and capital efficiency.

As a Board we remain confident that the
changes we have implemented through
this period, and continue to implement, wilt
position the business to drive improved
shareholder returns in what remains a
competitive and fragmented marketplace.

| once again lock forward to mesting
sharehotders at our next AGM, which will
be held at 11.00am on 21 Jure 2018 at
Hilton Garden Inn, Hatton Cross.

Alan Peterson
Chairman
5 April 2018
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Corporate Governance

Board of Directors

Alan Peterson
Chairman

Alan Peterson has served as the Group's
Chairman since December 2012. He also
served as the Group's Chairman between
2004 and 2007, Alan’s experience over the
last 25 years includes involvement in &
number of public and private equity-backed
businesseas across the UK, Europe and
North America. He has held the role of chief
executive officer and chairman in a number
of manufacturing, industrial and retail
companries, including Enterprise Group plc,
Azelis Holding SA, Rockware Group and
Meyer International plc. He is also the
chairman of BBI Group Holding Limited.

Alan became 3i’s first Industrialist in
Residence in 2001, serving until 2005.

Alan also chairs the Board's
Nemination Committee.

Steve Ashmore
Chief Executive Officer

Stave Ashmore joined the Group as

Chief Executive Officer in June 2017,

He brings in considerable leadership
experience and consistent delivery of
growth and value in a range of industries
complementary to H3S, including buiiding
product supply, logistics and distribution.

Steve previously held a number of senior
roles at Exel, the supply chain and third
party logistics provider, before working in
a number of senior leadership positions,
including uk managing director, at
Wolseley, the £2.0bn revenue distributor
of plumbing and heating products and
supplier of building materiais. Before
joining HSS he was the UK managing
director of Brammer, the specialist
distributor of industrial products.

Paul Quested
Chief Financial Officer

Paul Quested joined the Group as Chief
Financial Officer in August 2016. Before
joining the Group, he was chief corporate
development officer for Electrocomponeénts
pic and had hetd a number of senior
positions within Electrocomponents,
inciuding those of giobal strategy director,
general manager (RS UK) and head of
finance (RS UK.

Prior to Electrocompoenents, Paul worked
at InBev for ten years, wherg his roles
included planning & performance
management director. Before InBev,

he worked at Coopers & Lybrand where he
was an audit manager for TSE 100 clients.
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Amanda Burton
Senior independent
Non-Executive Director

Amanda Burton is an independent
non-executive director of Countryside
Properties plc and the Skipton Building
Society. She chairs the Remuneration
Committee for Countryside Properties pic
and is a member of the Remuneration
Committee at the Skipton Group. Amanda
is also the chair of the Battersea Dogs
and Cats Home. Untit December 2014,
she served as the chief operating officer
of Clifford Chance LLP. She was also
previously the senior independent
non-executive director of Galiford Try ple,
Monitise plc and a non-executive director
of Fresca Group Limited.

Amanda is a member of the Board’s Audit
and Nominaticn Committees and chairs
both the Remuneration Committee and
the Market Disclosure Committee.

Doug Robertson
Independent
Non-Executive Director

Doug Robertson was appeinted as a
non-executive director and chair of the
Audit Committee of Zotefoams plc in
August 2017. He retired as finance director
of SIG plc on 31 January 2017. He was
pravicusly finance director of Umeco plc
from 2007 until 2011, and finance director
of Seton House Group Limited from 2002
until 2007. He has also held a variety of
divisional finance director roles within
Williams plc and was previously managing
director of Tesa Group, Chubb’s hotel
security division.

Doug is a member of the Board's
Nominaticn and Bemuneration
Committees and chairs the

Audit Committee.

Thomas Sweet-Escott
Non-Executive Director

Tom Sweet-Escott co-founded Exponent
Private Equity in 2004, He is primarily
responsible for investments in the financial
services sector and also serves on the
board of the Bullitt group of companies.
He has previously served on the boards
of Trainline plc, V.Group and Lowell, and
worked for 3i in London and Madrid.

wadey mbialeng
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Corporate Governance

Compliance with the Corporate Governance Code

The Board is committed to high standards of corperate
governance and as such has complied with the UK Corporate
Governance Code {the Code) during the FY17 reporting year,
noting the following:

The Code recommends that at least half the Board of Directors

of a UK-listed company, excluding the Chairman, should

comprise Independent Non-Executive Rirectors, Independence

is determined by ensuring that, apart from receiving their fees for
acting as Directors, Non-Executive Directors do not have any other
material relationship or transactions with the Group, its promoters,
its management or fts subsidiaries, which in the judgement of the
Board may affect their independence of judgement.

Thomas Sweet-Escott, a Non-Executive Director, is not
consigered to be independent for the purposes of the Code
as he represents Exponent Private Equity (Exponent) and
related investors (the Exponent Shareholders), who currently
control 50.3% of the Company’s issued shares.

Code Provision B.1.2 provides that a smaller company should
have at least two Independent Non-Executive Directars. A smalier
company is one that is below the FTSE 350 throughout the year
immediately prior to the reporting year, which is the case in
respect of the Company. Therefore, as at 30 December 2017, the
Company is compliant with the requiraments of the Code in this
respect. On 22 January 2015, the Company, Exponent and the
Exponent Shareholders entered into a Relationship Agreement
which requlates the ongoing relationship between them. The
principal purpose of this agreement is t¢ ensure that the Company
and its subsidiaries are capable of carrying on their business
independently of Exponent and the Exponent Shareholders and
that any transactions and refationships between them are at arm’s
length and on normal commercial terms.

The Code is publicly available at the following web address:
www.frc.org.uk/Our-Work/Publications/Corporate-Governance/
UK-Corporate-Governance- Code-Aprii-2016.pdf

Leadership

Key roles and responsibilities
Chairman Responsibie for:

Alan Peterson

- ensuring that the conduct of the Group is in accordance with high standards of integrity and probity,

and in accordance with all appropriate governance codes;

- the leadership and overall effectiveness of the Board, and ensuring that there is appropriate
delegation from the Board to executive mariagerment;

- ensuring a clear structures for the operation of the Board and its Commitiees;

- setting the Board agenda in conjunction with the Company Secretary, Chief Executive Officer and

Chief Financial Officer;

= ensuring that the Board receives accurate, relevant and timely information about the Group’s affairs; and
- ensuring clear two-way communication with shareholders.

Chief Executive Qfficer Responsible for:
Steve Ashmore

- developing the Group’s strategy for consideration and approval by the Board;
-» impiementing the agreed strategy;

- day-to-day management of the Group's operations; and

Responsible for:
Non-Executive Director
Amanda Burton

— being accountable to, and reporting to, the Board on the performance of the business.

- being an alternative contact for shareholders at Board level other than the Chalrmary;
= acting as a sounding beard for the Chairman;

- if required, being an intermediary for Non-Executive Directors’ concerns; and
- revigwing the Chairman’s performance.

The Senior Independent Non-Executive Director carries out the duties of a Senior Independent Director

for the purposes of compliance with the Code.

The Board focuses on:
- leadership;

Board and Committee
structure

-> risk assessment and management;

— strategy,
= performance; and

-> monitoring safety, values and standards.

In addition there is a formai schedule of matters reserved for the Board.
The Committees each have full terms of reference which can be found on the Company's website
at www hsshiregroup.comvinvestor-relations/corporate-governance.

Non-Executive Directors

The number of Non-Executive Directers and their range of skills and experience is kept under review
and was formally reviewed as part of the Board evaluation (see page 41).
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Governance framework

Alan Peterson
Chairman

Role:

=> Ensure effectiveness of the Boarg

-» Ensure corporate governance compliance
- Ensure effective Board Committee structure
— Ensure effective communications

The Board

Comprises six Directors, of which four are
Non-Executive, two of which, Amanda Burton
and Doug Robertson, are considered independent.
The Board is suppotted by the Company Secretary.

Role:

= Lead the Group

- Oversee risk management and internal controls
— Oversee strategy

- Oversee the executive management

= Monitor performance

- Set values and standards

Executive management
Chief Executive Officer,
Chief Financial Cfficer,
Chief Commercial Officer,
Group HR Director, and
Managing Director of

H Scotland and freland.

Role:

- Implement Group strategy
- Operational management
of the Group

Company Secretary
Daniel Jolt

Role:

-3 Support and advise the
Board and Committees

- Daniel is also a member
of the executive
management team

$

Remuneration Committee
Comprises Independent
Non-Executive Diractors,
chaired by Amanda Burton,
supported by the Company
Secretary.

Audit Committee
Comprises Independent
Non-Executive Directors,
chaired by Doug Robertson,

supported by the Company
Secretary.

Role: Role:

- Determine and review
appropriate Beard and senior
executive remunaration
policies and structures

—> Determine aporopriate
remuneration packages for
Board and senior executives

-» Monitor financial reporting
—> Monitor audit
= Monitor effectiveness

of risk management

and internal controlg

@ Find out more
Audit Committee Report pages

37 to 39 @ Find out more

Directors’ Remuneration Report
pages 42 to 49

I

Nomination Committee
Comprises Non-Executive
Directors, including two
Independent Non-Executive
Directors, chaired by Alan
Peterson, supported by the
Company Secretary.

Role:

= Advise the Board on
composition, membership
and succession planning

= Advise the Board on
appointments

@ Find out more
Nomination Committee Report
pages 40to 41

)\

Market Disclosure
Committee

Chaired by Amanda Burton,
plus the Chief Executive
Officer, supported by the
Company Secretary.

Role:

- Ensure compliance with
disclosure requirements
@ Find out more

Market Disclosure
Committee Report page 40

Attendance at Board and Comrmittee meetings of which each Director is a member held between 1 January 2017 and 30 December 2017

Audit Remuneration Nomination
Director Board Committee Committee Committes
ExecutweDlrectors 0Ot 0t e st oS
Steve Ashmore' 11/11 - - -
John Gil? 4/4 - - —
Paul Quested 16/16 - - -
Non-Executive Directors
Alan Peterson 16/18 - - 2/2
Amanda Burton 15/16 8/8 77 2/2
Doug Robertson 16/16 8/8 77 2/2
Thomas Sweet-Escott 14/18 - - -

1 Steve Ashmore was appointed as a Director with effect from 1 June 2017.
2 John Gill resigned as a Dirgctor with effect from 23 May 2017.
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Corporate Governance
continued

All the individuals who were Directors as at 30 Decamber 2017
offer themselves for re-election at the next AGM of HSS Hire
Group plc to be held at 11.00am on 21 June 2018 at Hilton
Garden Inn, Hatton Cross.

The biographical details of each of the Directors, including details
of their other direciorships and relevant skills and experience,

are on pages 30 and 31 of this Annual Report and are also set out
in the Notice of AGM.

The Board recommends that sharsholders approve the
resolutions to be proposea at the AGM relating to the re-election
of all of the Birectors.

Terms and conditions and time commitments

The Chairman and Non-Executive Directors are all appointed
pursuant to formal letters of appointment which outline,
amongst cther details, the remuneration and term of
appeintment for each Director,

The Chairman devctes such time to the affairs of the Company as
is required by his duties. In addition, in 2017, the Non-Executive
Directors devoted their time in carrying out their duties, which
included attendance at meetings as reflected in the above table,

In order to facilitate proper debate and consideraticn, all Directors
are sxpected 10 attend Board and Cormmittee meetings to which
they are invited in person.

The Executive Directors of the Company may attend certain
meetings of the Committees at the invitation of the Chairman
of the respective Committee. These attendances are not
recorded in the table set out above,

Conflicts of interest
Exponent and the Exponent Sharehoiders currently control
50.3% of the Company’s issued shares.

Thomas Sweet-Escott is a partner at Exponent and Alan Psterson
has a long-standing business relationship with Exponent and is
chairman and/or a director of BBI Group Helding Limited, BBI
Acquisition Limited, EAGLE SPV 2 Limited¢ and EAGLE SPV 3
Limited, all of which are Exponent portfolio companies. The
Group trades on an arm's length basis with certain Exponent
portfolio companies.

Amanda Burton is a Non-Executive Director of the parent
company of a customer of the Group.

The Board has safisfied itself that such customer is not material
enough to create & potential conflict of interest. In the event that
HSS's relationship with any customers or other companies where
any of the Directors are alse appointed as direclors becomes
rmaterial by virtue of their trade with the Group or another
business reason, the relevant Director would be expected to
declare thelr connection to tha customet/company and the Board
would assess whather a conflict of interest arises and the
appropriate action to be taken. Save as set out above, there are
no current or potential conflicts of interest between any duties
owed by the Directors or senicr management to the Company
and their private interests or other duties.

Any Directors’ conflicts of interest are declared to the Board and
recorded by the Cormpany Secretary.

Effectiveness

Board composition

The Board and Committees are considered 1o have an
appropriate range of experience, skills and knowledge to fulfi
their duties, Profiles of each of the members of the Board are
provided on pages 30 and 31.

The four Non-Executive Directors, Alan Peterson, Amanda
Burton, Doug Robertson and Themas Sweet-Escott, represent
a majority of Board members and provide a broad range of
skiils and experience.

The two Executive Directors, Steve Ashmore and Paut Quested,
bring a variety of sector experience ic the Board, Amanda Burton
and Doug Robertson are considered independent. They are
members of the Audit, Remuneration and Nomination Committees
of the Board. Beth the Market Disclosure and Remuneration
Gommittegs are ¢chaired by an Independent Non-Executive
Director, Amanda Burton. The Audit Committee is chaired by

an Independent Non-Exacutive Director, Doug Robertson.

Appointments to the Board

The Nominaticn Committee, which is compasea entirely of
Non-Executive Directors, is responsible for any future
appointments to the Board. The Nomination Committee is chaired
by the Chairman of the Beard, Alan Peterson. By virtue of the fact
that the majority of its members are Independent Non-Execuitive
Directors, the Nomination Committee is considered independent.

Overview of Board’s work during 2017
The Board met 16 times during 2017

Regular agenda items for the Board included, and wil! include

in 2018:

-9 operational and ﬁnancial performance; ) N ]

5 heaJth and safety e T e i
9 rlsk rnanagamem and the nsk regtster -

9 |ntemal poilmes and procedures mtroductton revlew. monatorlng '

-) rewethg, sethng and approwng trategy;

-} evaluatlon of acqu=5|t|on/dlsposal opportunitles

Ad hoc and specuﬁc iterns reviewed by the Board durlng the year
included, and will include in 2018:

9 the Annual Heport and Accoums
9 the Entenm (half-yea Re

> the quarteriy reportlng requwed under the reportlng
requirements of the Notes together with any associated
tradlng updates

9 RNS releases relat(né to Dlrectorate changes (as apphcable) d

ACCO nt

9 approval of the annual budget

The Board delegates authoerity to the following Committees:

—)Audlt Comrmttee o
9 Remuneratuon Commmee, o

=2 Norr‘rrnanorr Com

Board evaluation
Internal evaluation of the Board and of our sub-committees was
carried out as detailed on page 41.



Board training

As part of induction, any new Directors receive training from the
Company's sponsors/brokers in relation to their responsibilities as
a Director of a listed company. The Board also receives regular
updates on legal and regulatory developments through the course
of afinancial year as reflected in the Chairman’s Introduction on
page 29.

Access to information and support

The Board is provided with an agenda and supporting papers and
docurnemation ahead of each Board and/or Committee meeting to
allow them time to read, review and consider the information and
analysis presented. The Board also has access to the Company
Secretary and can request independent advice at the Company’s
expense where they believe it is appropriate and valuable to do so.
Senior management are also frequently invited to present at Board
meetings as deemed appropriate, and the Board can access such
colieagues at any time,

Accountability

Financiat and business reporting

The Directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report
and the Financial Statements in accordance with applicabie law
and regulations, and as set out in the Directors' Responsibility
Statement (See page 53), the Board considers that the Annual
Report and Agcounts, taken as a whole, ig fair, balanced and
understandable and provides the information necessary for
sharenolders to assess HSS's position and performance,
business model and strategy.

Risk management and internal controt

The Board has overall responsibility for determining the nature
and extent of the principal risks it is willing to take to achieve
its strategic objectives and for establishing and maintaining

a sound system of risk management and internal contro!, and
then reviewing its effectiveress.

The principal risks and uncertainties facing the Company and
how these are being managed/mitigated are detailed on pages
14 to 17.

The Group’s risk management and internal control system is
designed to manage the risks facing the Group and safeguard
its assets. No system of internal control can provide absolute
assurance against material misstatement or loss. The Group’s
system is designed to provide the Directors with reasonable
assurance that issues are identified on a timely basis and are
dealt with appropriately.

The Audit Committea (whose compaosition, remit and report are
set out on page 33 and pages 37 to 38} assists the Board in
reviewing the effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and
internal controls, including financiai, operational and compliance
controls and risk management systerns. This is carried out with
the assistance of the Chief Financial Officer and the Risk and
Assurance Director which is supported by the findings of
specific projects/investigations completed by the internal

audit team, the findings of which are presented to the Audit
Committee during the financial year.

Whistleblowing

The Company has a formal whistleblowing process, whereby any
colleague may, in complete anonymity, contact certain nominated
members of senior management to raise any concerns. These
concerns are then investigated independently and the results
shared with the whistleblower for further discussion if appropriate/
possible. This process is communicated to all calleagues at least
annually 1o their home addresses, and the policy and relevant
details are also made available to colleagues cn a dedicated
section of the Group intranet, HSS World.
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Modern Slavery Act 2015 &
The Group published its Modern Slavery Act statement for the 2
financial year ended 31 December 2016 on its website in 2017. ‘i
Going concern and long-term viability statement §
Note 1(g) of the Financial Statements sets out the basis on which =
the Directors continue to adopt the going concern basis in
preparing the Annual Report and Accounts.
In surmmary, taking into account the adequacy of the Group’s
debt facilities, current and future developments and the principal &
risks and uncertainties (see pages 14 to 17), and after making 3
appropriate enquiries, the Directors have a reasonable %
expectation that the Group has adequate resources to continue o]
in operational existence for the foreseeable future. Accordingly :
they centinue to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the g
Financial Statements included within this Annual Report. 2
In accordance with provision C.2.2 of the UK Corporate
Governance Code 2014, the Directors have assessed the viabiltty n
of the Group over a three-year pericd, taking into account the 8
Group's current position, strategic plans, and the potential impact é
of the principal risks and uncertainties documented on pages 14 g)
to 17. Based on this assessment, and all other matters considered g
and reviewed at Board level during the year, the Directors confirm g
that they have a reasonable expectation that the Group will be &
able to continug in operation and meet its liabilities as they fall dus
over the period to 26 December 2020.
Whilst the Directors have no reason to believe the Group is not §
viable over a longer period they have determined that three years g
is the appropriate time over which to provide the viability §
statement because: 3
-3 it reflects a period over which the Directors can have a g;
reasonable view of the future in the context of the market )

envrronment |n whrch the Group operates and

—) itis consustent wrth the tnme covered by the Group s current
strategic plans and model.

The Group's annual budgetrng and forecastlng process lnvolves
the preparation of an annual budget, and a rolling three-year
strategic model that also includes planned strategic actions and
other specific assumptions regarding revenue growth, cost trends
and capital expenditure across the Group.

Where appropriate, sensitivity analysis is undertaken to test the
resilience of the Group to various scenarios. Whilst all of the
principal risks and uncertainties were considered, the following
were considered in greater detail during the sensitivity analysis:
macroeconomic conditions and competitor challenge, in addition
1o a changing cost profile.

The principal effects assessed, together with their impact on the
Group's Financial Statements, were therefore:

- raductions in Rental and related revenue growth rates (market
or company speon‘lc} and the associated impacts on capital
axp

nts an he Group s variable cost base;
work change cost sa\nngs

-9 delays in achlevrng other planned cost reduct:ons,
e mcreases |n costs at a higher rate than currenﬂy planned

—) Iower |IQUIdIty levels due fo an mcrease |n debtor days and

> changes in flnance cost L!BOR increases, affechng the cost
of the Revolving Credit Facility. 7 S
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In addition to the mitigating factors identified on pages 15 to 17, the
Board noted that: the Group has a diversified customer base; a
history of winning new customers; and low customer concentration
with only one customer currently accounting for more than 10% of
revenues and the top 20 customers accounting for less than 30%
of revenues. Alongside this the Group has a continuous profile of
lease expiries that allows a material portion of the portiolio to be
exited in any one year and the Group's ability to match capitat
investrent to customer demand acts to support cash generation.

With regard te sources of finance, the Board has no reason to
believe the Group will not be able to refinance the Group’s existing
£136m senior secured notes and RCF before they become
tepayable in 2019, The Directors reiterate their intention to
refinance these facilities before they become current in July 2018
and 1o provide the Group with a capital structure with increased
levels of liquidity.

Statement on disciosure of information to the auditor
The Directors who held office as at 5 April 2018 each confirm that;

- a) s0 far as the Director is aware, there is no relevant audit
information of which the Company’s auditor is unaware; and

= b} he/she has taken all the steps that he/she ought to have
taken as a Director in order to make himself/herself aware
of any relevant audit information and to establish that the
Company's auditor is aware of that information.

This cenfirmation is given and should be interpreted in accordance
with the provisions of Section 418 of the Companies Act 20086.

Remuneration

The Remuneration and Audit Committees are composed exclusively
of Independent Non-Executive Directors, able o judge and achieve
an appropriate batance between incentivising Executive Directors
and the potential impact on the Company's risk profile.

The Remuneration Committee (whose composition, remit and
report are set out on page 33 and pages 42 10 49} sets the policy
for and terms of executive remuneration.

Relations with shareholders and other capital providers
Shareholder engagement

The Beoard remains committed to communicating with shareholders
and stakehclders in & clear and opean manner, and seek to ensure
effective engagement through the Company's websits, its public
announcements, the AGM and cther investor relations activities.

In addition tc its ongeing reporting obligations, the Company
undertakes a programme of meetings with existing and/or
potential institutional investors and equity analysts, led by the
Chief Executive Officer ang Chief Financial Officer. These
meetings, together with investor {eedback collected via ocur
brokers, enable the Company 1o assess prevalling analyst and
investor sentiment and to cbtain external feedback on how the
Group’s performance and strategy are perceived and considered.
A summary report on investor interaction and feedback is
provided to each Board meeting through the year to keep the
wider Board informed of these activities and findings.

During 2017 there have been a total of over 80 such meetings/
presentations, including quarterly results presentations and a
Strategy Update presentation held in December.

As well as such meetings and announcements, teleconference
calls are held with institutional investors and analysts throughout
the year; copies of relevant presentation materials are made
available on the Company’s website to the extent they differ
from the latest publicly released results presentations.

All Directors are expected to attend the AGM, providing
shareholders with the opportunity t¢ question them about issues
relating to the Group, either during the mesting or informally
afterwards. The Non-Executive Directors are available for
discussion with shareholders on matters under their areas of
responsibility either in person at the AGM or at any other time
via the Company Secretary.

The Company reporis its financial results to sharehoiders twice
a year, with the publication of its Annual and Half-Year Financial
Reports. Shorter, less detailed trading updates are also provided
to the market on a quarterly basis.

The Company also produces quarterly financial reports
consolidated at the Hero Acqguisitions Limited group level to meet
the reporting obligations of the Notes issued in February 2014.
The Notes are hald within HSS Financing plc, a wholly owned
direct subsidiary of Hero Acquisitions Limited, itself a wholly
owned subsidiary of HSS Hire Group plc. The quarterly reports
are therefore principally of use to noteholders as they provide
information on the financial performance of the Notes' guarantor
group rather than the Company and Group. To aid shareholders’
understanding of the difference between Hero Acquisitions
Limited’s and HSS Hire Group plc’s consclidated results, the
Company provides the afore mentioned trading updates for HSS
Hire Group plc on & quarterly basis.

Al of the above mentioned reports are made available for download
to noteholders and sharehoiders in the investor reiations section of
the Company’s website, www.hsshiregroup.com/investor-relations.

Significant shareholders
Based on TR-1 notifications received from the parties who hold
3% or more of the issued share capital of the Company as at 5
April 2018 ars as follows:

Number of
ardinary
Name . - s_hg_x_'es ofﬂp___ ) %iqugipg )
Exponent! 85,681,709 50.34%
Toscafund Asset Management LLP?2 45,812,070 26.92%
Standard Life Capital Partners LLP 13,958,979 8.20%

1 Comprises shareholdings held by Exponent Private Equity Partners GP 11,
LP (UK} and Exponent Havana Co-Investment GP Limited Partners (UK}

2 Gomprises sharehokdings held by the Tosca Mid-Cap fund, the Tosca
Opportunity fund and the Micro-Cap Units fund.

Details of Diractors’ interests in the Company’s ordinary share
capital are provided in the Directors’ Remuneration Report on
pages 42 to 49.

Annual General Meeting

The Company’s AGM will be held at 11.00am on 21 June 2018 at
Hilton Garden Inn, Hatton Cross. All shareholders are invited to
the Company’'s AGM, at which they will have the opportunity to
put questions to the Board. Detalls of the resolutions proposed
and being voted on are provided in the Notice of AGM provided
to shareholders and also available for downicad on the Group’s
website, www.hsshiregroup.com.

Relations with other capital providers

As part of the reporting requirements of the Notes we report
consalidated results for the Hero Acquisitions Limited group to
noteholders on a quarterly basis. This includes a conference call,
where noteholders have the opportunity to speak with the Chief
Executive Officer and Chiet Financial Officer.
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Audit Committee Report

Doug Robertson
Committee Chairman

Dear shareholder

On behalf of the Audit Committee {the Committee), | am pleased
to present our report for the 2017 financial year.

The Commitlee has reviewed the contents of the 2017 Annual
Report and Accounts and advised the Board that it considers the
Report to be fair, balanced and understandable and provides the
informaticn necessary for shareholders to assess the Company’s
position and performance, business model and strategy.

Roles and responsibilities

The Committee has responsibility for overseeing the financial
reporting and internal financial and risk management controis of
the Company, as well as mairntaining an appropriate relationship
with the external auditor and reporting its findings and
recormmendations to the Board.

The Commitieg’s full terms of reference can be found on the
Company's website at www.hsshiregroup.com/investor-relations/
corporate-governance. A summary of its key responsibilities inciude:

= receiving and reviewing the Annual Report and Accounts and
half-yearly Financial Statements and alf related public financial
announcements, and advising the Board on whether the Annual
Repon and Accounts are falr balanced and understandable

9 recervrng and rewewmg reports frcm fhe externaf auddtor

> momtonng the external auditor's eﬂectweness and
independence and approving their appointment and
thelr terms of engagement

;) momtonng the eﬁact:veness ot the Group S nsk o -
management system;

-9 reviewing the eﬁechveness of the Group s system of mternal
financial controls and internal control and compliance systems,
and adwsmg the Board as appropnate and

-9 cverseeing the Group s procedures for detectmg fraud and -
whistieblowing arrangements.

Core activities
The Committee met sight times in 2017. All members attended
these meetings.

The Committee's core activities during 2017 included, and will
include in 2018:

- reviewing and enhancing disclosure in areas of judgement
of estimates within the notes to the Financial Staternents;

~> regular review of the work and findings of the interna
audit function;

9 meeting with the external audltors agreelng their audﬁ plan -
and assessing their findings.
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Audit Committee Report
continued

Ad hoc activities

Specitic additional work streams undertaken by the Cammittee
during the year included responding to a thematic review of the
Group's 2016 accounts by the Financial Reporting Council.
Positive feedback on the presentation and disclosure in the
accounts was received and mincr recommendations for
improvement have been noted and acted upon. Additionally,
the Commitiee has considered the impact upon the Group

of the Anti-facilitation of Tax Evasion implications of the 2017
Criminal Finances Act which will come into force during 2018.

External financial reporting

The Committee is responsitle for monitoring and reviewing

the Financial Statements and reviewing compliance with legal,
regulatory and statutory requirements, giving due consideration
to the provisions of the Code.

The Committee reviewed the annual and interim Financial
Statements and trading updates released during the year
with particular focus on the following significant areas:
—» hire stock existence and valuation;
= carrying value of goodwill and cther intangible and

tangible assets;

- revenue recognitﬂirdhﬁ— curoff éarlés rébétes éﬁd creditm

.. Noteprovisions;

= onerous lease provisions L

— Management assessment of going concerniand
> exceptionalitems.

These areas are identified as significant due to their compiexity,
size, level of judgement required and/or potential impact on the
Financial Statements and our strategy.

An overview of each of these argas is set out below:

Hire stock existence and valuation

Rental income earned on materials and equipment heid for hire
which is owned by the Group (hire stock) is a farge component
of the Group’s revenues. As such the existence of hirg stock is
important to the ocngoing ability of the Group to generate revenue
from its assets. Certain of the Group’s funding arrangements are
also linked to specific assets or asset classes. The Committee
has therefore given careful consideration to the controls in place
to verify the physical existence and appropriate valuation of hire
stock together with the processes for verifying the reliability of
the accounting systems and records, and has conciuded that
appropriate systems are in place.

Carrying value of goodwili and other intangible and tangible assets
The carrying value of goodwill, intangibie and tangible assets was
reviewed at the year end. A consistent methodology is applied to
each of the individual cash-generating units, taking account of
market outlook, risk-adjusted discounted future cash fiows,
sensitivities and other factors which may have a bearing on
impairment considerations. As a result of this work the Committee
has concluded that no impairment provisions are required.

Revenue recognition — cut-off, revenue-related rebates

and credit note provisions

The Committee examined the procedures and controls in place
to ensure that the reporting and recognition of revenue, especially
for open hires over the year end, and afso whether the recognition
of any revenue-related rebate accruals or credit note provisicns is
appropriate and compiete.

Onerous lease provisions

The Committee reviewed with management the basis of property-
related provisions for properties that the Group no longer utilises
{dark stores), including the estimates and judgements applied by
managerment in assessing the existence and level of provision.
The Comsmitiee assesses that the approach adopted is reasonable.

Going concern

The accounts have been prepared an a going concern basis.
The Group has made losses during the financial year and
operated with & limited amount of headroom on its main banking
facilities throughout 2017. The Senior Secured Notes and the
Revolving Credit Factlity are both due for repayment during 2019
and the Committee has reviewed the cash flow forecasts and
sensitivity analysis and has satisfied itself that the business wil
be able to refinance these cbligations and that accerdingly it

is appropriate to adopt the going concern assumption in the
preparation of the accounts.

Exceptional items

The Committee reviewed with management the expenses
classified as exceptional during the year, which included the
significant provision made in respect of the onerous agreement
with Unipart following the decision to modify the NDEC
agreement and to move the maintenance of fast moving products
back into the branch and distribution centre network. The loss

on sale of the TecServ and Reintec businesses has been included
as an exceptional item. Additionally exceptional items included
one off costs relating to cost reduction projects and preparatory
work for the debt refinancing that the Greup will complete during
2018 and onerous !eases on dark stores and associated asset
impairments. The Committee assesses that the approach
adopted in respect of exceptional items is appropriate.

External auditor

The Committee oversees the Group’s relationship with the
external auditor (BDO) and formally reviews the relationship,
policies and procedures to ensure its independence. BDO's
also reports to the Committee on the steps it has taken through
the year to safeguard its independsnce and to comply with the
relevant professional and reguiatory requirements. The BDO
partner in charge of the audit is Kieran Storan. He has held

this role for three years. The maximum term for which he can
perform this role is five years.

BDO has been auditor to certain companies within the Group for
14 years since its appointmeant in respect of the 2004 year end,
with the tead audit partner being rotated on a reguiar basis, most
recenily in 2015, The last tender for the audit of HSS Hire Service
Group Limited and its subsidiaries occurred in 2005,



BDO has been auditor to the Public Interest Entity, HSS Hire

Group plc for three years, following its incorporation in January
2G15. It is the Group's intention to put the audit of the Public
Interest Entity out to tender at least once every ten years. The
Company has therefore complied with the relevant provisions of
the Competition and Markets Authority Final Order on the statutory
audit market and the Statutory Auditors and Third Country
Auditors Regulations 2016 {81 2016/649) and the transitional
arrangements therein for the year ended 30 December 2017.

During the year the Committee has reviewed and agreed the
scope of BDO's work, its audit fees and terms of engagement
for the half-year interim results review and full-year FY17 audit.
The fees for audit services paid to BDO are set out in note 6 of
the Financial Statements.

The Committee also reviewed the effectiveness of the external
audit process during the year. This assessment was based on
the Committee’s interaction with BDO at Committee meetings
and through feedback from the Group Finance team on its
interaction with BDO. As a result of this exercise, the Committee
has satisfied'itself that BDO continues to provide an effective
external audit service to the Company and its subsidiaries and
the Committee has made a recommendation to the Board that
a regolution for the re-appointment of BDC be proposed at

the AGM.

Non-audit work and independence

The Commiltee maintains a policy for non-audit services provided
by the Group's external auditor which segregates services into
Parmitted Engagements, Excluded Engagements and Potential
Engagernents. The policy is avaitable on the Group’s website at
www.hsshiregroup.com/investor-relations/corporate-governance.
The policy is designed to ensure that in the event the Group’s
external auditor is engaged 10 provide non-audit services the
provision of those services does not impair nor can it be seen

to impair the external auditor's independence and objectivity.

During 2017, BDQ provided non-audit-related services to the
Group, principally to support the preparatory work undertaken
for the debt refinancing project which will complete during
2018, Notwithstanding this the Committee concluded that the
independence of the auditor has not been compromised in any
way. The fees for non-audit services paid to BDO are set out in
note 6 of the Financial Statements.
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Risk management and internal controls

An overview of the Company’s approach 1o risk, risk management
and internal controls through 2017, together with a summary of
the principal risks facing the Group, is provided on pages 14 to 17.

During 2017 the Committee reviewed the overall risk management
and internal control framework, the work and rcie of the internal
audit team and the underlying process for capturing and reporting
risk and control data. This assessment was assisted through the
provision of various documents through the year by the Chief
Financial Officer, Risk and Assurance Director and other senior
personnel in the head office functions. These decuments include,
but were not limited to; quarterly risk management summary
documents, which assess any changes in risk profiles, descriptions
and ratings through the year; and quarterly summaries of work
completed and work planned by the internal audit team,
assessing both areas of risk and the existing controls in place.

As a result of this review, and the work streams undertaken
through the year, the Committes has satisfied itself that the
Group has an appropriate risk management and internal

control framewark in place. This work will continue in 2018.

Whistleblowing

The Commitiee believes that appropriate arrangements and
policies are in place 1o facilitate the proportionate and independent
investigation of, and implementation of, appropriate follow-up
action in retation to confidential concerns raised by staff via the
whistleblowing process (see page 35).

Meeting schedule

The Committee meets at least three times a year at appropriate
times in the financial reporting and audit cycle. Additional
mestings can be scheduled where desmed necessary by the
Chairman. The external auditor, Chief Financial Officer and Risk
and Assurance Director are normally invited to attend a number
of these meetings. Other members of the senior management
team attend as invited and as appropriate to the content matter
being discussed. :

Doug Robertson
Committee Chairman
5 April 2018
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Market Disclosure
Committee Report

Amanda Burton
Committee Chair

Dear shareholider

On behalf of the Market Disclosure Committee (the Committese),
| am pleased to present our report for the 2017 financial year.

Roles and responsibilities

The Cammittee’s fuil terms of reference can be found on the
Company's website at www.hsshiregroup.com/investor-relations/
corporate-governance. A summary of its key responsibiliies include:

= ensuring that the Company complies with its disclosure
obligations under the Market Abuse Reguiation and the
Dlsclosure and Transparency Rules;

—9 conmderlng certaln information and decrdlng whether such
information is insider information and whether it gives rise
tcan obisga‘clon to rnake an announcement and

- reviewing any announcemeni 1he Company proposes to rnake
other than an anncuncement of a routine nature or that has
been considered by the Board.

Activities

The Committee met oh one cccasion in 2017 to carry out routine

business. Otherwise, there were no occasions during the year

when the Committee was required to meet, since all disclosure
and announcement matters were considered by the fuli Board,

Meeting schedule
The Committae will meet as often as is deemed neceassary,
and at short natice if required.

Amanda Burton
Committee Chair
5 April 2018

Nomination
Committee Report

Alan Peterson
Committee Chairman

Dear shareholder

On behalf of the Nomination Committes (the Committee),
| am pleased to present our report for the 2017 financial year.

Roles and responsibilities

The Committee's full terms of reference can be found an the
Cornpany’s website at www.hsshiregroup.com/investor-relations/
corporate-governance. A summary of its key responsibilities
include oversesing:

- Board and senior management appointments, to evaluate the
balance of skills, knowledge, experience, independence and
dwersnty on the Board

-é Board composmon rnc%udmg the balance of Executwe and
Non- Executwe Dlrectors

9 suocessmn plannmg

> strategrc issues and commerczal changes affeotlng the Group
and the market rn whrch lt operates, and

9 Board and sub commntee performance evaluatlon



Our approach

The Committee’s primary purpose is to ensure that the Group
has the best possible leadership and clear plans for Director
succession. Its primary focus is therefore to concentrate upon the
strength of the Board and the selection of the best candidates for
posts, based on objective criteria.

Policy on diversity

In performing its activities through the year, the Committee has
applied the Group’s equality and diversity policy, which it believes
is appropriate for application at all levels of the business, including
Board and senior management appointments and/or succession
planning. Further detail on the Group's equality and diversity
policy is provided on page 28.

Activities

The Committee had two scheduled meetings in 2017 to deal
with routine business, as well as liaising on ad hoc matters
(such as directorate changes) arising over the course of the year.

At the mesting held in March 2017, the findings of the internal Board
evaluation in respect of FY16 were considered and resulting
actions, as reported in the 2016 Annual Report, were agreed.

At the meeting held in July 2017, senior management potential
and succession planning were discussed, the Committee
acknowledging that the new Chief Executive Officer has only
been in the role since June 2017 and therefore needed some time
to review maitters. The Committee also undertook an annual
review of its terms of reference and agreed that they remained
appropriate for the business. The Commitiea’s terms of reference
can be found on the Company's website at www.hsshirsgroup.
com/investor-relations/corporate-governance.

The Group engaged with Blackwood Recruitment LLP
(Blackwood), an external search consultancy firm, to assist in
the search for its new Chief Executive Officer. The Group has
previously engaged with Blackwood in relation to ather senicr
management roles and for the purposes of the external Board
evaluation carried out in 2015. The Group continues to maintain
an arm’s length relationship with Blackwood.

So farin 2018 one meeting has been held, in March, 1o
discuss findings and agree actions foliowing the 2017
internal Board evaluation.

The actions for 2017 agreed by the Committee have been
reviewed by the Committee and also by the Board, noting
in particular as follows:

- Compaosition of the Board - the Company remains
compliant in terms of number of Independent Non-Executive
Directors and it was agreed that the number of Directors and

balance on the Board remalns approprlate at the current tlme.

% Board meetlngs there had been a better balance of
discussion between operational and strategic matters during
2017, largely driven by the Strategic Review undertaken by
the Cornpany

9 Gommumcatuon - the Board members conmdered that

the repcrting and quality of information provided had
slgnlflcantly |mproved

—) Succession plannlng - there had been a number ot semor
appointments and some new senior roles created in the
Company during 2017, but no significant progress had been
made as regards Director succession during 2017, partly as
a result of recent changes at that leveil. It had been noted,
in particular, that there were increased numbers of female
colleagues in senior roles in the orgamsahon as aresult of
both promotlone and external .
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Board evaluation

The FY17 Board evaluation comprised an internal evaluation of the
Board using feedback collated from Board members’ responses
to an evaluation questionnaire. The questionnaire addressed the
key requirements of the Code in relation to the Board and its
sub-committees, including each Committee's terms of reference,
composition and frequency of meetings. Additional questions
focused on leadership, the relaticnship between the Executive
and Non-Executive Directors, the role of the Chairman, issues

of material importance concerning the Group and informaticn

on the Group's risk management systems. The responses to the
questionnaire were discussed by the Committee and the Board,
with the Committee determining any required actions following
the evaluation.

Following a discussion cf the responses, the Committee
considered it appropriate to focus on the following actions
areas during 2018:

- Succession planning — the Committee determined that,
since limited progress had been made in this area during
FY17, it should remain an area of focus for the Committee
during FY18. The Committee agreed to work proactively with
the Chief Executive to progress this during the financial year
and rewew further at the end of the year.

9 Board meetmgs the Commlttee agreed that there was o

now a batter balance of discussicn at Board level between
operational matters and strategic matters. The Committee
determined that it was important to continue to raview
progress on implementation of the Strategic Review in order
to mamtam momenturn m thls area.

—) Post—nmptementatlon reviews — the Commlttee

determined the importance of looking back, as well as
forwards, to review important decisions taken around
acquisitions, material contracts and other matters in order
to draw out what had been successful, what had been less

s0 and to take those learnings forward. ) o

Meeting schedule
In 2018, the Committee has scheduled mesetings in March and
Septemnber and any additional meetings will be arranged as required.

Alan Peterson
Committee Chairman
5 April 2018
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Corporate Governance

Directors’ Remuneration

Report

No performance bonuses were
awarded to Directors in a year
where we missed our financial
targets. Following the recruitment
of Steve Ashmore as our CEQ, the
Company received shareholder
approval to grant an exceptional
Long Term Incentive Plan award
to the Executive Directors and the
widler leadership tearm cutside of
the approved policy. This award
will vest over a four-year pericd

to the end of FY20 and will require
a significant tumaround in
performance in order to vest.

Amanda Burton
Committee Chaly

Dear shareholder

| am pleased to present, on behalf of the Board, our Directors’
Remuneration Report in respect of the year ended 30 Decemnber 2017.

The Group's Directors’ Remuneration Policy was approved at the
FY16 AGM with a vots in favour of 98.96% and can be reviewed in
the FY15 Annual Report available at hssannualreport2015.com.

The Annual Report on Remuneration, which provides details of the
remuneration earned by Directors in FY17 and how we intend to
apply the Oirectors’ Remuneration Policy in FY18, is available on
page 44. At the FY18 AGM, te be held on 21 June 2018, the Annual
Report o Remuneration will be subject to an advisory vote.

The Committee’s terms of reference can be found on the
Company's website at www.hsshiregroup.com/investor-relations/
corporate-governance.

How we link executive remuneration to our strategy

We take a disciplined approach t¢ executive remuneration,
ensuring that we incentivise and reward the right behaviours

to support the overall strategy of the Group. Our executive
remuneration arrangements are designed 1o support the Group's
strategic priotities. In the summary below, we have highlighted
how certain elements of the Directors’ Remuneration Policy relate
to those strategic priorities.

The culture of our business means that we seek to ensure we
have the same approach to reward for all our colleagues where
appropriate and therefore have designed a reward framework
which we can cascade consistently and one which is relevant

not only for our Executive Directors but also for our senior team
who participate in the Annual Bonus and the Long Term Incentive
Plan (LTIP).

Focus on profitability and growth: The
two principal performance measures for the
annual bonus last year were Adjusted EBITA
and Net Leverage Ratic (Net Debt/Adjusted
EBITDA) reflecting our focus on cash-
generative profitabie growth and a healthy
bafance sheet. For FY18 the Committee has
introduced a third measure based on growth
in core hire rental revenue. This new measure
emphasises to our annual bonus participants
the focus on a retum to growing and
developing an important part of our business,
This will account for 30% of the bonus,
balanced against a profit measure (30% of the
ponus) and our Net Leverage Ratio measure
(30% of the bonus), and the Committee
considers that these provide a balanced

and appropriate approach for FY18, The
Commitiee has also changed the profit
measure from EBITA to EBITDA to make it
consistent with our Leverage Ratio measure.
Finally recognising the importance of health
and safety which is a key part of our values
and how we operate, the Committee has
introduced a specific health and safety
measure relating to the reduction in RIDDORs
which will equate to 10% of the bonus.

Annual bonus

Executive Directors are required to defer the
part of the award earned (if any) in excess cf
50% of the maximum award into shares over
a two-year period. The additional two-year
holding pericd provides further alignment
with shareholders and a longer-term focus



Awards granted with three-vear performance
targets which reflect the Group's focus on
profitability, growth and cperational efficiency.
The additional two-year holding period
provides further alignment with shareholders
and a longer-term focus on creating sustained
value for the business.

tme

In FY17 we made special awards of market value options to our
sanior management tearm 1o directly align reward to our strategic
plan. This was an exceptional award, which was in place of the
LTIF, and for which we sought shareholder approval. Further
details are provided below and con page 45.

FY17 performance and annual bonus outcome

The FY17 annual bonus was subject to Adjusted EBITA
performance as regards B0% of the overall opportunity and

Net Leverage Ratio (Net Debt/Adjusted EBITDA) performance

as regards 20% of the overall cpportunity. The threshold Adjusted
EBITA and Net Leverage Ratio targets were not achieved based
on FY17 performance. Accordingly rno element of the bonus has
been earned.

The Company's first long-term incentive awards were granted
under the LTIP in April 2016 and therefore there was no vesting
during the year.

FY17 long term incentive award

The Company received shareholder approval {support in favour
was over 97%) via an Extraordinary General Meeting (EGM) on

10 August 2017 to grant an exceptional long term incentive award
to the Executive Directors (and the wider leadership tearn) outside
of the current Directors’ Remuneration policy. The awards, which
are structured as market vaiue share options, will vest subject to
the achievement of a challenging EPS performance measures
over a four year period through to the end of FY20. A one year
holding period wili apply post-vesting. The awards have been
designed 1o align the variable remuneration of the Executive
Directors (and the wider lgadership team) with strong financial
and business performance, promoting the long term success

of the Company and the creation of long term sharehclder value.
Steve Ashmore and Paul Quested were granted awards with

a face value equal to 460% and 320% of salary respectively.
Further detaits are set out on page 45.

Reward for FY18

Executive Director salaries

in line with the salary review timetable for all other employees, the
Executive Directors’ base saiaries wers reviewed in June 2017.
Paul Quested’s salary was maintained at the same level as in
FY186 in line with salaries in the wider workforce which had no
increase. Steve Ashmore was appointed as CEQ on 1 June 2017
and did nct receive a satary increase in FY17. This timetable will
be followed again in June 2018, with any changes taking effect
fram 1 July 2018, Any increase is expected to be modest and

in line with the range of salary increases awarded to other
employses in the Group.

Annual bonus

No changes are proposed to the maximum opportunity or
structure of the annual bonus although as outlined above the
performance measures have been extended. The overall bonus
opportunity will remain at 100% of saiary. The annual bonus will
be subject to cora hire rental revenue growth {30% of the overall
opportunity), Adjusted EBITDA performance (30% of the overall
oppertunity), Net Leverage Ratio (30% of the overall cpportunity)
and a reduction in RIDDORS (10% of the overail opportunity), The
Committee considers that these measures are afigned with the
key areas of focus for the senior team ovear the next 12 months.
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LTIP

It is the Committee’s intention to grant LTIP awards with a
maximum opportunity of 1256% of salary in line with our Policy.
LTIP awards will vest subject to performance over a three-year
period ending with FY20. The perfermance meastires are
currently under review. The Committee is mindful of the impact of
the refinancing on the Group’s three-year plan numbers and has
therefore decided to wait until this has been agreed before setting
the targets for the FY18 LTIP. Full details of the targets will be
provided in the FY18 Directors’ Remuneration Report. The LTIP
awards will include a two-year holding period following the endg
of the performance pericd.

Conclusion

| hope that you will agree that these proposals are appropriate to
the circumstances of the business and the challenges it has faced
in FY17 and are fully aligned to the strategy over the next three
years, and that you will suppert the resclution being proposed at
the FY18 AGM in relation to the Directors’ Remuneration Report.

Amanda Burton
Committee Chair
5 April 2018

At a glance summary:
Executive Directors’ remuneration

= No salary increases awarded in July 2017 in line with wider

7 workferce (see page 48) o
% No annual bonus to be pald in respect of FY17 (see page 45)

- Grant of exceptlonal long-term incentive award in FY17 foIIowmg'

shareholder approval at EGM (see page 45) measured over four
years W|th a further one-year holdlng penod

—) Y18 annua'. bonus award opportunity equal 10 100% 01 sataryr

subject to Core Hire rental revenue growth (30%), Adjusted
EBITDA (30%), Net Leverage Ratio (30%) and a reduction in
RIDDORs (10%) (see page 48). Any bonus earned above 50%
deferred mto Shares for 1wo  yoars.

—) Salarles for FY?B wui be con5|dered in June at the same tlme
as for the wider workforce. Any increase will be in ling with the
range of increases awarded 10 other employees

—) Maximum FY18 LTIP award opportunsty equal to 125% of

salary and subject a two-year holding period following the
performance penod (see page 48)

9 FY18 LTIP awards are Sl.lbjGCt toa t\r\;d-year holdlng penod
foliowing the performance period {s_ee page48) o
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Corporate Governance

Directors’ Remuneration Report
continued

Annual Report on Remuneration

The following section provides detail in respect of remuneration paid to Directors during the year in fine with the Remuneration Policy
approved by sharehoiders at the FY16 AGM.

Single figure table
The following tabie sets out total remuneration for each Director in respect of FY17 and FY16:

Salary and fees Benefits Annual bonus LT Pension Total remuneration
£000s £000s 20005 £000s £000s EOODs

FY17 FY16 FYi7 FY18 FY1T FY16 FY17 FY16 FY17 ) FY16 FY17 Y16

Executive Directors

John Gill 128 326 8 22 - - - - 14 33 150 381
Steve Ashmore? 210 - 12 - - - - - 18 - 240 -
Steve Trowbridge® - 68 - 10 - (16} - - - 7 - 69
Paul Quested* 260 99 24 10 - - - - 24 3 308 12
Non-Executive

Directors

Alan Peterson 150 150 - - - — - - - _ 150 150
Amanda Burton 50 50 - - - - - - - - 50 50
Douglas Robertson 50 50 - - - - - - - - 50 50
Neil Sachdev? - 28 - - - - - — - - - 28
Thomas Sweet-Escott® 40 40 - - - - - - - - 40 40
Total {Executive

and Non-Executive

Directors) 888 811 44 42 - (16) - - 56 43 988 880

1 John Gift resigried as a CEO with effect from 23 May 2017. The figures i the tabla above for FY17 tharefore reflect his remuneration earned from the start of FY17 unti! the
date of his resignation as a Director.

2 Steve Ashmore was appointed as CEQ with effect from 1 June 2017. The figures in the table above for FY17 theretare reflact his remuneration earned from this date unti
the snd of FY17.

3 Steve Trowbridge resigned as a CFO with effect from 20 Aprll 2016. The figures in the table above for FY16 thevefore reflect his remuneration eamed from the start of F¥16
until this date.

4 Paul Guested was appeinted as CFQ with effect frem 22 August 2018. Tha figures In the table above for FY16 therefore reflact is remuneration earned frem this date until
the end of FY16,

5 Neil Sachdev resigned as a Director on 20 April 2016, effactive from 15 Jurie 2016, the date on which the FY18 AGM was held. The figures in the table above reflect his
remuneration sarned from the start of the FY16 year until the 15 June 20186, his effective date of resignation as a Director.

6 Thomas Sweet-Escott's fas is paid directly to Exponent.

The ﬁgures in these Smgle fngure tabies above are derwed from the foltowmg

Salary The arnount of salary/fees recelved |n the year (up to the date of resugnanon as a Dlreotor in ‘rhe case of Dlrectors who
and fees - \eﬁ durlng the year or from the date of appomtmem for Dlrectors who Jomed durlng the year) i
Benems The taxabis value of beneﬁts recerved in the year {up to the date of resrgnation asa D(rector in the case of Dlrectors

who left during the year or from the date of appointment for Directors who joined during the year). These are principally
medical insurance, company car or car allowance and SAYE options granted during FY16. SAYE options arg vaiued
based on the difference between the market value of the sharaes at grant and the exercise price and, subject to the rule
of the schems, will ordinarily vest on 1 January 2020 and be exercisable for a period of six months.

Annué] -The annual bonus is the cash value of the bonus earned in respect Df'the year (up to the date of resagnahon asa )
bonus Director in the case of Directors who left during the year or from the date of appointment for Directors who joined
dur:ng the year) The bonus for the fu!l fmahmal year |s

Pensibn " The pension flgure represents the Company s contnbutlons to 1he deflned comnbuhon scheme and any cash payment
in lisu of pension contributions made in the year {up to the date of resignation as a Director in the case of Directors who
left during the year or from the date of appointment for Directors who joined during the year).
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Additional disclosures in respect of the single figure table
Base salary
Details of annual base salaries for Executive Directors for FY17 and FY186 are set out below.

Base salary Base salary

at at
30 December 31 December
2017 2016
£000s £000s

Executive Directors
John Gil{' - 326
Steve Ashmore? 360 -
Paul Quested 260 260

1 John Gill resigned as a Director with effect from 23 May 2017,
2 Steve Ashmore was appointed as CEC with effect from 1 June 2017,

FY17 annual bonus

Executive Directors were awarded a maximum bonus opportunity equal to 100% of base salary subject to Adjusted EBITA
performance as regards 80% of the overall opportunity and Net Leverage Ratio (Net Debt/Adjusted EBITDA) performance as regards
20% of the overalt opportunity. These performance measures aligned reward with the key areas of focus over FY17.

In the event that Executive Directors are awarded an annual bonus in excess of 50% of the maximum annual bonus opportunity for that
year, they are required to defer any annual bonus award earned in excess of 50% of the maximum award intc shares over a two-year
period. Deferred shares are not subject to any additicnal performance measures after the application of the performance measures
which determines the amount of annuat bonus award earned.

The followirg tabie sets out the bonuses earned by the Executive Directors for FY17 and how this reflects performance for the year.

Propxartion of
bonus
determined by Target Maximum Actual  Bonus eamed
Performance measure re erformance  perfo

Adjusted EBITA %  £22.0m
Net Leverage Ratic (Net Debt/Adjusted EBITDA) 20% 2.8x

FY17 long-term incentives

The Company received sharehaolder approval via an EGM on 10 August 2017 to grant an excepticnal long-term incentive award to
the Executive Directors (and the wider leadership team) outside of the current Directors’ Remuneration Policy. The awards, which
are structured as market value share options, will vest subject to the achievernent of a challenging EPS performance measure over
a four-year period ending with FY20. A one-year holding period will apply post-vesting. The awards have been designed to align the
variable remuneration of the Executive Directors (and the wider leadership team) with strong financial and business performance,
promoting the long-term success of the Company and the creation of long-term sharsholder value.

Details of the long-term incentive awards granted to Executive Directors in FY17 are set out below.

% of award

Number of Face value vestingat  Performance
et e et e e YO O Eward | shares o atgrant'? Bxerciseprice  threshold period
Steve Ashmore LTIP 2,849,708 £1,624,324 57p 25% 4 years
Steve Ashmore CSOP? 55,555 £30,000 54p 25% 4 years

460% of salary

Paul Quested LTIP 1,404,094 £800,334 570 25% 4 years
Paul Quested CSOP3 55,555 £30,000 54p 25% 4 years

320% of salary

Ths average share price over the three-month penod prior to the grant date (31 August 2017) was used to determina the face value of the LTIP award.

2 The average share price over the five dealing days prior to the grant date (31 August 2017) was used to determine the face value of the Company Share Cpticn Flan
(CSOP) award.

3  Aproportion of the awards ware granted in the form of HMRC tax-qualifying market value share options which are subject to the same performance measures as apply

1o the LTIP awards.

-

The long-term incentive awards are subject to an EPS performance measure assessed over a period of four financial years starting with
FY17 as follows:

FY20 Adjusted Vesting
e e e e ot i e+ T e . EPS percentage
Threshold oo e 11.5p 25%
Target 13p 50%
Maximum 16p 100%

Straight-line vesting in between points. Na vesting below threshold performance.

No LTIP awards vested in respect of performance in the year.

vodsy] Jbsess

SUBLLAIRIS [BIoUBUI4 BOUBLLBAOE) Byesodion

UOREULIOM| [BUOHPPY

AT RN N A SIS S AP 5



46 HSS Hire Group ple Annual Report and Financial Staterments 2017

Corporate Governance

Directors’ Remuneration Report

continued

Payments made to former Directors during the year
John Gill resigned as a Director with effect from 23 May 2017,

As announced by the Company on 22 May 2017, it was agreed that John Gill would receive a payment in lieu of notice of £381,849

in accordance with his service agreement and £45,000 by way of compensation for the termination of his service agreement, The
payment was made in instalments and would be reduced in the event that he commenced another role prior to the expiry of his notice
period. The reduction is up to 50% of the basic salary or fee earned under the alternative role. John Gilk subsequently advised the
Company that he had commenced another role and this has reduced the potential amount payable by £4,811. Total payments under

this arrangement made to John Gitt up to 30 December 2017 were £285,122.

Jotin Gil! did not receive any annual bonug payment in regpect of FY16 and will not receive any annual bonus payment it respect of
FY17. His SAYE options have lapsed in fult, but his FY16 LTIP awards did not and wilt vest if the performance conditions are satisfied,

pro-rata for his periad of service.

The Company made a payment of £2,640 in respect of John Gill's legal fees relating to his resignation as a Director.

Directors’ share interests

The Committes has adopted a sharsholding guideline for Executive Directors in accardance with which the Chief Executive Officer

is required to build up and maintain a shareholding in the Company at least equivalent in vaiue to 200% of annual salary, and other
Executive Directors are required to bulld up and maintain a shareholding in the Company squivalent in value to 125% of annual salary.
The Chief Executive Officer held no shares in the Company and has until 31 May 2022 to build his shareholding to 125% of his annual
salary {and 200% of his annual salary as soon as possible following 31 May 2022). Since joining the Group in August 2018 the Chief
Financiat Officer has built his shareholding in the Company from 0% 1o 15% of annual salary and under the guidelines has until

21 August 2021 to build his shareholding to 125% of his annual salary.

The interests of the Directors and their connected persons in the Company’s crdinary shares as at 30 December 2017 (or, if earlier, the
date on which the Director resigned from the Board) were as foliows:

Executive Directors
John Gill (resigned 23 May 2017)

Steve Ashmore

Paui Qluested

Non-Executive Directors
Alan Peterson

Amanda Burton

Dougias Robertson

Type
Shares
20186 LTIP {nil-cost share options)®
2016 CSOP options?®
2016 SAYE gptions*®
Shares

2017 LTI (market value share options)®
2017 CSOP options®

Shares

2018 LTIRP {nil-cost share options)?
2016 SAYE options®

2017 LTIP (market value share options)®
2017 CSOP options®

Shares
Shares
Shares

Qwned
outright

1,491,189

937,217
35,714
9,523

Unvested and
subject to
pertormance

388,095
35,714

2,849,708
56,655

263,376

1,404,094
56,566

Unvested and
not subject to
pertormance

conditions

}

15,597

Total as at
30 December
2017+

1,491,189

2,849,708
&5,555
47,000

263,376
15,597

1,404,094

55,566

937,217
35,714
9,523

TN WK =

Or, if aarlier, the date of resignation from the Board, which applies to Jehn Gill.

FY16 LTIP awards will vest subject to performance over a three-year periad ending with FY18.
FY16 CSOP opticns granted at an exercise price of 84p per share and will vast subject to performancs over a three-year period ending with FY18.
FY18 SAYE options grantad at an exercise price of 57.7p per share.
FY17 LTIP awards granted at an exercise price of 57p will vest subject to performance over a four-year perfod ending with FY20.
FY17 CSOP options granted at an exercise price of 54p per share will vest subject to performance ovar a fout-year period ending with FY20,
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As at 5 Aprit 2018, the Company has not been advised of any changes to the interests of the Directors and their connected persons as
set out in this table.

Thomas Sweet-Escatt hoids no direct interest in the Company’s ordinary shares. However, he has an indirect interest in the Company's
ordinary shares as a result of his interest in Exponent.

The disclosures on Directors’ remuneration set out on pages 44 to 47 above have been audited as required by the Companies Act 2006.

Performance graph and historical Chief Executive Officer remuneration outcomes

The graph below shows the total sharehalder return (TSR} performance for the Company’s shares in comparison with the FTSE
SmallCap Index for the period from Admission to 30 December 2017. The Company is a constituent of this Index and as such it has
been selected as an appropriate comparator group. For the purposes of the graph, TSR has been calculated as the percentage
change during the period in the market price of the shares, assuming that dividends are reinvested. The graph shows the value,

by 20 December 2017, of £100 invested in the Group over the period compared with £100 invested in the FTSE SmallCap Index.
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The table below shows details of the total remuneration, annual
bonus ang LTIP vesting (as a percentags of the maximum
oppoeriunity) for the Chief Executive Officer for FY15 to Fy17:

Annual bonus LTIP

Total asa % of asa%of

remuneration maximum raximum
CEO 7 £000s opportunity cppertunity®
FY15/Chris Davies? 297 - N/A
FY15/John Gill 20 7.1% N/A
FY16/John Gil® 381 - N/A
FY17/John GilP® 150 - N/A
FY17/Stephen Ashmore? 240 - N/A

i No LTIP vested in respect of performance in FY18 or F¥17,

2 The table shows the remuneration for Chris Davies in the pericd from the start
of FY15 until he resigned as a Director with effect from 25 September 2015,

3 The tabls shows the remuneration for John Gill in the penod from the date of
s appeintment as CEQ with effect from 28 September 2015 until he resigned
as a Director with effect from 23 May 2017,

4 The table shows the remuneration for Steve Ashmore in the period from the date
ot his appointment as CEO with effect from 1 June 2017 untit the end of FY17.

CEO pay increase in relation to all empioyees

The table below sets out, in relation to salary, taxable benefits and
annual bonus, the percentage change in pay for the CEO and the
average percentage change for the wider workforce, For these
purposes, the wider workforce inciudes all Group employees who
were continuously employed by the Group during FY17 and FY16
but excludes Executive and Non-Executive Directors. Whilst the
table below shows a 8.1% increase in CEQ pay, this reflects the
diffsrential in salary between the new and outgoing CEO. Steve
Ashmors has not received a pay rise since his appointment.

Wider
CEO ....... . - CEO workforce
Salary’ “aen T T NE
Benefits'? -9.1% Nil
Annual bonus N/A2 /A

1 For the purposes of the above table, salary and benefits for FY17 is based on a
combination of the salary and benefits received by Steve Ashmore and Jahn Gitl
in FY17.

2 The wider workforce recsived no pay nses during the year except for where team
members wera promoted, took on additional responsibilities or received a riga in
line with National Minimum Wage lagislation.

3 Taxable value of benefits raceived in the year comprising medical insurance and
company car or car allowance.

4 No annual bonuses were awarded in respect of FY16 or FY17.

Spend on pay and distributions to shareholders

The following table sets out the overall expenditure on pay {as

a whole across the crganisation} and the amount of distributions
to shareholders in the form of dividends and share buybacks in
respect of FY16 and FY17. No dividend was paid during FY17
as the Board is focused on reducing net debt and, after careful
consideration of significant cash investments made during 2016
and the Strategic Review and associated cost reductions
announced in December 2017, believes it is in the best interests
of the shareholders to not pay dividends at the present time.

Year ended Year ended
30 December 31 December Percentage
ED()Os o ) 2017 2018 change
Dividends - 1,764 N/A
Overall expenditure
on pay 89,712 02,588 -3.1%

implementation of Directors’' Remuneration Policy
for FY18

information on how the Company intends to implement the
Directors' Remuneration Policy for FY18 is sef out below.,

Salary/fees and benefits

In line with the salary review timetable for all other employees, the
Executive Diractors’ base salaries will be reviewed during June 2018,
with any changes taking effect from 1 July 2018. Non-Executive
Directors’ fees will be reviewed during the year. Any increase to

any Executive Director’s salary or Non-Executive Director’s fee is
expected to be modest and will be in line with the range of salary
increases awarded to other employees in the Group.

Annual bonus

The maximum annual bonus opportunity for FY18 will remain

at 100% of salary. The bonus will be subject to stretching

performance measures based on core hire rental revenue growth

{30% of the overall opportunity), Adjusted EBITDA performance

(30% of the overall cpportunity}, Net Leverage Ratio (30% of the

overall opportunity) and a reduction in RIDDORs (10% of the ,
overall apportunity).

The Committee considers that the performance targets should
remain confidential to the Gompany as they give our competitors
an insight into our plans and expectations. However, sach of the
targets (which have been set by reference to the FY18 budget
and reguire outperformance of the budgest for the maximum
bonus to be earmned]) will be fully disclosed in the FY18 Directors’
Remuneration Report on the same basis as the FY17 disclosure
set out on page 45.

LTIP

It is the Committes's intention to grant FY18 LTIP awards on the
same basis as the FY16 LTIP awards were made. The maximum
opportunity wilt be 125% of salary which is set out in the
Directors’ Remunaration Policy. The performance measures are
currently under review. The Committee is mindful of the impact of
the refinancing on the Group’s three-year pian numbers and has
therefore decided to wait until this has been agreed before setting
the targets for the 2018 LTIP. Full details of the targets will be
provided in the 2018 Directors’ Remuneration Report. The LTIP
awards will include a two-year holding period following the end
of the performance period.

Statement of voting at last AGM and EGM

The following table sets out actual voting in respect of the
raesolutions to approve the Remuneration Policy and Annual
Report on Remuneration at the Company's AGM:

% of Votes % of Votes
Resolufion — ~ Valesfor  wote  sgainst  wte withheld
Remuneration
Policy
(FY16 AGM) 113,407,717 9996 41,198 0.04 476
Annual Repart
on Remuneration
(FY17 AGM) 135,332,906 99.86 195585 0.14 2,000




The following table sets out actual voting in respect of the
resolution to grant an exceptional long-term incentive award
to the Executive Directors outside of the current Directors'
Remuneration Policy at the EGM:

Votes % of Votes % of Votes
Reso utlon for vote against vote withheld
FY17 exceptlonal
long-term
incentive award 134,418,334 97.97 2,782,111 203 3,190

Service contracts

Executive Directors' service contracts are on a roliing basis and
may be terminated on 12 months' notice by the Company or the
Executive. Service contracts for new Executive Directors will
generally be limited to 12 months' notice by the Company.

As noted above, Steve Ashmore joined the Company as CEO
on 1 June 2017, His service contract is in line with the provisions
on service contracts in the Directors’ Remuneration Policy.

All Non-Executive Directors have initial fixed-term agreements
with the Company of no more than three years.

Details of the Directors' service contracts and notice periods are
set out below:

Uinexpired term of

Name Commencement Notlce penod serwce comracr
SAshmore  1June2017 12 months' N/AT
P Quested 22 August 2016 12 months! N/AT
A Peterson 9 February 2015 N/AZ 3.25 years®
A Burton 9 January 2015 N/A2 3.25 years®
D Robertson 9 January 2015 N/A? 3.25 years?
T Sweet-Escott 9 January 2015 N/AS 3.25 years®

1 Executive Directors’ service contracts are on a rolling basis and have no defined
expiry date.

2 Initial letter of appointment expired on 9 January 2018. A new ietter of
appointment was executed on 29 March 2018 for a further three-year term,
subject to re-election at the AGM.

3 Undar the Relationship Agreement, Exponent is abls to appoint a Non-Executive
Director to the Board for so long as the Exponent Shareholders are entitled to
exercise or to control the exercise of 10% or more of the votes able to be cast
on alf or substantially all matters at general meetings of the Company.

Mr Sweet-Escott is Exponent's current appointee. His contract commenced
on 9 February 20156 and expired an 9 February 2018. A new three-year latter
of appointment was executed on 29 March 2018 subject to re-clection at the
AGM or, if earlier, at the point that the Exponent Sharsholders are entitled to
axercise or to control the exercise of less than 10% of the votes able 10 be cast.

4 Calculated from 30 December 2017 to the expiry date of each letter

of appointment.
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Consideration by the Directors of matters relating

to Directors’ remuneration

The Remuneration Committee is composed of the Company's
Independent Non-Executive Directors, Amanda Burton (Chair)
and Doug Robertson.

The Remuneration Committee meets as often as is deemed
necessary, but in any event at least three times a year, The
Committee’s key responsibilities include:

- reviewing the appropriateness of the Group’s
Remuneraﬂon Pohcy

—) con3|dermg aII elements of |nd|wdual remuneratlon for
the executive management team, including base salary,
bonuses and performance-related pay, discretionary
payrments, pension contributions, benefits in kind and
share options or thelr equrvalents

-) forrnulatmg performance criteria in re!ahon to perforrnance-
related pay;

9 reviewing terms and condmons and ensurtng clawback or
other prowsmns are |n place S0 as not to reward fallure

9 admrmstermg Company share schemes as requnred and
——) ensurlng compllance W|th Code and dlsclosure requ:rements

Advisers to the Remuneration Committee

During FY17, the Committee recsived independent advice from
Deloitte LLP in relation to the Committee’s consideration ot
matters relating to Directors’ remuneration. Deloitte’s fees for this
advice during the year were £22,020 {(FY16: £40,860), charged
on a time and disbursements basis or fixed fee depending on
the nature of the project. Deloitte also provided advice to the
Company during the year in relation to share plans. Deloitte is a
founder member of the Remuneration Consultants Group and as
such voluntarily operates under its Code of Conduct in relation o
axecutive remuneration in the UK. The Remuneration Committee is
satisfied that all advice received was objective and independent.

Approval
This Report was approved by the Board on 5 April 2018 and
signed on its behalf by:

Amanda Burton
Chair of the Remuneration Committee
5 April 2018

uodey oiberens

SIUBLIBIBIG [EDUBUIY BOLRLIBNO) ajeuodlion)

UOELLLIOM [BUOIIPRY

e ¥ -~ ! [ s



50 HSS Hire Group plc Annual Report and Financial Statements 2017
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Other Statutory

Disclosures

The tabie beiow details where certain other information, which
forms part of the Directors’ report, can be found within this

Annual Report:

rnformatron

D wdends

Darectors powers
Dlrectors !hdemhmes

Statemem on dlsciosure of

HVMPage 50

Location within

Annual Heport

Chalrman S Statement

page §)

Pa 50

Corporate Gove rnanoe

information to the auditor (page 53)

Greenhouse gas emissions Corporate
Responsibility
(page 24)

Polmcal dona‘uons and expendlture Page 50

Fi ci |nst ments Page 50

Evems and developments Jmpactmg

the Company Page 50

Bra hes outsrde the UK Page 50

Acqursmon of own shares Page 50

Equallty and dwersny Page 50

Employee lnvolvement Page 51

Impact of ch ange of controi/

takec)ver brd Page 51

Dlrectors mterests Dlrectors
Remuneration Report

_lpage 46)

ote 20tothe
Financial Statements
................. paged6) ..

Restnctions on share transfers
Sign mcant shareho!ders

Shere capital

 Relations with
,,,,, . Shareholders (page 36)

Shares wnh speaal nghts wrth o

reg_a_rd_t_o_ con_1r0| of the Company Page 51
Shares related to employee share

schemersr Page 51
Votlng nghts and restrlctlons F’age 51
Agreements between holders of

secuntres Page 52
Appountmem and rep!acernent of

Dlrectors Page 52
Arnendrnents to the Company s

Articles of Assaciation Page 52

Directors’ powers

At the AGM to be held on 21 June 2018, sharehaiders will be
asked to renew the Directors’ power to allot shares, grant rights
1o subscribe for or convert any sscurity into shares or buy back
shares in the Company and to renew the disapplication of
pre-emption rights.

Directors’ indemnities

In addition to the indemnity provisions in their Articles of
Association, the Cormpany and other Group companies have
entered into a direct indemnity agreement with sach of the
Directors and certain other officers or senior employees of the

Group, These indemnities constitute qualifying indemnities for
the purposes of the Companies Act 20086 (the Act) and remain in
force at the date of approval of this Report without any payment
having been made under them. The Company also maintains
Directors’ and officers’ liability insurance which gives appropriate
cover for legal action brought against its Directors.

Political donations and expenditure

At the AGM held on 14 June 2017, the Company and its
subsidiaries werg authorised to make certain political donations or
incur pelitical expenditure. No political expenditure was made by
the Company or its subsidiaries during the FY17 year (FY16. £nil).

Financial instruments

information on the Group’s financial risk management objectives
and policies and the exposure of the Group to market risk, cradit
risk, liquidity risk and cash flow risk is provided in note 22 of the
Financial Statements on pages 99 and 100.

Events and developments impacting the Company

The likely future developments of the Company and Group are
referred to in the Chigt Executive Officer's Review on page 9
in the Strategic Report.

Branches outside the UK
The Company has no branches outside the UK and Ireland, as
defined in Saction 1046(3} of the Act.

Acquisition of own shares

At the AGM held on 14 June 2017, the Company was authorised
to make market purchases of up to 15,476,130 or 10% of the
cufrrent ordinary shares i1 issue. The Company has made no
purchases of its own crdinary shares pursuant to this authority.
This autherity expires at the close of the 2018 AGM of the
Company on 21 June 2018. A special resolution will be proposed
at this year's AGM to authorise the Company to make market
purchases of up to 17,020,714 (10% of issued share capital of
170,207,142) ordinary shares.

Equality and diversity

The Group is committed to developing all colleagues and
aencourages everyone to progress and develop. All training is
based on each colleague's individual development needs and
the requirements of the role, Provisions are made to ensure that
all part-time colleagues have equal opportunities to undertake
development and fraining.

The Group's policy is to recruit and promote based on an
individual's skills, qualfications, experience and ability to

do the jolb. No applicant, whether internal or external, will be
discriminated against in respect of age, sex, sexual orieniation,
disability, race, religion, or beliefs, or on any other criteria
unreiated to an individual's ability to perform in the role.

if an employee becomes disabled during employment, the Group
makes every effort 10 enable them to continue in employment by
making reasconable adjustments in the workplace and providing
retraining for alternative work where necessary.

The Group is committed 1o ensuring that the abilities of all of its
colleagues are recognised and valued at all levels of the
organisation through:

— focusing on what people can do rather than an what
they cannot;

9 challengrng stereotypes about people wnh dlsabrlmes ancl

-> makihg approptiate adjustments in the workplace ‘to supporf ‘
colleagues with disabilities to achieve their full career potential,



The Group will not include any discriminatory or subjective criteria
in job descriptions or job advertisements. Al recruitrment will be
made solely on the basis of competence and skili. Where an
applicant has a disability (as defined by the Disability Discrimination
Act 1995) consideration will be given as tc whether any adjustments
can be made to accommodate individual reguirements.

The Group is committed to ensuring that the diversity of the
communities served is reflected at ail levels within the workforce
and that an understanding and awareness of diversity is
promoted in all training and developrment material.

Performance reviews are completed with every colleague and
focus on measuring job performance and each individual's
training requirements.

Employee involvement

The Company uses a combination of ways to communicate with
employees including, but not limited to: the intranet (HSS World)
that is regularly updated and availabie on PCs at all locations;

its irmernal newsfetter (HIYAI}, that reports on recent news,
developments, initiatives and events in the business which is
circulated a minimum of four times annually and delivered to

all Iocations; and a weekly email 'bulletin’ supplementing this
with operational and functional information, that is required o be
printed and displayed on all notice boards where colleagues may
not have immediate access t¢ email, Meetings and conference
calls alsc form a regutar communication channel across the
Group. The method of information disseminaticn adopted
depends on the information being made available to employees
and the associated confidentiality requirements. The Company
also sends correspondence of high importance by mail to
employees' home addresses.

Employees are consuited formally on issues where their interests
are affected via consultation processes led by managsment and
are asked to give feedback. Colleagues are also invited to raise
issues via the online communications forum *Yammer’ and
receive feedback,

Focus groups have also been carried out at key Group locations,
to discuss employee engagement and gain more detailed
feedback frorn empioyees.

The Company’s financial results and performance are regularly
communicated via a number of mechanisms, for example the
update and provision of information to senior colleagues on

the same day that announcements are made to investors at
the half-year and full-year and supplements in the Company
newsletter HIYAI At the senior colleague conference calls, there
is an opportunity to ask guestions of the executive. Blogs and
announcements ares also made Company-wide from our CEQ
via email providing the top-level results and facters contributing
to our performance.

Impact of change of control/takeover bid

There are no agreements beiween the Company and fts
Directors or employees providing for compensation for loss of
office or employment (whether through resignation, purported
redundancy or ctherwise) that ocours because of a change of
control/takeover bid.
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A number of the Group's funding agreements contain change
of control provisions. These are summarised in the table below:

Funding agreement

Summary of change of control provision
Senior secured notes

Following a change of control the
Group would be required to offer to
repurchase all outstanding Notes
at a purchase price in cash equal
10 101% of the principal amount
redeemed on the date of purchase
plus accrued and unpaid interest,
if any, to the date of purchase.
Following a change of controt all
outstanding amounts, together
with accrued interest, would
become immediatety due

and payable.

Finance leases (from various Certain of the Group’s finance
finance providers} leases have conditions where a
change of control could lead to
early repayment.

Revolving Credit Faciity

Restrictions on share transfers

Certificated shares

The Board may, in its absolute discretion, refuse to register the
transfer of a certificated share which is not a fully paid share,
provided that the refusal does not prevent dealings in shares in
the Company from taking place on an open and proper basis.
The Board may also refuse to register the transfer of a certificated
share unless the instrument of transfer is (i} lodged, duly stamped
{if stampable), at the office or at another place appointed by the
Board accompanied by the certificate for the share to which it
relates and such other evidence as the Board may reasonably
require to show the right of the transferor to make the transfer;

(i) is in respect of one class of share only; and {fii) is in favour of
not more than four transferees.

Uncertificated shares

Subject to the provisions of the Uncertificated Securities
Regulations 2001, the Board may permit the holding of shares
in any class of shares in uncertificated form and the transfer of
title to shares in that class by means of a refevant system and
may determine that any class of shares shall ceaseto be a
participating security.

Shares with special rights with regard

to control of the Company

There are no sharas in issue with spacial rights with regard
to control of the Company.

Shares related to employee share schemes

No shares have been issued in relation to employee share
schemes, afthough options have been issued under the
Sharesave scheme (as detailed earlier).

Voting righis and restrictions

Subject to the rights or restrictions set cut below or detailed in the
Notice of AGM, on a show of hands evary member whe is present
in persen shall have one vote and on a poll every member present
in persen or by proxy shall have one vote for every share of which
he is the holder.

No member shall be entitled to vote at any general meeting in
respect of a share unless all monies presently payable by him
in respect of that share have been paid.
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If at any time the Board is satisfied that any member, or any
other person appearing to be interested in shares held by such
member, has been duly served with a notice under Section 793
of the Act and is in defauit for the prescribed period in supplying
to the Company the information thereby required, or, in purported
compliance with such a notice, has made a statement which is
false or inadequate in a material respect, then the Board may,

in its absolute discretion at any time thereafter by notice to such
member, direct that, in respect of the shares in relation to which
the default occurred, the member shall not be entitied to attend
or vote either personally or by proxy at a general meeting or

at a separate meeting of the holders of that class of shares

or on a poll.

The Notice of AGM specifies deadlines for exercising voting rights
and appointing a proxy or proxies te voie in relation o resolutions
10 be passed at the AGM. All proxy votes are counted and the
numbers for, against or withheld in relation to each resclution are
announced at the AGM and published on the Company's website
after the meeting.

Under the Financial Conduct Authority (FCA) rules, the election
or re-election by the sharehoiders of an independent Non-
Executive Director must be approved by an ordinary resolution
af the shareholders and separately approved by those
shareholders who are not controlling shareholders (the
independent shareholders).

Ag a result, by virtue of Exponent’s 50.3% sharehoiding in the
Company, any votes by Exponent on any resolutions relating
10 the election or re-election of Independent Non-Executive
Director(s) witi not be counted for the purposes of approving
those resolutions.

Agreetnents between holders of securities

The Company is nat aware of any agreements between holders
of securities that may result in restrictions on the transfer of
securities ar on vating rights.

Appointment and replacement of Directors

Unless otherwise determined by ordinary ragclution, the number
of Directors shall be not less than two but shall not be subject to
any maximum in number. Directors may be appointed by ordinary
resclution of shareholders or by the Board.

Under the Reiationship Agreement, Exponent is able 1o appoint a
Non-Executive Director to the Board for sa long as the Expanent
Sharsholders are entitled to exercise or to control the exercise of
10% or mare of the votes abite to be cast on all or substantially alf
matters at general mestings of the Company. Mr Sweet-Escott

is the current appointee. In addition, in accordance with the
Relationship Agreement, Exponent has appointed an cbserver
tc attend Board meetings.

At every AGM all Directors at the date of the Notice of AGM
shall retire from aoffice and resolutions for the re-appointment of
those Directors who wish to be re-appointed shall be put to the
meeting. All appointments are subject to the Company’s Articles
of Association and the annual re-election by shareholders.

The Company may remove any Director from office, and appoint
another person in place of a Director removed from office, both by
ordinary resolution.

A person ceases to be a Director as soon as:

-> he/she ceases to be a Director by virtue of any provision
of the Act or is prohibited from being a Director by law;

- he/she is subject to a bankruptcy order or compounds
wrth hfs/her cred(tors general ly,

' > he/she becomes physmally or mentally |noapable of actlng as
a D|rector and may remain so for more than three months

- 9 he/she reSJgns or renres

> he/she is absen‘t for more 'than six consecutlve months
without permission of the Board from meetings of the Board
held during that pericd and the Board resolves that his/her
oﬁlce be vacated or

7 —) he/she receives notlce S|gned by not Iess than three-
quarters of the other Directors stating that that person
should cease to be a Director.

Amendments to the Company’s Articles of Association
The Company’s Articles of Assaciation may only be amended
by the passing of a special resolution at a general meeting

of shareholders.

Daniel Joll
Company Secretary
5 April 2018

Disclosures required by Listing Rule 9.8

Listing Rule 9.8 requiras that certain information is disclosed
within the Annual Report. The table below sets out the required
information and its logation within this document, where
applicable.

Llsﬂng Ruie [m’ormauon LOCa(IOﬂ
LR 9. 8 4(H)( ) Long ierm mcermve F{emunera‘non
schemes Directors’ Report
] ] o (pages 42 to 49)
I.Fl 9 8 4( )( 4} Agreement with Page 52 (see below)
controlling
shareholders

No further LR 9.8 4 disciosures are required.

As required by LR 9.2.2AR (2)(a) the Company has entered into a
Retlationship Agreement with Exponent (see page 36 for further
details on this agreement). The Board of Directors confirms that:

= the Company has complied with the independence
prowswns |nckuded |n thlS Relaﬂonsmp Agreement

é so far as the Company is aware, Exponem and its
associates have complied with the independence provisions
included within the Relationship Agreement; and

- so faras the Company is aware, Exponent has complied
with the procuramsnt obligation included within the
elahonshlp Agreement

Steve Ashmare
Director
5 April 2018
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Directors’ Responsibility

Statement

The Directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report
and the Financial Statements in accordance with applicabie law
and reguiations.

Company law requires the Directors 1o prepare Financial
Statements for each financial year. Under that iaw the Directors
are required to prepare the Group Financial Statements in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
(IFRSs) as adopted by the EU and Article 4 of the International
Accounting Standards {|IAS) Regulation and have elected to
prepare the Company Financial Statements in accordance

with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice
(United Kingdom Accounting standards and applicable law).
Under company law the Directcrs must not approve the Financial
Statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and Company and
of the profit or less for the Group for that perigd.

In preparing the Financial Statements, the Directors are
required to:

-> select suitable accounting poiicies and then apply
them consistently;

— make judgements and accounting estimates that are
reasonable and prudent;

- state whether IFRSs as adopted by the EU have been followed,

subject to any material departures disclosed and explained in
the Financial Staterments;

= prepare the Financial Statemehts Von' the gbing concérn

basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the Group
__or parent Company will continue in business; and

é prepare a Directors’ Report, a Strategic Report andDwectors

Remuneration Report which comply with the requirements of
the Companies Act 2006.

The Directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting
records that are sufficient to show and expiain the Company’s
transactions and disclose with reascnable accuracy at any time
the financial positicn of the Company and enable them to ensure
that the Financial Statements comply with the Companies Act
2006 and, as regards the Group Financial Statements, Article 4
of the IAS Regulation. They are also responsible for safeguarding
the assets of the Company and hence for taking reascnabie steps
for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities,

The Directars are responsible for ensuring the Annual Report
and the Financial Staterments are made available on a website.
Financial Statements are published on the Company’s website in
accordance with legislation in the UK governing the preparation
and dissemination of Financial Statements, which may vary from
legislation in other jurisdictions. The maintenance and integrity of
the Company’s website is the responsibiiity of the Directors. The
Directors’ responsibility also extends to the ongoing integrity of
the Financial Statements contained therein.

Directors’ responsibilities pursuant to

Disclosure and Transparency Rule around

Periodic Financial Reporting {DTR4)

Each of the Directors, whose names and functions are detailed
on pages 30 and 31, confirms that to the best of his or her
knowiedge:

= the Group Financial Statements have been prepared in
accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European Union
and Article 4 of the IAS Regulation and give a true and fair

view of the assets, liabilities, financial position and profit

nd loss of the Group;

= tha Annual Report includes a fair review of the development
and performance of the business and the financial position
of the Group and the parent Company, together with a
description or the principal risks and uncertainties that

they face.

This Responsibility Statement was approved by the Board
of Directors on 5 Aprit 2018 and is signed on its behalf by:

Steve Ashmore
Director
5 Aprii 2018

eport on pages 26 to 53 was approved by the
Irs on 5 April 2018 and is signed on its behalf by:

Steve Ashmore
Director
5 April 2018
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Financial Statements

Independent Auditor’s Report to
the members of HSS Hire Group plc

Opinion

We have audited the financial staternents of HSS Hire Group plc (the 'parent company’} and its subsidiaries {the 'group’) for the year
ended 30 December 2017 which comprise the Consolidated income statement, the Consoclidated statement of comprehensive income,
the Consolidated and Company statement of financial position, the Conselidated and Company statement of changes in eguity, the
Consolidated statement of cash flows, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.
The financial reperting framework that has beer applied in the preparation of the Group Financial Statements is applicable law and
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs} as adopted by the European Union. The financial reporting framework that has
been applied in the preparation of the parent company financial statements is applicable law and UK Accounting Standards including
Financial Reporting Standard 101 “Reduced Disclosure Framework” (*UK Generally Accepted Accounting Practice”).

In cur opinion the financial statements:

—> give a true and fair view of the state of the group’s and of the parent company's affairs as at 30 December 2017 and of the group’s
Ioss for the yeer then ended

9 the parent oompany fmanmal statements have been prOperly prepared in accordance wath UK Generally Accepted Accountlng
Practlce and

9 the ﬁnencnal statements heve been prepared n accordance wrth the requnrememe of the Companres Act 2006 and as regerds the
group financiat statements, Article 4 of the IAS Regulation.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK} (1SAs {UK}) and applicable law. Qur responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor's responsibifities for the audit of the financial statements section of our
report. We are independent of the parent company and the group in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our
audit of the financiai statements in the UK, including the FRC's Ethical Standard as applied to listed public interest entities, and we have
fuifilled our cther sthical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have octained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion,

Use of our report

This report is made solely to the parent company’s members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies
Act 2008. Cur audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the parent company’s members those matters we are
required to state to them in an auditor's report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or
assume responsibility 1o anyone other than the parent company and the parent company’s mermbers as a body, for our audit work,
for this report, or for the cpinions we have formed.

Conclusions relating to principal risks, going concern and viability staterment
We have nothing to report in respect of the following information in the annual report, in relation 1o which the ISAs (UK) require us to
report 10 you whether we have anything material to add or draw attention 1o:

— the disclosures in the annua! report set cut on pages 14 to 17 that describe the principal risks and explain how they are being
managed or mltugated

- the diractors’ confi rmatron set out on page 14 in the annua! report that they have camed out a robust assessment of the pr|n0|pa| -
I’ISKS facmg the  group, mcludlng those that would threaten |ts busmess model future per‘!ormance solvency or ilquldtty,

—) the directors' staternent set out on page 35 in tne financial statements about whether the directors considered it appropnate o
adopt the going concern basis of accounting in preparing the financial statements and the directors’ identification of any material
uncertainties to the group and the parent company’s ability to continue 1o do so over a pericd of at least twelve months from the
date of approval of the fmanctal statements,

% the dlrectors explanatcon set 0ut on page 35 !n the annua\ report as to how they ave assessed the prospects of the group, over
what period they have done so and why they consider that period to be appropriate, and their statement as to whether they have a
reasonable expectation that the group will be able to oontmue in operation and meet its liabiiities as they fall due over the period of

] thelr assessment, mcludtng any reiated dlse(osures dra

att ntton to any necessary quanfrcetlorls or assumptrons

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the financiai statements
of the current periad and include the most significant assessed risks of material misstatement (whether ar not due to fraud) that we
identified. These matters included those which had the greatest effect on: the overall audit strategy, the allocation of resources in the
audit; and directing the efforts of the engagament team. These matters were addressed in the context of cur audit of the financial
statements as a whaie, and in forming our opinion therecon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
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Matter

Existence and valuatlon of hlre stock
Hire stock represents over 1 million items
which have a high frequency of movement

in individual assets through asset purchases,
hires, disposals and transfers around the
branch network. As such there is inherent
difficulty in maintaining accurate fixed asset
registers. Judgement is required in ensuring
that depreciaticn charges are accurately
calculated, having regard to economic useful
lives and residual values, together with the
impact of renovation work undertaken on
specific classes of assets.

Refer to page 38 (Audit Committes Report},
pages 68 and 69 {accounting policy) and
page 90 (financial disclosures).

Carrying value of goodwi
and other intangible assets

Management performs an annual impairment
review of goodwill, which also covers the
carrying value of other intangible assets anc
property plant and equipment. The annual
impairmaent review relies on significant
estimation and judgement in selection of the
key inputs which can have a significant impact
of the caiculated net present value for each
Cash Generating Unit (CGU).

There is a risk that the estimates and
judgements used in the impairment review
for each CGU, which inciude areas such
as forecast cash flows, discount rates, and
growth rates are inappropriate and that an
impairment charge may be required,

Refer to page 38 (Audit Committee Repor?),
pages 69 and 70 (accounting policy) and

pages 88 and 89 {financial disclosures). 7 N o

Our respcnse

Our audit work in respect of this area |ncluded ‘the identification and testmg of the
operating effectiveness of key controls in respect of the existence and value of hire
stock, including the authorisation of additions, the use of unique asset identification
numbers, and the reconciliation of the fixed asset registers to the accounting records.

We attended a sample of the hire stock asset counts to test the effectiveness of
controls and performed test counts ourselves in arder to ensure the accuracy of the
counting performed, and therefore the existence of assets. We also tested that the
records from the counts had been used to update both the fixed asset register and
the accounting ledgers.

We selected a sample of assets acquired in the year and agreed the amounts recorded
on the fixed asset registers to invoices. -

Using data analytical and reperformance techniques we recalculated the depreciation,
additions and disposals in the fixed asset registers for the current year, and reconciled
this to the charge included in the accounting ledgers. We reviewed for the principal
asset classes the useful aconomic lives and residual values applied by management
by reference to historic data on disposal values and the achieved lives of assets.

We evaluated the capitalisation of the renovation work undertaken and tested for a
sample of the assets that their useful lives had been extended by reference to their
continuing hire.

We evaluated the adeguacy of the Group's disclosures of the judgements and
tlllsed m assessmg the valuanon

"Our audi procedures included detailed testmg of the Directors |mpa|rment testlng '

model for each CGU performed in the year. For each of the key inputs o the
impairment model we reviewed managements’ assumgptions by reference to Board
approved budgets, historical trends, and reviewed the sensitivity analysis performed.
We challenged management on their forecasts for revenue, costs and EBITDA in the
impairment model particutarly in light of the recent trading performance and
operational model changes. In addition, we performed our own additional sensitivity
analysis in respect of the key assumptions which included assessing by how much
each assumption would need to change for an impairment to arise. We utilised our
own valuation speciaiists, particularly around the appropriateness of the discount
rates used by the directors comparing this against the cost of capital for the Group
and other comparable companies in the industry.

We evaluated the adequacy of the Group's disclosures in respect of the impairment
testing, the inputs used and the sensitivity of the outcomes of the assessment to
changes in key assumptions to validate that these adequately reflected the inherent
risks in the vaiuations.
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Independent Auditor’s Report to the members
of HSS Hire Group plc continued

Matter

Revenue recognition

There is a risk that revenue is incorrectly
calculated or recorded in the wrong period.

Revenue is accrued in the financial statements
for hire equipment out on hire over the year
end. There is a risk that accrued revenue may
be incorrectly calculated.

There is aiso a risk that rebates payable to
customers may be omitted or incorrectly
calcutated, and that credit note provisions
may be incorrectly calculated.

In view of the pctential for error or for
management averride of controls we consider
this to be an area in which there is a significant
risk of material misstatement in the financial
statements.

Refer to page 38 (Audit Committee Report),
pages 70, 73 and 74 (accounting policies)
and page 91 (financial disclosures).

The group has a significant number of
property related provisions relating to the
ongoing lease obligations of properties that
the group no longer utilises in the business.
The completenass and accuracy of the
provisions involve management judgement
and estimates in assessing the likelihood of
mitigating future lease costs as a result of
break clauses or sub-lstling of the properties
as well as other unavoidable costs and the
appropriateness of discount rate used.

Refer to page 38 (Audit Committee Report),
page 73 (accounting policy) and page 94
(financial disclosures}).

Exceptional items

The group has classified a number of
expenses as exceptional during the year,
including the expected costs arising from the
Network Recanfiguration, the cost reduction
programme, onerous leases on non-trading
stores and impairments of property, plant
and equipment arising as a consequence,
losses on sales of businesses, preparatory
refinancing costs, Senior Management
changes and costs of the strategic review.
The identification and allocation of costs
and income tc exceptional itams involves
management estimation and judgement.

Refer to page 38 (Audit Committee Report),
page 74 (accournting paolicy) and pages 78
to 81 (financial disclosures).

operating effectiveness of key controls over revenue recognition. Jn respect of the front
of house system we performed a reconciliation of revenue between that systern and
the accounting records.

We obtained the calculations of accrued revenue at the year end and the underlying
data, and we recalculated a sample included in accrued revenue. For a sample of
items we checked that there was a subsequent invoice to a third party and that the
revenue recognition criteria used are in accordance with the stated accounting policy
and in line with IFRS.

We tested the calculation of rebates payable for a sample of customers by reference
to sales data and the underlying agreements, compared rebates by customer against
thase payable in previous years and investigated the reasons for significant variances,
and considered the rebate arrangements in place with major new customers won in
the year.

We obtained the calculations of the credit note provisions at the year end and the
underlying data for the credit notes issued in the year and the related invoices and
confirmed the accuracy of the period taken to issue credit notes. We considered
the credit note provision together with the bad debt provision which separately
assesses the level of provision against receivables that are overdue for payment.
We also considered the historic experience of trends in the issue of gredit notes.
Based on this we recalculated the credit note provision using our own estimates.

We evaluated the adeqguacy of the Group’s disclosures in relation 1c the estimation

of the credit note provision. ) o S
Our audit work involved checking a sampie of the movements in provisions

against prior years and obtaining and verifying explanations for material movements.
For any newly created onercus lease provisions we reviewed and considered with
management the basis of the provisions mads, including a review of the lease terms
in place.

We challenged management on the evaluation of future expected costs, assumptions
used for break clauses and subletting and the basis of the discount rate applied.

We evaluated the adequacy of the Group’s disclosures in refation to the judgements
and estimates used in the estirmation of the onercus lease provision.

" 'We have obtained a breakdown of the costs classified by the group as exceptioral

and checked that they are in accordance with the accounting policy in respect of
exceptional itemns. We have challenged management as to the basis of the allocation
of these costs, and ensured that adequate disclosure was mads of that basis within
the financial statements. We have tested a sample of the costs 10 backing
documentation and schedules.

In respect of restructuring provisions relating to the Network Reconfiguration we have
assessed whether the criteria of IAS 37 Provisions, Cantingent Assets and Contingent
Liabilities, were met as at the year end, and reviewed the underlying coniracts and
agreements to evaluate the calculation of the onerous efement of the provision.

We have evaluated the adequacy of the Group's disclosures in relation to the
exceptional items.

In addition, as in all our audits, we have addressed the risk of management override of internal controls including evaluating whether
there was evidence of bias by the Directors that represented a risk of material misstaterment due to fraud.
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Our application of materiality and an overview of the scope of our audit

We apply the concept of materiality both in planning and performing our audit, and in evaluating the effect of misstatements.

We consider materiality 1o be the magnitude by which misstatements, including omissions, could influence the economic decisions
of reasonable users that are taken on the basis of the financial statements.

We determined materiality for the group as a whole to be maintained at £1,000,000 (2016: £1,000,000} given the volatility of the
results for the year and the similar levels of trading activities in 2016 and 2017 and having regard to the overall group loss. Materiality
represents 5.4% of the group loss before tax and excepticnal items disclosed in note 4. Materiality in 2016 was determined with
reference to a benchmark of the group profit before amortisation of intangibles, interest and tax and exceptional ftemns and
represented 4.9% of that figure.

Materiality for the parent company was set at £800,000, being 90% of group materiality.

Performance materiality was set at 75% of materiality for the group audit, and 80% for the parent company. In setting the level of
performance materiality we considered a number of factors including the expected total value of known and likely misstatements
(based on past experience and other factors) and management's attitude towards proposed adjustments.

Component materiality

We set materiality for each component of the group based on a percentage of between 19% and 90% of group materiality dependent
on the size and our assessment of the risk of material misstatement of that component. Component materiality ranged from £190,000
1o £900,000. In the audit of each component, we further applied performance materiality levels of 60% to 75% of the component
materiality to our testing to ensure that the risk of errors exceeding component materiaiity was appropriately mitigated.

We agreed with the Audit Committee that we wouid report to the Committee all individual audit differences in excess of £50,000.
We also agreed to report differences below these threshoids that, in cur view, warranted reporting on qualitative grounds.

An overview of the scope of our audit

The group’s accounting process is structured around a group finance function at its office in Heathrow, and at its head office in
Manchester, which also act as a shared service finance centre for all of its UK companies. The group also maintains local finance
teams for its Ireland operation ana for part of one of its UK operations.

The group’s operating companies vary significantly in size, and we identified eleven reporting units at the year end which had non-
triviai external transactions, seven of which, in our view required an audit of their complete financial information due to their size
or risk characteristics, These seven units comprise over 90% of group turnover and over 90% of group gross assets.

All audit work on the seven units was performed by us, the group audit team. Qur work on the other units comprised analytical
procedures and certain tests of detail. This gave us the evidence we needed for our cpinion on the group financial statements.

Other information

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included in the annual report
other than the financial statements and our auditor's report thergon. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other
information and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion
thereon. In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other infarmation and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistant with the financial statements or our knowtedge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material misstatermnents, we
are required to determine wheather there is a material misstatement in the financial statements or a material misstaternent of the other
information. I, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of the other information,

we are required tc report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.

In this context, we also have nothing to report in regard to our responsibility to specifically address the following items in the other
information ana to report as uncorrected material misstatements of the other information where we conclude that those items mest
the following conditions:

-> Fair, balanced and understandable (set out on page 35) - the statement given by the directors that they consider the annual
report and financial statements taken as a whole is fair, balanced and understandable and provides the information necessary
for sharehoiders to assess the group’s performance, business model and strategy, is materially inconsistent with our knowledge

- Audit committee reporting (set out on pagesS?toSQ) —thesechondescnbmg the work of the audit committee does not

appropriately address matters communicated by us to the audit committee is materially inconsistent with our knowledge obtained
in the audit; or

- Directers' statement of compliance with the UK Corporate Governance Code (set out on page 32) - the parts of the directors’

statement required under the Listing Rutes relating to the company's compliance with the UK Corporate Governance Code
containing provisions specified for review by the auditor in accordance with Listing Rule 9.8.10R(2) do not properly disclose

a departure from a retevant provision of the UK Corporate Governance Code. e _
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Independent Auditor’s Report to the members
of HSS Hire Group pic continued

Opinions on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006
In our opinion, the part of the directors’ remuneration report to be audited has been properly prepared in accordance with the
Companies Act 2006.

In our cpinicn, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

-> the information given in the strategic report and the directors’ report for the financial year for which the financial statements are
prepared is c:onestent wth the fmanmal staternents and

9 the strateglc report and the dlrectors repor‘( have been prepared in accordance \mth apphcable ega! requrrements

Matters on which we are required to report by exception
In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the group and the parent company and its environment obtained in the course of
the audit, we have not identified material misstaternents in the strategic report or the direciors’ report.

Wae have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the Companies Act 2006 requires us to report to you
if, in our opinion:

- adequate accounting records have not been kept by the parent company, or returns adequate for our audit have not been received
from branches not wsned by us; or

—) the parent cornpany f|nanc=al staternents and the part ofthe dnrec‘rors remuneratron repori tc be audsted are not in agreement wnh
the accountlng records and returns or

Responsibilities of directors

As explained more fully in the directors' responsibiiities statement set out on page 53, the directors are responsible for the preparation
of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such internal conitrol as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whather due to fraud
Or error.

In preparing the financial staterments, the directors are responsibie for assessing the group’s and the parent company’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors either intend 1o liquidate the group or the parent company or 10 cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Qur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstaternent, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s repart that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high
level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists, Misstaternents can arise frorm fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reascnabiy be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements,

A further description of our responsibitities for the audit of the financial staterments is iocated on the Financial Reporting Council's
website at: www frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our auditor's report.

Other matters which we are required to address

Following the recommendation of the audit committes, we were appointed by the Board of Directors to audit the financial statements
for the year ending 30 December 2015 and subseguent financial periods. In respect of the financial year ended 31 December 2017 we
were reappolnted by resolution of the members of the company at the annual general mesting held on 14 June 2017, The pericd of total
uninterrupted engagement is 3 years, covering the years ending 31 December 2015 to 31 December 2017 for the Company.

Non-audit services prohibited by the FRC's Ethical Standard were not provided to the group or the parent company and we remain
independent of the group and the parent company in conducting cur audit.

Our audit opinion is consistent with the adqitional report 1o the audit committes.

Kieran Storan {Senior Statutory Auditor)
For and on behaif of BDO LLP, Statutory Auditor
Londoen

UK

5 April 2018

BDO LLP is & lirnited liability partnership registered in England and Wales (with registered number OC305127).
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Independent Auditor’s Report to the members
of HSS Hire Group plc continued

Opinions on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006
In our opinion, the part of the directors’ remuneration report to be audited has been properiy prepared in accordance with the

Cempanies Act 2006.

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

- the information given in the strategic report and the directors' report for the financial year for which the financiai statements are
prepared is censistent with the financial statements and - o

- the strategic report and the directors’ report have been prepared in accordance with apglicable legal requirerments.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

in the light of the knowledge and understanding of the group ard the parent company and its environment obtained in the course of

the audit, we have not identified material misstatements in the strategic report or the directors' report.

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the Companies Act 2006 requires us to report 1o you

if, in our opinion:

— adequate accounting records have not been kept by the parent company, or returns adeguate for our audit have not been received
from branches not visited by us; or

— the parent company financial statements and the part of the directors' remuneration report to be audited are not in agreement with
the accounting records and returns; or

d by law are not made; or

- certain disclosures of d
- we have not received all the in

formation and explanations we require for our audit. .

Responsibilities of directors

As explained more fully in the directors’ responsibilities statement set out on page 53, the directors are respensibie for the preparation
of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstaternent, whether due to fraud

ar error,

in preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the group’s and the parent company's ability to
continue as a going concemn, disciosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the group or the parent company or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Qur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high
level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with 1ISAs (UK} will always detect a material
misstaternent when it exists. Misstaternents can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reascnably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statemants.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the Financial Reporting Council’s
website at; www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of cur auditor's report.

Other matters which we are required to address

Following the recommendation of the audit committee, we were appointed by the Board of Directors to audit the financial statements
for the year ending 30 December 2015 and subsequent financial periods. In respect of the financial year ended 31 December 2017 we
were reappointed by resolution of the members of the company at the annual genera! meeting held on 14 June 2017. The period of total
uninterrupted engagement is 3 years, covering the years ending 31 December 2015 to 31 December 2017 for the Company.

Non-audit services prohibited by the FRC's Ethical Standard were not provided to the group or the parent company and we remain
independent of the group and the parent company in conducting our audit.

Our audit,opinicn is congigdent with the additional report to the audit committee.

.

(e

Kieran Storan (Senior Statutory Auditor)
For and on behaif of BDO LLP, Statutory Auditor
London

UK

5 April 2018

BDO LLP is a limited liability partnership registered in England and Wales (with registered number OC305127).
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Independent Auditor’s Report to the members
of HSS Hire Group plc continued

Opinions on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006
in our opinion, the part of the directors’ remuneration report to be audited has been properly prepared in accordance with the
Companies Act 2006.

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

—> the information given in the strategic report and the directors’ report for the financial year for which the financial statements are
prepared is conS|stent W|th the flnanC|a| statements and

—) the strateglc report and the dlrectors report have been prepared in accordance W|th apphcable Iegai requu’ernents

Matters on which we are required to report by exception
In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the group and the parent company and its environment obtained in the course of
the audit, we have not identified material misstatements in the strategic report or the directors’ report.

—~

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the Companies Act 2006 requires us to report {0 you
if, in cur opinion:

— adequate accounting records have not been kept by the parent company, or returns adeguate for our audit have not been received
trom branches not wsﬂed by us; or

9 the parent company ﬂnanaal statements and the part of the dlrectors rernuneratlon report to be audlted are not in agreernent W|th
the accountlng records and returns; or

9 certaln dlsclosures of dlrectors remuneratlon specﬂ" ed by Iaw are not made or
—) we have not recelved aII the rnforrnanon and expianatlons we require for our audlt

Responsibilities of directors

As explained more fully in the directars’ responsibilities statement set out on page 53, the directors are responsible for the preparation
of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free frorn material misstaterent, whether due to fraud

Qr errgr.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the group’s and the parent company's ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting uniess the directors either intend to liquidate the group or the parent company cr to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financiat statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whoie are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and tc issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high
level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individuaity or in the aggregate,
they couid reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

A further descripticn of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the Financial Reporting Councit's
website at: www frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of cur auditor's report.

Other matters which we are required to address

Following the recommendation of the audit committee, we were appointed by the Board of Directors to audit the financial statements
for the year ending 30 Decemibber 2015 and subsequent financial periods. In respect of the financiai year ended 31 December 2017 we
were reappointed by resolution of the members of the company at the annual general meeting held on 14 June 2017. The period of total
uninterrupted engagement is 3 years, covering the years ending 31 December 2015 to 31 December 2017 for the Gompany.

Non-audit services prohibited by the FRC's Ethical Standard were not provided to the group or the parent company and we remain
independent of the group and the parent company in conducting our audit.

Our audit epinion is consistent with the additional report to the audit committee.

BDocc s~

Kieran Storan {Senior Statutory Auditor)
Far and on behalf of BDO LLP, Statutory Auditor
London

UK

5 April 2018

BDO LLP is a limited liability partnership registered in England and Waies {with registered number OC305127),
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Consolidated Income Statement
For the year ended 30 December 2017

Year ended Year ended
30 December 31 December

2017 2016
Note !-.‘.000_;____ 2__900_*_5___
Revenue 2 335,780 342,410
Cost of sales {154,289) (145,232)
Gross profit 181,491 197,178
Distribution costs (46,140) (45,091)
Administrative expenses {207 ,652) (155,969)
Other operating income 3 882 1,151
Operating loss (71,419) {2,731)
Adjusted EBITDA' 2 48,944 68,638
Less: Depreciation' {47,159) (48,175)
Adjusted EBITA' 1,785 20,463
Less: Exceptional items 4 (66.567) (16,957)
|.ess: Amortisation’ 11 (6,637) (6,237)
Operating loss (71,419) (2,731
Net finance expense 5 (13,743) (14,686)
Loss before tax (85,162) (17,417)
Adjusted {foss)/proiit before tax (11,958) 5,777
Less: Exceptional items 4 (66,567) (16,957)
Lass: Amortisation 11 {6,637) 6,237)
Loss before tax {85,162) (17,417)
Income tax credit 9 5,240 104
Loss for the financial year (79,922) (17,313)
Loss attributable to:
Owners of the company (79,922) (17,313
Loss per share {pence)
Basic and diluted loss per share 10 (46.96) {11.18)
Adjusted basic earnings per share? 10 {5.68) 2.08
Adjusted dituted earnings per share? 10 (5.68) 2.94

1 Adjusted EBITDA is defined as operating profit before depreciation, amortisation and exceptional items. For this purpose depreciation and amortisation includes the net
book value of hire stock losses and write offs, and the net book value of other fixed assst disposals less the proceeds on thosea disposals. Adjusted EBITA is defined as
operating profit before amortisation and excepticnal items.

2 Adjusted earnings per share is defined as profit before tax with amortisation and exceptional costs added back less tax at the prevaiing rate of corporation tax divided by

the weighted average number of crdinary shares.

The notes on pages 66 to 103 form part of these Financial Statements.
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Consolidated Statement

of Comprehensive Income
For the year ended 30 December 2017

Year ended Year ended

30 December 31 December

2017 2018

) ~ £00Ds £000s

Loss for the financial period {79,922) {17,313)
items that may be reclassified to profit or loss:

Foreign currency translation differences arising on consolidation of foreign operations 104 1,533

Other comprehensive profit for the period, net of tax 104 1,533

Total comprehensive loss for the period {79,818) {15,780}

Attributable to owners of the Company (79,818) (15,780)

The notes on pages 66 to 103 form part of these Financial Statements.
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Consolidated Statement
of Financial Position

(168,226)  (162,082)
Neon-current liabilities

At 30 December 2017
30 December 31 December %’
2017 2016 g &
B L Note ~  goo0s @ ..E900s T 2
ASSETS §
Non-current assets .
Intangible assets 11 172,509 178,755
Property, plant and equipment 12 150,815 178,473
Deferred tax assets 19 358 780 o]
323,782 358,008 3
s
Asset held for resale 28 1,500 - g
3
H
Current assets @
Inventories 13 5,519 7,898
Trade and other receivables i4 96,503 103,744 =
Cash . i5 2,151 15,211 é
104,173 126,853 g
Total assets 429,455 484,861 3
=
LIABILITIES
Current Habilities -
Trade and cther payables 16 (82,452) (89,150) &
Borrowings 17 {69,000) 66,0000 2
Provisians 18 (16,684) (6.431) )
Current tax liabilties (20) (501) g
=}

Trade and other payables 16 (14,105) (17,266)
Borrowings 17 (134,242) (133,212)
Provisions 18 (36,510) (10,712)
Deferred tax liabilities 19 {2,800} {8,208}

(187,657)  (169,383)

Total liabilities (355,883)  (331,475)
Net assets 73,672 153,386
EQUITY

Share capital 20 1,702 1,702
Merger reserve 97,780 97,780
Foreign exchange translation reserve 425 321

Retained (deficitl/earmings (26,335) 53,583
Total equity attributable to owners of the group 73,572 153,386

The notes on pages 66 to 103 form part of these Financial Statements.

The financigl staterents were approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 5 April 2018 and were signed on its

P Quested
Director
5 April 2018
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Consolidated Statement
of Changes in Equity

For the year ended 30 December 2017

Foreign
exchange Retained
Merger translation earmnings/
Share capital reserve reserve (deficit}  Total equity
Note £000s £000s _ £000s ~ £000s £000s
At 1 January 2017 1,702 97,780 321 53,583 153,386
Total comprehensive loss for the period
l.oss for the pericd - - - (79,922) {79,922)
Foreign currency translation differences arising on
consolidation of foreign cperations - - 104 - 104
Total comprehensive loss for the period - - 104 (79,922) (79,818}
Transactions with owners
recorded directly in equity
Share based payment charge - - - 4 4
At 30 December 2017 1,702 97,780 425 (26,335) 73,572
Foreign
exchange
Merger translation Retained
Share capital reserve reserve eamings Totai equity
£000s £000s £000s ~ EO00s £000s
At 26 December 2015 1,648 86,376 {1,212} 72,657 158,262
Total comprehensive loss for the period
Loss for the pericd - - - {(17,313) (17,313}
Farsign currency translation differences arising on
consclidation of foreign cperations - - 1,633 - 1,633
Total comprehensive loss for the period - - 1,633 {17,313) (15,780}
Transactions with owners recorded
directly in equity
New share issue for cash 20 184 12,800 - - 12,954
Share issue costs 20 - (398) - - (396)
Share based payment charge - - - 103 103
Dividends paid - - - (1,764} (1,764)
At 31 December 2016 1,702 97,780 321 £3,583 153,386

The notes on pages 66 to 103 form part of these Financial Statements.
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Consolidated Statement

of Cash Flows
For the year ended 30 December 2017

Year ended Year ended
30 December 31 December
2017 2016
Note £000s £000s
Cash tlows from operating activites I
Loss before income tax {85,162) (17,417)
Adjustments for:
— Amortisation 6,637 6,237
— Depreciation 37,006 37,729
- Accelerated depreciation relating to hire stock customer losses, hire stock write offs 10,066 9,762
— Impairment of property, plant and equipment 11,230 -
- Impairment of intangible assets 1,239 -
- Loss on aisposal of property, plant and equipment 87 684
- Loss on disposal of intangible assets 3 -
— Loss on disposal of subsidiary 4,919 -
- Share based payment charge 4 103
- Finance income - 3)
- finance expense 13,743 14,689
Changes in working capital (excluding the effects of acquisitions and exchange differences
on censolidation):
— Inventeries 804 1,197
- Trade and other receivables 6,560 5,717)
— Trade and other payables (5,764) 2,571
— Provisions 31,504 (1,187)
Net cash flows from operating activities before changes in hire equipment 32,876 48,648
Purchase of hire equipment (22,787) (22,085)
Cash generated from operating activities 10,089 26,563
Net interest paid {12,494) (12,974)
Income tax paid 59) (373)
Net cash {utilised)/generated from operating activities (2,464) 13,216
Cash flows from investing activities
Proceeds on disposal of businesses, net of cash disposed of 1,138 -
Purchases of non hire property, plant, equipment and software (7,260) (16,804)
Net cash used in investing activities (6,122) (16,804)
GCash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from the issue of ordinary share capital 20 - 12,954
Share issue costs 20 - (170}
Proceeds from borrowings 18,000 31,000
Repayments of borrowings (15,000) (11,000}
Cash received from refinancing hire stock 5,030 -
Capital element of finance lease payments (12,504) (12,498)
Dividends paid 26 - (1,764}
Net cash received from financing activities (4,474) 18,522
Net (decrease)/increase in cash {13,060) 14,934
Cash at the start of the period 15,211 277
Cash at the end of the period 15 2,151 15,211

The notes on pages 66 to 103 form part of these Financial Statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated

Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 December 2017

1. Accounting policies

a) Reporting entity

The Company is incorporated and domiciled in the United Kingdom. These Consolidated Financial Statements comprise the Company
and its subsidiaries (the Group). The Group is primarily involved in providing toel and equipment hire and related services in the United
Kingdom and the Republic of Ireland. HSS Hire Group Limited was incorporated on 7 January 2015 as & private company limited by
shares in the United Kingdom and re-registered as a pubiic limited company on 19 January 2015. The Company listed its shares on
the London Stock Exchange on 9 February 2015. The Group and Campany Financial Statements were approved by the Board of
Directors on 5 April 2018.

o) Statement of compliance
The Group Financial Statements of HSS Hire Group plc have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards as adopted by the Eurcpean Union {IFRS) and the Companies Act 2008.

The Directors have taken advantage of the option within section 390 of the Companies Act 2006 to prepare their Financial Staternents
up to a date seven days either side of the Company's accounting reference date of 31 December, ana these accounts therefore cover
the period from 1 January 2017 to 30 December 2017 (2016: 27 December 2015 to 31 December 2016).

¢) Functional ancd presentational currency

These Financial Statements are presented in pounds Sterling (€}, which is the Group's presentational currency. The functional currency
of the parent and subsidiaries is pounds sterling, except for those that are incorporated in the Republic of Ireland, which have the euro
as their functional currency. All amaounts have been rounded to the nearest thousand, unless otherwise indicated.

d) Basis of preparation

These Financial Statsments have been prepared on a historical cost basis with the exception of derivative financial instrurnents, which
are measured at fair value on each reporting date. The accounting policies sst out below have been applied consistently to all periods
presented in these Financial Statements.

a) New accounting standards and accounting standards not yet effective
There were ho new IFRSs ar IFRICs that had to be implemented during the year that significantly affect these Financial Statements.

Standards effective in future periods
The following new standards, amendments and interpretations to existing standards, which are applicable to the Group, have been
published and are mandatary for the Group's accounting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018,

- IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers, which provides guidance on the recognition, timing and measurement of revenue,
and |s effectlve for penods beglnnlng on or aﬂer 1 January 2018

9 iFRS 16 Leases whuoh sets out the pnncnpies for the recogmtlon measurement presentat;on and dusclosure of Ieases eﬁectlve for
perlods begmmng on or after 1 January 2019.

% IFRS 9 Financial rnstruments wh|ch replaces IASBQ Frnanmal instruments Fiecognmon and Measuremem in ns entlrety, and is '
_ effective for periads beginning on or after 1

IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers: This will replaca IAS 18 which covers revenue arising from the sale of goods and
the rendering of services and IAS 11 which covers construction contracts. The new standard is based on the principle that revenue

is recognised when control of a good or service transfers to a customer. The standard permits either a full retrospective or a modified
retrospective approach for the adoption. The Group will adopt the new standard from 31 December 2017. The Group is of the opinion
ihat IFRS 15 does not have any material impact an the financial statements as what is required by the standard is already applied as
accounting policy by the Group. The Group also confirm that it does not expect to restate or recognise the cumulative effect to the
previous year's Financial Statements as at the date of the application of IFRS 15.

IFRS 16 Leases: The Group is in the process of assessing the impact that the application of IFRS 16 will have on the Financiaf
Staterments, but it is expected to be material given the number of operating leases the Group has entered into, as detailed in note 23.
IFRS 16 will require the Group to recegnise a liability and right of use asset for the majority of the leases currently treated as operating.
This will affect fixed assets, current and non-current liabifities, and the measursment and disclosure of expenses associated with the
leases (depreciation and interest expense compared 1o operating lease rentals currently). The standard will also impact a number of
statutory measures such as operating profit and cash generated from operations and alternative non-IFRS financiai performance
measures used by the Group. It is not practicable to provide a reasonable estimate of the effects of the adoption of IFRS 16 until a
detailed review has been completed, given the complexity of the standard and volume of leases. The full impact of IFRS 16 will greatly
depend on the facts and circumstances at the time of adoption. Accounting reguirements for lessars are substantially unchanged from
1AS 17. The group will adopt the standard from 30 December 2018.

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments addresses the classification, measurement and de-recognition of financial assets and financial liabilities,
introduces new ruies for hedge accounting and a new impairment model for financial assets. The Group will adapt IFRS g from
31 December 2017. The standard introduces:

The adoption of IFRS 9 is unlikely 1o have a material impact on the consolidated results of the Group.
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1. Accounting poticies continued =
f) Critical accounting estimates and judgements o
in preparing these Financial Statements, management has made judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of b3
the Group's accounting policies and the reported amount of assets, liabilities, income, expenses and other disclosures. The estimates é’
and underlying assumpticns are based on historical experience and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the g
circumstances. The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoeing basis.
Changes in accounting estimates may be necessary if there are changes in the circumstances on which the estimate was based, or as
a result of new or further information. Such changes are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised.
Key assumptions abecut the future and key sources of estimation uncertainty that have a risk of causing a material adjustment to the 15
carrying value of assets and liabilities over the next year are set out below. 3
3
Estimates g
Useful economic life and residual value of assets - see note 1(k) g
Impairment of goodwill, intangible assets and property, plant and equipment — see note 1) §
(e}
Onerous lease provision — see note 1(y} ®
Dilapidations provisions — see note 1(y) -
I
Restructuring provisions — see note 1{y) %
&
Judgements o
Recoverability of trade receivables — see note 1(0) 1 %
Onerous contract provision — see note 1(y} %
Exceptional items — see note 1(co)
g} Going concern >
Note 22 includes the Group’s objectives, policies and processes for capitai management and for financial risk management including g8
market risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and asset risk. g
=
[}
The directors have also censidered the adeguacy of the Group’s debt facilities with specific regard 1o the following factors: 5
o
d there is no requrrement to redeem any | of the senlor secured notes untit 1 August 2019. g
- The borrowsngs under the revolwng crecht facmty are not due for repayment untit 6 .July 2019 uniess the Group has not reflnanced g

the senior secured notes by 30 September 2018 when the revolving cradit facility may become, at the option of the lenders,
repayable on 30 Aprll 2019

9 the terms and flnancnal covenants relatmg to the revolwng credlt facm‘(y secured by the Group, as detalled in notes 1? and 22

The Group's forecasts and projections, taking account of reasonably possible changss in trading performance, and senior debt and
interest repayments falling due, as detailed in note 17, show that the Group is expected to be able to operate within the level of its
current facilitios for the foreseeabie future.

After reviewing the above, taking into account current and future developments and principal risks and uncertainties, and making
appropriate enqguiries, the directors have a reasonable expectation that the Group has adequate resources tc continue in operational
existence for the foreseeable future. Accordingly they continue to adopt the going concern basis in preparing these Financial
Statements.

n) Basis of consolidation

Subsidiaries are all entities over which the Company has control. The Company controls an entity when it is exposed to, or has rights
to, variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the entity.
Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which control is transferred.

Unless merger accounting has been adopted in specific circumstances, the Group applies the acquisition method to account for
business combinations, The consideration transferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary is the fair vaiue of the assets transferred, the
liabilities incurred to former owners of the acquiree and the equity interests issued by the Group. The consideration transferred includes
the fair value of any asset or fiability resulting from a contingent consideration arrangement. Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities
and contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination are measured initially at their fair values at the acquisition date.
Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the acquisition date carrying value of the acquirer’s previously held equity interest in
the acquiree is re-measured to fair value at the acquisition date. Any gains or iosses arising from such re-measurement are recognised
in the profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration is measured at fair value at the acquisition date. if the contingent consideration is ciassified as eguity
then it is not re-measured and settlement is accounted for within equity. Otherwise, subsequent changes in the fair value of contingent
consideration are recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued
For the year ended 30 December 2017

1. Accounting policies continued
h) Basis of consolidaticn continued
Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised gains on tfransactions between Group companies are sliminated on consolidation.

i} Segment reporting

IFRS 8 Operating segments requires operating segments to be reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided
to the chief operating decision maker. The chief operating decision maker, who is responsible for allocating resources and assessing
performance of the operating segments, has been identified as the managerment team, including the Chief Executive Officer, Chief
Financial Officer and Chief Commercial Officer. Details of the Group'’s segments are given in note 2.

j) Foreign currency translation

Foreign currency transactions are translated into an entity’s functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions or valuation where items are re-measured. Fareign currency transiation gains and losses resulting from the settlernent

of such transactions and from the translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognised in the income statement. Fereign currency transiation gains and losses that relate to borrowings and cash
and cash equivalents are presented in the income statement within finance income or finance expense. Al other foreign currency
translation gains and (osses are presented in the income statement within administrative expenses,

The assets and liabilities of foreign operations, including goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on consolidation, are translated to
the Group’s presentational currency, Sterling, at foreign currency exchange rates ruling at the reporting cate.

The revenues and expenses of foreign operations are translated at an average rate for the pericd, which approximates the foreign
currency exchange rates ruling at the dates of the transactions. Exchange differences arising from the translation of foreign operations
are reported in other comprehensive incorme. Whare reguired, any translation into the Group’s presentational currency follows the
policy for foreign operations.

k) Property, plant and equipment

Use of estimates - useful economic life and residual value of assets

The Group's poiicy for applying useful aconomic fives and residuai vaiugs of assets has been determined through applying historical
experience and taking intc consideraticn the nature of assets and their intenced use, and achieved values on sale when disposed.

The net book value of materials and equipment held for hire was £118.6 millicn at 30 December 2017 (2016: £133.9 million} and the
related depreciation charge was £29.0 million (2018: £27.9 million). The mgjority of hire stock items are given no residual value, Certain
plant (powered access and power generation) have residual values of betwean 10% and 20% of original cost.

No sensitivity analysis has been given in retation fo the useful economic life and residual value of assets held for hire due to the volume
of the items involved and the complexities of the current system used by the group to record property, plant and equipment. Instead,
the directors regularly review useful economic lives and residual values to ensure that the depreciation charge is appropriate. The
Group will aiso be introducing a new property, plant and equipment recording system during 2018 which will be able to capture
additional data to the one that is currently in use. Land and buildings comprise leasehold and freehold branches, workshops and
offices, and are stated at cost, less depreciation or provigion for impairment where appropriate. Land is not depreciated and
depreciaticn on other assets is calculated using the straignt-line method to allocate their cost or revalued amounts to their rasidual
values over their estimated useful ives, as follows:

Material and equipment held for hire:

Tools and general squipment Two to ten years
Powered access Five to ten years
Power generation Five to ten years
Climate contral Two to ten years

Non-hire assets:

Leasehold properties with less than fifty years unexpired Cver unexpired period of lease
Freshold buildings and long leasehold properties Over fifty years
Plant and machinery Two to ten years

The Group reviews its depreciation policy annually. The effect of changes in the depreciation rates applied to specific assets in 2017
has resulted in an increase in depreciation charge of £0.8 million (2016: a reduction of £4.2 million).

Materials and equipment held for hire purposes are stated at cost, less depreciation or provision for impairment where appropriate.
taterials and equipment are written off over their usefut economic life to the asset’s residual value which is estimated at between 20%
of cost and nil. Residual values are only applied to powered access and power generation assets. Profits or losses arising when
customers are invoiced for loss of equipment held for hire purposes are calculated by reference 1o average written down values.
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1. Accounting policies continued

k) Property, plant and equipment continued

Gains and losses on disposals of materials and equipment held for hire are calculated as the diffsrence between the proceeds received
and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment reviews are undertaken whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate the carrying value of property, plant and
equipment may nct be recoverable. If the fair value of a tangible assst is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount is reduced to its recoverable amount. Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount is increased
to the revised estimate, but restricted so that the increased amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised in prior years. Any impairment iosses or reversals are recognised immediately
in the income statement.

) Intangible assets

Use of estimates — impairment of goodwill, intangible assets and property, plant and equipment

These assets are reviewed annually or more frequently if there is an indication of impairment to ensure that they are not carried above
their estimatec recoverable amounts. To assess if any impairment exists, estimates are made of the future cash flows expected to
resutt from the use of the asset and its eventuat disposal. Actual outcomes could vary from such estimates of discounted future cash
flows. Such calculations require assumptions related to the appropriate discount rate, the long term growth rate and alsc short term
performance and cash flows. The directors consider historic performance as well as referencing to external information to arrive at
these assumptions, Further details of the impairment reviews undertaken, assumptions and sensitivities are given in note 11.

Goodwill
Goodwill arises on the acquisition of subsidiaries and represents the difference between the fair value of the consideration transferred

and the fair value of the acquired assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities.

impairment of goodwill

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is allocated to each of the cash generating units
{CGUs), or groups of CGUs that is expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination. A CGU is the smallest group of assets
that generates cash inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of the cash flows of other assets or CGUs.

Goodwill impairment reviews are undertaken annually. The carrying vatue of goodwill is compared to the recoverable amount, which is
the higher of value in use and the fair value less costs of disposal. Any impairment is recognised immediately as an expense and is not
subsequently reversed.

intangible assets acquired on acquisition
When an acquisition is completed intangible assets are separately identified from goodwill and measured at fair vaiue. Brands are
valued using the relief from royalty method. Customer relationships are valued using the excess of earnings method.

The HSS brand was first established in the late 1950s, and therefore given its longevity the directors consider the HSS brand to
have an indefinite life and it is not therefore amortised, but instead subjected to annual impairment testing using the relief from royalty
methodology to calculate the fair value of the brand.

All other brands and customer relationships are amortised on a straight-line basis over their useful economic iife. The directors have
assessed the brands of ABird, UK Platforms and Apex and estimated that they have useful economic lives of 20 years. The directors
have estimated the customer relationship intangible assets recognised on the acquisition of Hero Acquisitions Limited and Apex
Generators Limited as having useful economic lives of 10 years. Amortisation is charged to administrative expenses.

Software developmennt costs

Costs associated with maintaining computer software programmes are recognised as an expense as incurred. Developrment costs that
are directly attributabie to the design and testing of identifiable and unique software products controlled by the Group are recognised
as intangible assets when the foliowing criteria are met:

—) |t |e technlcally fea5|ble to complete the software product 50 that |t wnII be avallable for use;

9 management |ntende to complete the software product and use or sell |t

—) there is an ablhty to use or sell the eoftware product

> |t can be demonstrated how the software product WI|| generate proloaole future economlc beneflts

> adequate techrncal flnanctal and other resources to complete the devetopment and to use or sell the software product

ars avatlable and
—) the expendlture attrlbutable to the software product durlng |ts development can be renably meaeured

Computer software development costs recognised as assets are amortised over their estimated useful lives, which does not exceed
four years.
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Financial Stateaments

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued
For the year ended 30 December 2017

1. Accounting policies contnued

Cther intangibie assets

Other intangible assets that are acquired by the Group that have finite useful lives are measured at cost less accumulated amortisation
and any accumulated impairment lasses. Other intangible assets are amortised over their useful economic life, and the amortisation
charge is included within administrative expenses.

Iimpairment of intangible assets (excluding goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite lives)

Impairment reviews are undertaken whenever events or changes in circumnstances indicate their carrying value may not be recoverable.
If the fair value of an intangible asset is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount is reduced to its recoverable
amount. Where an impairment toss subseauently reverses, the carrying amount is increased 1o the revised estimate, but restricted so
that the increased amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been
recagnised in prior years. Any impairment iosses or reversais are racognised immediately in the income statement.

m) Derivative financial instruments

Historically the Group has used a derivative financial instrument to manage its exposure to interest rate risk. Derivatives are initially
recognised al fair value on the date a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently re-measured at their fair value at each
reporting date. The resulting gain or loss is recognised in prefit or loss immediately. Derivatives are carried as financial assets when the
fair value is positive and as financial liabilities when the fair value is negative.

A derivative is presented as a non-current asset or non-current liability if the remaining maturity of the instrument is more than one year
and is not expected to be realised or settled within one year. Where this is not the case, derivatives are presented as current assets or
current liabilities. The Group did not have any derivative financial instruments in the current or prior year.

n) Inventories

Inventorfes are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Nét realisable value is the estimated selling price in the crdinary
course of business, less applicabie variable seling expenses. Provision is made for those inventory itemns where the net realisable vaiue
is estimated to be lower than cost. Net realisable value is based on both historical experience and assumptions regarding estimated
future sales vaiue.

o) Trade receivables

Judgements — recoverability of trade receivables

Judgements are required in assessing the recoverabillity of overdue trade receivables and determining whether a provision against
those receivables is required. The Group monitors the risk profile of debtors and makes provisions for amounts that may not be
recoverable based on past default experience and the directors’ assessment of the economic environment. The recoverability of
overdue receivables is considered together with the sales credit note provision. The Group makes provision for credit notes raised and
expected 10 be raised after the end of the reporting periad that relate to customer invoices raised before the end of the period, net of
any impairment charges relating to the custemer invoices. The Group's bad debt and credit note provision is disclosed in note 14.

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at fair value, which is deemed to be the transaction price. Subseqguently, trade and
other receivables are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less any provision for impairment.

Impairment provisions are recognised when there is objective evidence that the Group will be unable to collect afl of the amounts

due under the terms receivable, the amount of such provision being the difference between the net carrying amount and the present
value of the future expected cash flows associated with the impaired receivables. On confirmation that the trade receivable wilt not be
collectable, the gross carrying value of the asset is written off against the associated provision.

p) Cash

In the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents includes cash in hand, deposits heid at cail with banks, other short term
highly liquid investments with maturities of three months or less and bank overdrafts. In the statement of financial position, bank
overdrafts are shown within borrowings in current liabilities.

q) Share capital and reserves

Ordinary shares

Financia' instruments used by the Group are classified as equity only to the extent that they do not meet the definition of a financial
asset or a financial liability. The Group's ordinary shares and preference shares are classified as equity instruments. Incremental costs
directly attributabie to the issue of ordinary sharss are recognised as a deduction from equity, net of any tax sffects.

Retained earnings/accumulated deficit
Cumulative net gains and losses recognised in the income statement.

Foreign exchange reserve

This is the amount of gains/losses arising on retranslating the net assets of overseas cperations into sterling. In prior years, the balance
was included in retained earnings but the directors have decided to show it in a separate component of equity this year. The 2016
cormparative has been restated accordingly.
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1. Accounting policies continued

Dividends

Dividends or ordinary share capital are recognised as a lfability in the Group’s Financial Statements in the period in which they are
declared by the Company. In the case of interim dividends, these are considered to be declared when they are paid and in the case
of final dividends these are declared when authorised by the shareholders.

Merger reserve

The merger reserve is the amount arising on the difference between the nominai value of the shares issued on the merger and the
carrying valug of the interest in the subsidiary. The merger reserve arose in 2015 when the Group underwent a capital reconstruction
in advance of its initial public offering on 9 February 2015, and increased during 2016 via acquisition of a ‘cash box’ company.

r) Trade and other payables

Trade payables are cbiigations to pay for goods or services that have been acguired in the ordinary course of business from suppliers.
Trade payables are recognised initially at fair value and subseqguently measured at amortised cost. Trade payables are classified as
current liabitities if payment is due within one year or less, otherwise they are presentsd as non-current jiabilities.

s) Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of fransaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently carried at amortised
cost; any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption value is recognised in the income statement
over the period of the borrowings using the effective interest methed.

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are recognised as transaction costs of the loan to the extent that it is probable that
some o all of the facility will be drawn down. In this case, the fee is deferred until the: draw-down oceurs. To the extent there is no
evidenc ~that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn down, the fec is capitalised as a pre-payment for liquidity
services and amortised over the period of the facility to which it relates.

1) Cost of sales, disiribution costs and administrative expenses

Cost of sales inciudes direct costs associated with the Group’s principal business of equipment hire. Such costs include hire stock
rehire, cost of reselling ptant and equipment, maintenance, depreciation, amortisation and asset write-off and disposals. Distribution
expenses comprise vehicle costs and transport wages. Administrative expenses comprise principatly staff and property costs and
costs of acquisitions.

u) Non-IFRS financial measures

Earnings before interest, taxation, depreciation and amortisation (EBITDA) and Adjusted EBITDA, earnings before interest, tax and
amortisation (EBITA) and Adjusted EBITA

EBITDA, Adjusted EBITDA, EBITA and Adjusted EBITA are non-IFRS and non-Generally Accepted Accounting Practice (GAAR}
performance measures used by tha diractors and management 10 assess the operating performance of the Group.

- EBITDA is defined as operating profit before depreciation, and amortisation. For this purpose depreciation includes the net book
value of hire stock losses and write offs, and the net book value of other fixed asset disposals less the proceeds on those disposals.
Exceptional items are excluded from EBITDA to calculate Adjusted EBITDA.

- EBITA is 'd'éfined by the Group as operating profit before amortisation. Excepnonal|temsareexcludedfrom EBITA tocalculate

Adjusted EBITA. . , S

The Group discloses Adjusted EBITDA and Adjusted EBITA as supplemental non-IFRS financial performance measures because
the directors believe they are useful metrics by which to compare the performance of the business from period to period and such
measures similar to Adjusted EBITDA and Adjusted EBITA are broadly used by analysts, rating agencies and investors in assessing
the performance of the Group. Accordingly, the directors believe that the presentation of Adjusted EBITDA and Adjusted EBITA
provides useful information to users of the Financial Statements.

As these are non-IFRS measures, Adjusted EBITDA and Adjusted operating profit measuras used by other entities may not be
calculated in the same way and are hence not directly comparabie.

v} Finance income and expense
Finance income comprisaes interest receivable on cash balances.

Finance expense comprises interest payabie on borrowings, interest payable on finance leases, amortisation and write-off of debt
tssuance costs and the unwinding of the discount on non-current provisions.

Interest is recognised in profit or loss as it accrues, using the effective interest rate. Interest payable on borrowings includes a charge in
respect of attributable transaction costs, which are recognised in profit or ioss over the period of the borrowings on an effective interest
basis. The interest expense component of finance lease payments is recognised in the incorme statement using the lease’s implicit
interest rate.
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Financial Statements

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued
For the year ended 30 December 2017

1. Accounting policies continued

w) Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense far the period comprises current and deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the income Statement, except to the extent
that it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the statement of tinancial
position date. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax
regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected 1o be paid to the
tax authorities.

Deferred income tax is recagnised on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and liabllites and their carrying
amounts in the staterment of financial position. However, deferred tax liabilities are not recognised if they arise from the initial recognition
of goodwill. Deferred income tax is not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction other than
a business combination that at the time ot the transaction affects neither accounting nor faxable profit or loss. Deferred income tax is
determined using tax rates {and laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the statement of financial position date and
are expected to apply when the related deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are racognised only 1o the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available against which
the temporary differences ¢an be utilised.

Deferrad income tax liabilities are provided on taxable temporary differences arising from investments in subsidiaries, except for
deferred income tax liabilities where the timing of the reversal of the temporary difference is controlled by the Group and it is probable
that the tempoerary difference will not reverse in the foreseeabie future.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised on deductible temporary differences arising from investments in subsidiaries only to the
extent that it is probable the temporary difference will reverse in the future and there is sufficient taxable profit available against which
the temporary difference can be utilised. Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to
offset current tax assets against current tax iiabilities and when the deferred income taxes assets and liabilities relate to income taxes
levied by the same taxation authority on sither the same taxable entity or different taxable entities where there is an intention to settle
the balances on a net basis.

x) Employee benefits

Short term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are expensed as the related service is provided. A liability is recognised for the amount expected to be
paid if the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation 1o pay this amount as a result of past service provided by tha employee
and the obligation can be estimated reliably.

Pension obligations

The Group operates employee optional stakeholder retirement and death bensfit schemes. Both employees and employers are
required to make contributions, with the employer’s contributions for each empioyee determined by the level of contribution made by
the empioyee and the employee's length of service within the Group or subsidiary company. The employer’s contributions are charged
to profit and loss in the year in which the contributions are due.

Termination benefits

Termination bensfits are payable when employment is terminated by the Group betore the normal retirement date, or whenever an
employee accepts voluntary redundancy it exchange for these benefits. The Group recognises termination benefits at the earlier of the
following dates: (&) when the Group can no longer withdraw the offer of those benefits; and (o) when the entity recognises costs fora
restructuring that is within the scope of IAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets and involves the payment of
termination benefits. In the case of an offer made to encourage voluntary redundancy, the termination benefits are measured based
on the number of amployees expacted to accept the offer. Benefits falling due more than 1 year after the end of the reporting period
arg discounted t6 their present value.

Share based payments

Share based payment transactions in which the Group receives goods or services as consideration for its own equity instruments
are accounted for as equity-settlad share based payments. The grant date fair value of the share based payment granted to
employees is recognised as an employee expense, with a corresponding increase in equity, over the period that the employee
becomes unconditionally entitied to the awards. The fair value of the options granted is measured using an option valuation mode!
where required, taking Into account the terms and conditions upon which the options were granted and Is charged to the income
statement on a straight-line basis aver the vesting period of the award.

The armount recognised as an expense is adjusted to reflect the actual number of awards for which the related service and non-market
vesting conditions are expected to be met, such that the amount ultimately recognised as an expense is based on the number of
awards that do meet the related service and non-market performance conditions at the vesting date.
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1. Accounting pelicies continued

y) Provisions ‘

Use of estimates - onerous leases

Provisions have been made for onerous leases on non-trading stores assoclated with the Group’s property portfolio. The carrying
amount of the cnerous lease provision will be atfected by changes in the discount rate. The discount rate used to calculate these
provisions is based on UK gilt yields to approximate a risk free rate and as at 30 December 2017 was 0.752% (2016: 0.48 %}. The
interest rate used in discounting the cash flows is reviewed annually. Further details of the assumptions and sensitivities are given in
note 18.

The need for provisions for onerous leases against non-trading stores, measured net of expected rental incormne, is assessed when
the leased property becomes vacant and is no longer used in the cpsrations of the Group or when a decision has formally been
made to do so. These provisions are recognised on a lease by lease basis. The determination of the onerous lease provision requires
managernent, in conjunction with its third party property advisers, to make estimates about the uitimate cost to the Group, including
the nature, timings and cost of exiting a lease, and any additional unavoidable costs, and the level of sublease income, it applicable.

The actual costs and timing of cash flows are dependent on future events and market conditions. Any difference between management
estimates and actual costs is accounted for in the period when such determination is made.

Provisions for onerous leases, restructuring costs and legal claims are recognised when:

> 1he Group has a present Iegal ar construc‘uve obllgaﬂon asa result of past events

-% |t is probable that an outf!ow of resources Wl|| bo requxred to Settle the obllgatlon and -
--) the amount has been relrably estlmated

Use of estimates — dilapidations provisions

Leasehoid dilapidations relate to the estimated cost of returning a leasshold property to its original state at the end of the iease in
accordance with the lease terms. The cost is recognised as depreciation of leasehold improvements over the remaining term of the
lease. The main uncertainty relates to estimating the cost that will be incurred at the end of the lease. Provisions for dilapications are
estimated based on surveyors’ reports where available and remaining properties are covered by estimates based on gross internal
area. The Group's dilapidation provision is disclosed in note 18.

Provisions for dilapidation are recognised in fulf when the related facllities are installed. A corresponding amount equivalent to the
provision is also recognised as part of the cost of the related property. The timing and amounts of future cash flows related to lease
dilapidations are subject to uncertainty. The provision recognised is based on management’s experience and understanding of the
commercial retail property market and third party surveyors' reports commissioned for specific properties in order to best estimate
the future outflow of funds, requiring the exercise of judgement applied to existing facts and circumstances, which can be subject to
change. The amount recognised is the estimated cost of dilapidations, discounted to its net present valus, and since the cash outflow
can take place many years in the future, the carrying amount of the provision is reviewed regularly and adjusted to take account

of changing facts and circumstances, including, the age and condition of the property, experience of actual spending, third party
surveyors’ reports commissioned for specific properties, the Group's specific lease obligations, market practice generally and any
agreements specifically reached with iandlords in respect of any given property. Changes in the estimated timing of dilapidations or
dilapidations cost estimates are dealt with prospectively by recording an adjustment to the provision, and a corresponding adjustment
10 property, plant and equipment. The unwinding of the discount on the dilapidations provision is included as a finance expense.

Use of estimates — resfructuring provisions

Restructuring provisions comprise lease termination penalties and employee termination payments. Provisions are not recognised for
future operating losses. Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures expected to be required to settle the obligation
using a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the obligation.

Judgements — onerous contract provisions

Contracts are considered to be onerous when cash is paid to a third party but the Group derives no economic benefit. In the case

of the Group's refationship with Unipart, following the agreement to cease the NDEC in December 2017 and the subsequent revisions
to the contracts between the parties, £33.8 million will be payable over the period 2018 to 2026 for which the Group will receive no
services. Accordingly this has been treated as an onerous contract.

z) Revenuse recognition

The Group's activities congist of supplying hire and equipment services within the UK and the Republic of ireland. Revenue is
measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, and represents amounts receivable for goods and services
supplied, including compensation for damaged or lost hire stock, stated net of discounts, rebates, returns and value added taxes.
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Financial Statements

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued
For the year ended 30 December 2017

1. Accounting policies continued
The Group recognises revenue when the amount of revenue can be reliably measured and when it is probable that future economic
benefits will flow to the entity. Revenue is recognised as follows:

-9 htre and rehrre actfvmes over the penod of hlre ona stralght lrne bas:s _

-> resale and anczllary revenue to htre when the significant nsks and rewards of ownershlp have been transferred t0 the buyer;
mcludrng fuel and consumables

- ex-hlre fleet asset sales when the S|gnmoant rlsks and rewards of ownershrp have been transferred to the buyer; -

> damaged/lost hlre stock compensatlon when the loss or damage is ldentlfled and

-3 training course and suppert services: whern a rrght to consrderatron arises an the dehvery of the trarnrng course
or support service.
aa) Leases
Assets held under finance leases, which are leases where substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset have
transferred to the Group, and hire purchase contracts are capitalised in the balance sheet and are depreciated over the shorter of
useful life and lease term with any impairment being recognised in accumulated depreciation. Leased assets are recorded at an
armount equal 1o the lower of its fair value and the present value of the minimum lease payments at the inception of finance leases.
The capital elements of future obligations under leases and hire purchase contracts are included in liabilities in the statement of
financial position and analysed between current and non-current amounts. The interest elements of the obligations are charged to the
income statement over the pericds of the leases and hire purchase contracts so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on
the remaining balance of the liability.

Leases where the lessor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are classified as operating leases. Operating lease
rentals are charged 1o the income statement on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Lease incentives are recorded as a liability and then recognised over the lease term on a straight-line basis in the income statement ag
a reduction of rental expense.

bb) Fair value measurement
A number of the Group’s accounting policies and disclosures require the determination of fair value, for both financiai and non-financial
assets and liabilities. Set out below is an analysis of the valuations method of the Group's financial instruments.

The different levels in the fair value hierarchy have been defined as follows:

—) Level 1 quoted (unad;usted) pnces rn actwe markets for |dent|ca| assets or ||ab|ht|es.

> Level 2 inputs other than quoted prices rncluded wrthln Ievel 1 that are observable for the asset or irabrllty elther dlrectly
(re as prlces) or rndtrectly (|e denved from prrces) and

9 Level 3 tnputs for the asset or I1ab||tty that are not based bn observab!e market data (unobservable |nputs)

Fair values have been determined for measurement purposes based on the following methods:

Derivative instruments (level 2)

The fair values of interest rate swaps are calculated as the present value of the estimated future cash flows based on the terms and
maturity of each contract and using market interest rates as applicable for a similar instrument at the measurement date. Fair values
reflect the credit risk of the instrument and include adjustments to take account of the credit risk of the Group entity and counterparty
where appropriate.

The fair value of interest rate swap contracts are calculated by management based on external valuations received from the Group's
bankers and are based on anticipated future interest vields.

cc) Exceptional items

Juagements — exceptional ftems

The Group has classified a number of income statement items as exceptional during the year because of their size or nature or
because they are non-recurring.

Exceptional items are disctosed separately in the income statement where it is necessary to do so to provide further understanding of
the underlying financial performance of the Group. Exceptional items are items of incorne or expense that have been shown separately
due to the significance of their nature or amount. During the year ended 30 December 2017 these include the cost of onerous leases
{net of sub-let rental income) and the impairment of fixed assets related to closed branches, the cost reduction programme, senior
management changes, preparatory refinancing costs, the strategic review and the costs of the network reconfiguration. Additionalty in
2016 exceptional costs included the cost of the establishment of the National Distrioution and Enginesring Centre (NDEC), pre-opening
costs, IPO fees and a resale stock impairment.

These are more fully discussed in note 4 and in our Financial Review.
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2. Segment reporting
The Group’s operations are segmented into the following reportable segments:

- Renta! and related revenue; and
- Services.

Rental and related revenue comprises the rental income earned from owned tools and equipmaeant, including powered access, power
generation, cleaning and HVAC assets, together with directly related revenue such as resale (fuel and other consumables) transport
and other ancillary revenues.

Services comprise the Group's rehire business known as HSS OreCall and HSS Training. HSS OneCall provides customers with a
single point of contact for the hire of products that are not typically held within HSS’ fleet and are obtained from approved third party
partners and HSS Training provides customers with specialist safety training across a wide range of products and sectors.

Contribution is defined as segment operating profit before branch and selling costs, central costs, depreciation, amortisation and
exceptional items.

All segment revenue, operating profit, assets and liabilities are attributable tc the principal activity of the Group being the provision of
toof and equipment hire and related services in, and to customers in, the United Kingdom and the Republic of reland. The Group has
one customer which accounts for more than 10% of Group turnover (2016: Nif).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued

For the year ended 30 December 2017

2. Segment reporting continuad

Rental

(and related
revenue) Services Central Total
£000s £000s | E000s £000s
Total revenue from external customers 247,770 88,010 - 335,780
Contribution 158,063 11,877 - 169,940
Branch and selling costs - - {82,422) (82,442)
Central costs - - (38,574} (38,574)
Adjusted EBITDA 48,944
Less: Exceptional items -~ - {66,567) (66,567)
Less: Depreciation and amortisation (41,842) 311) {11,643) {53,796)
Operating loss {71,419)
Net finance expenses {13,743)
Loss before tax {85,162)
Rental
{and related
revenue} Services Central Total
i _ . o00s  EOCOs - fo00s o ®000s
Additions 1o non-current assets
Property, pfant and equipment 25,763 24 8,726 34,513
Intangibles - 200 2,657 2,857
Non-current assets net book value
Property, plant and equipment 118,643 224 32,048 150,915
Intangibles 165,960 290 6,259 172,609
Unallocated corporate assets
Asset held for resale - -~ 1,500 1,500
Non-current deferred tax assets 358 358
Current assets 104,173 104,173
Current liabilities (168,226) (168,226)
Non-current liabilities {187,657) {187,657)

73,572
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Rental

Year ended 31 December 2016

{and related
revenue) Services Centrai Total
ECO0s £000s £000s £000s
Total revenue from external customers U oe2,817 79893 - 342410
Contribution 179,429 10,317 - 189,746
Branch and seliing costs - -~ (89,294) (89,294)
Gentral costs - -~ (31,814) (31.814)
Adjusted EBITDA 68,638
Less: Exceptional items - ~ {16,957) (16,957)
Less: Depreciation and amortisation {40,572 (267) (13,573) (54,412
Operating loss (2,731)
Net finance expenses (14,686}
Lossbeforetax e e e e e+ e e (17417)
Rental
{and related
revenLe) Services Centrat Total
..E000s | BOR0s . EOQUs o FOO0s
Additions to non-current ;;sets 7
Property, plant and equiprnent 27,337 115 14,945 42,397
Intangibles - 149 4,590 4,739
Acquired on acquisitions
Intangibles ~ -~ - -
Non-current assets net book value
Property, plant and equipment 133,922 387 44,164 178,473
Intangibles 169,748 542 8,465 178,755
Unallocated corporate assets
Non-current deferred tax assets 780 780
Current assets 126,853 126,853
Current iabilitles (162,082)  (162,082)
Non-current liabilities (169,393) (169,393)

153,386
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued
For the year ended 30 December 2017

3. Other operating income

Year ended Year ended

30 December 31 December

2017 2016

£000s £000s

QOther operating income 882 1,161
882 1,151

Other operating income inciudes £0.9 million (2016: £1.2 million) in respect of sub-let rental income received on vacant properties,
which has been recognised within excepticnal items (note 4).

4. Exceptional items
ems of income or expense have been shown as exceptional either because of their size or nature or because they are non-recutring.

During the year ended 30 December 2017 the group has incurred a number of exceptional items.

in the first haif of the year the Group identified the need to reduce its cost base. A cost reduction programme identified annualised
savings of £13 millon, based on the Q1 2017 run-rate, to be achieved through a number of inftiatives including closing branches,
making efficiencies in the network and reducing headcount. This led to redundancy costs and provisions being made for onerous
leases and the impairment of property plant and eguipmaent.

Following the appointment of the new CEO the Group carried out a strategic review. In December 2017 it was announced that this
had identified further annualised savings of between £10 million and £14 million to be achieved through a network reconfiguration
and further headcount savings. This led to the recognition of an onerous contract, asset impairments and redundancy costs.

Additionally 1o this the Group sold a business which was not considered core to its new strategy and incurred costs refating to
reviewing the available cptions ahead of the plannad refinancing of the Group's borrowings during 2018.

As a result, during the period ended 30 December 2017, the Group has recognised total exceptional items of £66.8 milion analysed
as follows:

Included

included in Included in incther Year ended

Included in  distribution administrative operating 30 December

cost of sales costs expenses income 2017

£000s EODQs £000s £000s £000s

Onerous leases - - 6,903 - 6,903
Impairment of property, plant and equipment - - 8,279 - 8,278
Business divesture - - 4,919 - 4919
Cost reduction programme 176 131 3,432 - 3,739
Senior management changes - - 1,031 - 1,031
Strategic review - - 1,172 - 1,172
Network reconfiguration - - 40,692 - 40,692
Preparatory refinancing costs - - 714 - 712
Sub-let rental income on cnerous leasas - - - {882) (882)

Total exceptionat items 176 131 67,142 {882} 66,567
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4. Exceptional items continued L
During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group recognised total exceptional costs of £17.0 million, analysed as follows: g §
Q. ¥
Included ;;
Included in Included in in other Year ended -‘é’
included in distribution administrative operating 31 December 2
cost of sales costs expenses income 2016
£000s £000s £000s
NDEC exceptional costs
Project management, design, set-up 508 - 2,660 - 3,088 2
Parallel running 1,036 1,128 4,130 - 6,294 §
Non-recurring transitionai engineering costs 125 - 226 - 351 g
Branch and CDC closure redundancies 162 163 116 - 441 %
Total NDEC exceptional costs 1,831 1,291 7,032 - 10,154 g
Onerous leases - - 4,492 - 4,492 ®
Group restructuring 15 5 1,622 - 1.642
I
Resale stock impairment 1,652 - - - 1,552 §
Pre-opening costs - 8 172 - 180 ?;n
Cost reduction programme - - - - - g
IPO fees - - 74 - 74 &
Acquisitions - - - - - ’
Sub-let rental income on onerous leases - - - (1,137) (1,137}
Total exceptional items 3,398 1,304 13,392 (1,137) 16,957 §
An analysis of the amount presented as exceptional items in the consdclidated income statement is given below. §_
Onerous feases: branch and distribution centre closure g
The numbper of branches has been reduced to remove less profitable locations with activity centralised inio fewer locations. 55 g
branches were closed during the year (2016: 30). An exceptional cost of £6.9 million relating to onerous leases and dilapidations costs g
has been recorded in the year ended 30 December 2017 (2016: £4.5 million). Sub-let rental income on onerous leases for the year
amounted to £0.9 million (2016 £3.1 million).

impairment of closed branch property, plant and equiprment

Following the branch closures management have conducted an impairment review of property plant and eguipment in closed branches
to determine what can be reused across the network. During the year ended 30 December 2017 an impairment of £8.3 million has
been recorded, (2016: £nil).
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4. Exceptional items continued

Cost reduction programme

The Group announced plans in the first half of the financial year 2017 to deliver significant cost reductions primarily by reducing head
office headcount by redundancy and restructuring costs at the NDEC to drive operational efficiencies in the supply chain. Included

in these costs is an asset impairment relating to the closure of the former head office in Mitcham and associated relocation costs of
transferring transactional activity to the new head office in Manchester. During the year ended 30 December 2017 costs of £3.7 million
are included as exceptional items relating to the cost reduction programme (2016: £nil).

Senior managerment changes
During the first half of the year a number of senior management changes happened including the recruitment of a new Chief Executive
Officer. Termination costs, legal fees and recruitment costs totailed £1.0 million (2016: £nil}.

Strategic review
Faliowing the appointment of the new Chief Executive Officer, a thorough Strategic Review was carried out by the Group. Non-recurring
third party consultancy costs of £1.2 mifion were incurred for the period ended 30 December 2017 1o support this review {2016: £nil).

Network reconfiguration

The Strategic Review identified operational efficiencies that could e achieved through reconfiguring the Group’s supply chain mode!.
Potential annual savings of between £7 million and £10 million were identified by moving the testing and repair of all fast-moving
products closer to HSS's customers, using the Group’s existing network of distribution centres and branches. In addition to the cost
savings, these changes are expected to improve asset utilisation and avaitability of product.

To realise these benefits, agreement was reached with Unipart who operated the Group’s Nationai Distribution and Engineering Centre
(NDEC) to terminate the rernaining 8 year term of the contract. In terminating this contract the Group will make cash paymenis of
£33.8 millicn over the period 2018 to 2026 as compensation to Unipart. In aggregate a discounted provision of £32.6 mifiion has

been made for these payments. Included in the above are one off cash payments of £6.5 million which wil be rmade in 2018 to

cover the immediate restructuring costs associated with the change, including redundancy, site decommissioning and exit costs

from operating leases.

The Group has impaired fixed assets of £1.9 million and software intangibles of £1.2 million relating to the operation of the NDEC, The
Group has also impaired a security deposit of £4.5 million paid to Unipart prior to the opening of the NDEC as this will not bg repaid,

The total provision for network reconfiguration, including £0.5 milion of legat costs, recorded within exceptional items amounts to
£40.7 million (2016: £nil).

Business divesture

The Group sold businesses not censidered core to the strategy. The Reintec branded fiest of cleaning machines and the associated
Tecserv equipment maintenance business were sold on 16 November 2017 for a consideration of £1.5 million, After transaction costs,
net proceeds were £1.2 million. This gave rise to a logs of £4.9 million including goodwill written off of £0.8 mitlion. Further details on the
disposal can be found in ncte 24.

Preparatory refinancing costs

Included within exceptional items for the period ended 30 December 2017 is an exceptional cost of £0.7 million in respect of
preparatory costs for the refinancing of the Senior Secured Notes and the Revolving Credit Facility which are due for reapayment
in 2019. The Greup expects to complete this refinancing in 2018.

Group restructuring costs

In parallel with the implementation of the NDEC the Group changed its operating model during 2016 to a new Divisional structure.
This resulted in a reduction in headcount leading to a redundancy cost of £1.6 million for the year ended 31 December 2016 which
was included within administrative expenses.

Resale stock impairment
As part of the NDEG set up and branch and distribution centre closures, Inventory held for sale was centralised into fewer locations
leading to an inventory impairment of £1.6 million which was included within cost of sales in the year ended 31 December 2018.

Pre-opening costs
included in exceptional items for the year ended 31 December 2016 were £0.2 miflion of costs relating to new branch openings and
relocations. These amounts have been included within administrative expenses.

PO fees
Included in exceptional items for the year ended 31 Decamber 2018 were £0.1 million of fees relating tc the IPO in February 2015 and
related to professional adviser and broker fees, which were included within administrative expenses.
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4. Exceptional items continued

NDEC establishment

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group incurred exceptional costs of £10.2 million establishing operations at the National
Distribution and Engineering Centre (“NDEC"). The NDEC was a centralised engineering and replenishment centre set up to serve our
branch and distribution network replacing the former hulb and spoke model deployed by the Group.

A dedicated project team oversaw these changes. Associated costs incurred amounted to £3.1 million.

As branches and distribution centres rolled into the NDEC, there was a period of increased costs due to the operation of both the new
and old models in parallel. The Group determined that a reasonable approximation of these parallel running inefficiencies to be the total
costs incurred in operating the NDEC up to the point where 50% of operational volumes were processed through the NDEC rather than
the original branch and distribution network. Accordingly all refated NDEC costs until October 2016 were treated as exceptional costs,
which armounted to £6.2 million.

As part of the restructuring a number of branches and distribution centres were closed. This led to redundancy costs of £0.5 millicn.

Given the scale and ccmpiexity in the operational change, the decision was made in the 4th quarter 2016 to redssign certain aspects
of the project. These non-recurring transitional engineering costs amounted to £0.4 million.

5. Finance income and expense

Year ended Year ended
30 December 31 December

2017 2016
£000s £000s
Interest recelvedoncashdeposns S (3)
Finance income - {3}
Banrk toans and overdrafts 2,118 2,039
Senior secured notes 9,155 9,331
Finance leases 1,392 1,792
Interest unwind on discounted provisions 31 484
Debt issue costs 1,047 1,043
Finance expense 13,743 14,689

Net finance expense 13,743 14,686
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6. Operating loss
Operating loss is stated after charging/{crediting):

Year ended Year ended
30 December 31 December
2017 2016
o £000s 50005
Ahﬂortisatiénrof in.té'ngi'brle' ésséis ' 6,637'" 6.287
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 37,006 37,729
Accelerated depreciation relating to hire stock customer losses,
hire stock write offs and other asset disposals 10,153 10,446
Loss on disposal of businesses 4,919 -
Impairment of tangible assets 11,230 -
impairment of intangible assets 1,238 -
Loss on disposal of intangible assets 3 -
QOperating lease rentals:
- fand and buildings 19,907 19,463
— moter vehicles 8,821 9,393
— hire stock 1,742 748
Sub-lease rental income (e882) (1,151}
Foreign currency translation gains {116) 85
Year ended Year ended
30 Dacember 31 December
2017 2016
) £0005 £000s
Auditors’ remuneration T T S
- audit of Group and Cornpany financial statements 61 58
— audit of subsidiary financial statements 214 232
- other audit related assurance services 50 -
— corporate finance services 230 -
— taxation compliance services 2 -
557 290
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7. Employees @
The average number of people employed by the Group {including directors) during the year was as follows: E
Year ended Year ended ;
30 December 31 December ]
2017 2016 £
Number Number
Headcount
Distribution 566 593
Hire stock and inventory maintenance 391 39 g
Sales and administration 2,109 2,270 3
a
3,066 3,254 g
o
The aggregate remuneration costs of these employees were as follows: §
[+]
Year ended Year ended @
30 December 31 December
2017 2016 -
£000s £000s z
Staff costs . &
Wages and salaries 79,994 83,434 g
@
Social security costs 8,228 7,386 2
=
Pension costs 1,486 1,665 ®
Share based payment expense 4 103
89,712 92,588 z
[=}
=
IAS 24 Related party transactions (JAS 24} requires the Group to disclose all tfransactions and cutstanding bafances with the Group's %
key management perscnnel. IAS 24 defines key management personnel as those persons having authority and responsibility for =
planning, directing and controling the activities of the entity, directly or indirectly, including any director (whether executive or otherwise) g
of that entity. g
o
=

The key management personnel of the Group comprise the directors along with senior managers from central support services and
divisicnal and regional cperations.

The aggregate remuneration costs of key management personnel were as follows:

Year ended Year ended
30 December 31 Decemnber

2017 2016

£000s ~  FO00s
Wagesandsalanes e e e e L e e s o+ e e e s 2,506 = 905
Empioyer's national insurance contributions and similar taxes 305 243
Compensation for loss of office 720 -
Other pension costs 118 99
Share based payment expense 4 103
3,653 2,350

At 30 December 2017 there were no amounts due to key management personnel (2016: £nil).
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8. Directors’ remuneration
The remuneration costs of the Company's directors were:

Year ended Year ended
3C Degembar 31 Decernber

2017 2016
£000s £000s
Directors’ remuneration D
Aggregate emocluments 932 853
Bonuses not paid - {16}
Pension costs 56 43
Directors’ emoluments 988 880
Share-based payment expense - 25
Total emoluments 968 905

Compensation for loss of office of £0.4 million is being paid by instalments to a former director and has been fully accrued during the
year ended 30 December 2017 (2016: £nil).

The rermuneration of the highest paid director was:

Year ended Year ended
30 December 31 December

2017 2016
£000s _ £000s

Highest paid director ) ’
Aggregate emoluments 284 348
Pension costs 24 33
Directors’ emoluments 308 381
Share-based payment expense - 20
Total emoluments 308 401

9. Income tax credit
(a) Analysis of expense/(credit) in the year

Yoar ended Year ended
30 December 31 Dacember

2017 2016
£600s £000s
Currenttaxcharge e+ i = e e o o o
UK corporation tax on the loss for the year 486 389
Adjustments in respect of prior years (788) 28
Total current tax (credit)/charge (302) 415
Deferred tax credit
Deferred 1ax (credity/charge for the year (4,889) 443
Deferred tax charge impact of change in tax rate - (961}
Adjustments in respect of prior years (49) Q)
Total deferred tax credit (see note 19) (4,938} 519)

Income tax credit {5,240) (104)
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9. Incame tax (credit)/expense continued
{b) Factors affecting the income tax expense/(credit} in the year

The tax assessed on the loss for the year differs from the standard UK corporation rate of tax. The differences are explained below:

Year ended Year ended
30 December 31 December
2017 2016

Loss before tax (85,162) {17.417)
Loss before tax multiplied by the standard rate of corporation tax of 19.25% (2018: 20%) (16,394) (3,483)
Effects of:
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 1,076 501
Adjustments in respect of prior years {838) 25
Difference ir foreign tax rate 444 389
Unprovided deferred tax movements on short term temporary differences and capital allowance
timing differences 10,472 3,425
' Tpact of change in tax rates - {961)
incomsg tax credit (5,240) {104}

(c) Factors that may affect future tax charge

The standard rate of corporation tax in the UK changed from 20% to 19% with effect from t April 2017. The Group's losses for the year

ended 30 December 2017 were taxed at an effective rate of 19.25%.

The Group has an unrecognised deferred tax asset relating to tempaorary timing differences on plant and equipment, intangible assets

and provisions of £18.2 million {2016: £14.8 million) and relating to losses £6.9 million (2016: £1.4 millien).

These potential deferred tax assets have not been recognised on the basis that it is not sufficiently certain when taxable profits that can

be utllised to absorb the reversal of the temporary difference will be made in the future.

The corporation tax main rate is 19% for the years starting 1 April 2017, 2018 and 2019 and at 18% for the year starting 1 April 2020.

The tax rate for the year starting 1 April 2021 is 17%.
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10. Earnings per share

Year ended 30 Decembar 2017

Weighted
average
Loss after mwnber of Lass per
tax shares share
£000s 000s pence
Basic and diluted loss per share (79,922) 170,207 (46.96)
Patentially dilutive securities - - -
Diluted earnings per share (79,922) 170,207 {46.96)
) Yggr erjdgcriﬂirij Decerpper 2016
Weighted
average
numper oi Loss per
Loss after tax shareg' share
£000s 000s pence
Basic and diluted loss per share (17,313) 154,887 {11.18)

1 The ordinary shares issued on 28 Decemper 2016 {see note 20) had no material impact on the weighted average number of shares for the year ended 31 December 2016,

Basic loss per share is calcuiated by dividing the result attributable to equity hotders by the weighted average number of ordinary

shares in issue for that period.

Diluted loss per share is calculated using the loss for the year divided by the weighted average number of shares outstanding assuming
the conversion of its potentially dilutive equity derivatives outstanding, being nil cost share optiohs (LTIP shares) and Sharesave
Scheme share options, as disclosed in note 21. All of the Group’s potentially dilutive equity derivative securities were anti-dilutive

for the year ended 30 December 2017 for the purpose of diluted loss per share. There were no potentially dilutive equity derivative

securities outstanding during the year ended 30 December 2017 for the purpose of diluted loss per share.

The following is a recongiliation between the basic loss per share and the Adjusted basic loss per share:

Year ended Year ended
30 December 31 December
O S, o007 L AoE
Basic and diluted loss per share (pence) (46.96) (11.18)
Add back:
Exceptional items per share’ 39.11 10.95
Amortisation per share? 3.90 4.03
Tax per share {3.08) [0.07)
Charge:
Tax credit/(charge) at prevailing rate 1.35 0.75)
Adjusted basic (loss)/earnings per share {pence} {5.68) 2.98

1 Exceptional items per share is calculated as total exceptional items divided by the weighted average number of shares in issus through the period.
2 Amaortisation per share is calculated as the amortisation charge divided by the weighted averags number of shares i lssua through the period.
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10. Earnings per share continued
The following is a reconciliation between the basic and diluted loss per share and the adjusted diluted {Joss)/earnings per share:

Year ended Year ended
30 December 31 December

7 2017 2016
Basic and diluted loss per share (pence) T eses (1148
Add back:

Adjustment to basic loss per share for the impact of dilutive securities - 0.12
Exceptional items per share? 39.11 10.83
Amortisation per share? 3.90 3.88
Tax per share (3.08) {0.07)
Charge:

Tax credit/(charge) at prevailing rate 1.35 {0.74)
Adjusted diiuted (loss)/earnings per share (pence) {5.68) 2.94

1 The LTiP and Sharesave share options [note 21) were dilutive for purposes of caloulating adjusted diluted eamings per share for the year ended 31 December 2016,
The LTI¥, market vaiue options and Sharesave share opfions were not dilutive in the year ended 30 December 2017,

2 Exceptional items per share is calculated as total fir ance and non-finance exceptional items divided by the diluted weighted average number of share 5 in issue
through the period,

3 Amortisation per share 1s calculated as the amortisation charge divided by the diluted weighted average number of shares in issue through the period.

The weighted average number of shares for the purpeses of calculating the adjusted diluted earnings per share are as foilows:

Year ended Year endec
30 December 31 December

Weighted Weighted
average average
number of number of
shares shares

Basic C T 7 470,207 154,887
LTIP share options (note 21) 1,383 1,268
Sharesave scheme options (note 21) 2,223 378
Market vaiue options (note 21) 2,581 -
Diluted 176,394 156,521

There were no potentialty dilutive equity derivative securities outstanding during the year ended 30 December 2017 for the purpose of
adjusted diluted loss per share.
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11. Intangible assets

Customer
Goodwill relationships Brands Software Total
£000s £000s £000s £000s £000s
Cost i S - et it
At 31 December 2016 129,744 27,482 24,142 19,968 201,336
Foreign exchange differences 2 - - - 2
Additions - - - 2,857 2,857
Sale of business (759) (738) (40) (240) (1,773)
Disposals - - - (2,104} (2,104)
At 30 December 2017 128,991 26,744 24,102 20,481 200,318
Amortisation
At 31 December 2016 - 10,940 391 11,250 22,581
Charge for the period - 2,762 143 3,732 6,637
Impairment loss : - - - 1,239 1,239
Sale of business ’ - (356) (8) (183) (547)
Disposals - - - (2,101) (2,101)
At 30 December 2017 - 13,346 526 13,937 27,809
Net book value
At 30 December 2017 128,991 13,398 23,576 6,544 172,509
Customer
Goodwill  relationships Brands Software Total
£000s £000s £000s £000s £000s
ot [ttt i tvi U ot AR
At 26 December 2015 130,171 27,044 24,142 14,999 196,356
Foreign exchange differences 11 - - - 11
Additions - - - 4,739 4,739
Transters (438) 438 - 230 230
At 31 December 2016 129,744 27,482 24,142 19,968 201,336
Amaortisation
At 26 December 2015 - 8,014 234 7,866 16,114
Charge for the pericd - 2,926 157 3,154 6,237
Disposals — - - 230 230
At 31 December 2016 - 10,940 3N 11,260 22581
Net book value
At 31 December 2016 129,744 16,542 23,751 8,718 178,755
At 26 Decembsr 2015 130,171 19,030 23,908 7,133 180,242

Ali goodwill arising on business combinations has been allocated to the Cash Generating Units {CGUSs) that are expected to benefit
from those business combinations. The Group tests goodwill and indefinite life brands annually for impairment.
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11. Intangible assets continued
Analysis of goodwill, indefinite life brands, other brands and customer relationships by cash generating units.

Indefinite life Other Customer
Goodwill brands brands relationships Total
£000s £000s £000s
Allocatedto S ostogiotto USROS O
HSS Core 111,497 21,900 299 11,793 145,489
Powered access 4114 - 681 - 4,795
Climate control 7,327 - 462 1,044 8,833
Power generation 6,053 - 234 561 6,848
At 30 December 2017 128,991 21,900 1,676 13,398 165,965
Indefinite iife Other Customer
Goodwill brands brands relationships Total
£000s £000s £000s £000s £000s
Allocatedto O Soivttiosot OOttt U ST s
HSS Cors 112,250 21,900 352 14,735 149,237
Powered access 4,114 - 725 - 4,839
Climate control 7,327 - 525 1,156 9,008
FPower generation 6,053 - 249 651 6,953
At 31 December 2016 129,744 21,900 1,851 16,542 170,037

The remaining life of intangible assets other than gooawill and indefinite life brands is between three to seventeen years.

The Group tests goodwill and indefinite life brands for impairment annually or more freguently if there are indicators that impairment
rmay have occurred. The recoverable amounts of the goodwill and indefinite iife brands, which are allocated to cash generating units
{CGUSs), are estimated from value in use {VIU) calculations which model pre-tax cash flows for the next four years (2016: four years)
together with a termina value using a long term growth rate. The key assumptions underpinning the recoverable amounts of the
CGUs tested for impairment are those regarding the discount rate, forecast revenue, EBITDA, and capital expenditure.

The key variabies appiied to the value in use calculations were determined as follows:

- Cash flows were derived assuming future Group growth rates in the short te medium term (up to four vears) of 2.5% for each of the
CGUs (2016: between 6% and 4%). The directors believe that it is appropriate to lower the growth rate assumptions from previous
years to reflect the focus of the business on cost reduction. The cash flow calculations are based upon the achievement of the cost
savings identified from the network reconfiguration identified in the Strategic Review. The majority of the cost saving initiatives have

Whilst the delivery of the identified cost savings Is critical to the cash flow projections that bave been used, additionally, the directors'
cash flow projections are based on key assumptions about the performance of the Group, the UK tool hire market and the general
UK macro-economic environment. An impairment may be identified if changes to any of these factors were significant, including
underperformance of the Group against forecast, negative changes in the UK tool hire market, or a deterioration in the UK economy,
which wouid cause the directors to reconsider their assumptions and revise their cash flow projections.

Based on this VIU modelling and impairment testing, the directors do not consider the goodwill and indsfinite life brands assets carried
in the balance sheet at 30 Degember 2017, for any of the CGUs, 1o be impaired.

For the CGU groupings listed in the table above in respect of goodwill and brands, excluding HSS Core, the directors’ sensitivity
analysis does not result in an impairment charge. Given the level of headrocm in VIU they show, the directors do not envisage
reasonably possible changes to the key assumptions that would be sufficient to cause an impairment at this time.

In respect of HSS Core, at 30 December 2017, the headroom between VIU and carrying value of the related assets was £89.9 million,
The directors’ sensitivity analysis with regard to HSS Core shows that an increase in the discount rate by 2.56%, 10 12.5%, or a reduction
in the long term growth rate 1o a decline of 2.2%, or a reduction in the short to medium term growth rate to a decline of 3.3% would
eliminate the headroom shown. Additionally if planned cost savings from the Strategic Review are £6.2 million less than anticipated on
an annual basis the headroom would be eliminated. The short to medium term growth rate reduction equates to a reduction in EBITDA
of between £3 milllon to £6 million annually over the medium term.
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12. Property, plant and equipment

Materials &
Land & Plant & equipment
buildings machinery helfd for hire Total
50905 o EQ_OOS £000s ) £00075"
Cost SRR L LT . o
At 31 December 2016 69,187 58,673 247,295 375,155
Foreign exchange differences 16 65 620 701
Additions 6,664 2,086 25,763 34,513
Transferred to asset held for resale {3,806) - - (3,806)
Sale of pusiness (93} 463) (5,504) (6,060)
Disposals {(197) (79} (30,676) {30,952)
At 30 December 2017 7,771 60,282 237,498 369,551
Accumulated depreciation
At 31 December 2016 37,095 46,214 113,373 196,682
Foreign exchange differences 1 48 332 429
Charge for the year 4,382 3,669 28,955 37,006
impairment loss 9,103 2,127 - 11,230
Transferred to asset held for resale (2,306) - - (2,306)
Sale of business (33) {408j (3,164} {3,606}
Disposals {127} 62) (20,610) {20,798)
At 30 December 2017 48,115 51,585 118,936 218,636
Net book value
At 30 December 2017 23,656 8,697 118,562 150,915
Materials &
Land & Plant & equipment
buildings magchinery held for hire Total
£000s £000s £000s _ FO0Os
Cost [ e o o et e et e+ v e
At 26 Decemiber 2015 63,313 55,814 256,208 375,435
Foreign exchange differences 29 199 2,377 2,605
Additions 10,360 4,700 27337 42,397
Disposals 4.515) (2,140} {38,627) (45,282)
At 31 December 2016 69,187 58,673 247,295 375,155
Accumulated depreciation
At 26 December 2015 35,258 44,016 112,948 192,222
Foreign exchange differences - 158 1,409 1,667
Chargs for the year 8,266 3,582 27.881 37,729
Disposals (4,429) (1,542} (28,865) (34,838)
At 31 December 2016 37,095 45,214 113,373 196,682
Net book vatue
At 31 December 2016 32,092 12,459 133,922 178,473
At 26 December 2015 28,055 11,898 143,260 183,213

The net book value of materials and equipment held for hire includes an amount of £48.1 miflion (2016: £42.3 million) in respect of
assets held under finance leases. The depreciaticn charge for assets held under finance leases in the year ended 30 December 2017

was £6.5 million (2016 £5.3 million).
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13. Inventories 9
8
30 December 31 Decernber S
2017 2016 >
£000s £000s z
Inventories 3,455 5016 -
Inventory spares 2,460 3,250
Total inventories 5,915 8,266
Provision for impairment {396) (368) § §
Inventories 5,519 7,898 §
T
@
30 December 31 December §
2017 2016 3
S .. Bo00s £ooos - ®
Provision for impairment of inventories
Balance at the beginning of the year 368 340 éﬂ
' . a2
Impairment provisions recognised during the year 28 28 &
Balance at the end of the year 396 368 g,_"
T
3
The cost of inventories recognised as an expense and included in cost of sales is £25.2 milion (2016: £26.7 million). %
14, Trade and other receivables
30 December 31 December
2017 2018 £
o £000s £000s %
Gross trade receivables 85,270 83,072 g
=]
Less provision for impairment {4,429) (3.740) g
Net trade receivables 80,841 79,852 g
Other debtors 27 679
Prepayments and accrued income 15,391 23,733
Total trade and other receivables 96,503 103,744

The provision for impairment of trade receivables is estimated based upon past default experience and the directors’ assessment of
the current economic environment, including provisions for credit notes raised and expected to be raised after year end tor customer
invoices issued before year end (see note 1(0)}. The overall provision for bad debts and credit notes amounts to 5.2% of trade
receivables at 30 December 2017 {2016: 4.5%). A 0.5% increase in tha rate of provision required would give rige to an increased
provision of £0.4 million. The creation and reisase of bad debt receivables provision is charged/{credited) to administrative expenses
in the income staterment, and the credit naote provision is charged/(credited) to revenue.

The following table details the movements in the provision for impairment of trads receivables.

30 December 31 December

207 2018

N £ogos ... Fo00s
e thebegannlngoftheperlod et e e e e e et e e (3'"0) .00
Movement in provision (689) 260
Balance at the end of the period (4,429) (3,740)

The provision for impairment of trade receivables is comprised, as follows:

30 December 31 December

2017 2016

£000s £000s

Bad debt provision (3,042) (2,286)
Credit note provisicn (1,387) {1,454)

(4,429) {3,740)
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14. Trade and other receivables continued
The ageing profile of debtors that are overdue but not impaired is:

30 December 31 December
2017 2016
£000s £000s
Days overdue
1 to 30 days 5,926 4,919
31 to 60 days 3,180 2,885
61 to 90 days 2,053 1,625
Over 90 days 2,465 3,602
13,624 13,031
These amourts have not been impaired as there has not bheen a significant change in credit quality and the amounts are still
considered recoverable.
15. Cash
30 December 31 December
2017 2016
o fo00s 20005
Cash (statement of financial position) 2,161 15,211
Cash and cash equivalents 2,151 15,211
16. Trade and other payables
30 December 31 December
2017 2016
£000s £000s
Current
Obligations under finance leases 11,892 11,448
Trade payables 39,729 52,505
Other taxes and social security costs 5,792 5,688
Other creditors 916 467
Accrued interest on borrowings 3,904 3,859
Accruals and deferred income 20,219 15,183
82,452 89,150
30 December 31 December
2017 2016
£000s £000s
Non-current
Qbligations under finance iease 14,105 17,266
14,105 17,266
Finance leases principatly relate to hire fleet assets.
The maturity profile of the Group’s finance leases is as follows:
30 December 31 December
2017 2016
£000s .. Eo00s
Less than one year 11,892 11,448
Two to five years 14,105 17,266
Qver five years - ~
25,997 28,714
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16. Trade and other payables continued

The following table gives a reconciliaticn of the minimum lease payments to the carrying value of the finance lease liabilities:

30 December 31 December
2017 2018
£000s £000s
Less than cne year 12,950 12,639
Two to five years 14,740 18,133
Over five years - -
27,690 30,772
Less future interest payments (1,693) {2,058)
Carrying value of lease liabilities 25,997 28,714
17. Borrowings
30 Decomber 31 December
2017 2016
£000s £000s
G et
Revolving credit facility 69,000 66,000
Bank overdraft - -
69,000 66,000
Non-current
Senior secured note 134,242 133,212
The nominal value of the Group's loans at each reporting date is as follows:
30 Dacember 31 December
207 20168
£000s £000s
St e s 136,000 136000
136,000 136,000

The secured senior note is a 6.75% fixed rate bond maturing in August 2019, and is listed on the Luxembourg stock exchange.

The Group's Super Senior RGF is a revolving credit facility expiring in July 2018.

The Group’s Super Senior RCF and Senior Secured Notes are both secured on a shared basis by a first ranking lien over certain assets
{comprising substantially all material assets of the Group). The Super Senior BCF shares its security with the Senior Secured Notes but

shall get priority over any enfarcement proceeds via a payment waterfall.

The interest rates on the Group's variable interest loans are as follows:

30 December

2017 2016

% above % above

LIBOR LIBOR

Revolving credit facility 2.50% 2.25%
J

31 December

The interest rates on the Group’s fixed interest loans are as follows:

30 December

31 December

2017 2016

Fixed rate Fixed rate

Secured senior note ) 7 6.75% 8.75%
The weighted average interest rate on the Group’s borrowings are as follows:

30 December 31 December

2016

Waeighted average interest rate on borrowings 5.28%

Amounts under the Revolving Credit Facility are typically drawn for a cne month borrowing period, with the interest set for each

borrowing based upon LIBOR and a fixed margin.
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17. Borrowings continued
The Group's Senior Secured Notes have the following maturity profile:

3¢ December 31 December

2017 2018

7 £000s £000s

Less thanone year oo T T s 9180
Two to five years 145,180 154,360
Over five years - -

(154360 163540
Less interest cash flows: '
Senior secured note (18,360) (27,540}
Total principal cash flows 136,000 136,000

The Group had undrawn committed borrowing facilities of £27.6 millicn at 30 December 2017 (2016: £27.0 million). Including net cash
balances (note 15), the Group had access to £29.8 million of combined liquidity from available cash and undrawn committed borrowing
facilities at 30 December 2017 (2G16: £42.2 million).

18. Provisions

Onerous Onerous

leases Dilapidations contracts Total

£000s £000s  £000s  £000s
At31 December 2016 7 5388 11,745 - 17,143
Additions 6,273 4,582 32,612 43,467
Utilised during the period (3,960) (1,885) - {5,845)
Unwind of provision (15) 46 - 31
Released, including disposal on sale of business (1,089} (613) - (1,602)
At 30 December 2017 6,607 13,976 32,612 53,194
Of which:
Current 2,163 4,310 9,611 16,684
Non current 3,844 5,665 23,001 36,510

6,607 13,975 32,612 53,194
At 26 December 2015 4,637 10,136 - 14,673
Additions 3,349 3173 - 6,622
Utilised during the period {2,223) (1,460) - (3.683)
Unwind of provision 332 152 - 484
Released (587) (2586) - (853)
At 31 December 2016 5,398 11,745 - 17,143
Of which:
Current 2,876 3,555 - 6,431
Non current 2,622 8,190 - 10,712

5,308 11,745 - 17,143

Onerous leases

Provisions for onerous leases relate to the current value of contractuat liabilities for future rent and rates payments and other
unavoidable costs on leasehoid properties the Group no longer operationally uses. These liabilities, assessed on a lease by lease
basis, are expected to arise over a period of up to 12 years with the weighted average being 3.5 years (2016: 2.8 years). They are
stated net of existing and anticipated sub-let income based on management’s experience of the commercial retail property market

in conjunction with specialist third party advice. The onerous lease provision has been discounted at a rate of 0.752% (2016: 0.478%).
A 1% increase in the discount rate at 30 December 2017 would reduce the onercus lease provision by £0.1 million.

The amount of anticipated sub-let income for vacant properties included in the onerous lease provision amounted to £0.9 million at
30 December 2017 (2016: £2.3 milllion). Variations in the actual timings or amounts of sub-let income will lead to a commensurate
increase or decrease in the amount of provision required in the future. If the Group failed to dispose of or sub-let any of these vacant
properties prior to their lease expiry the provision would increase by £0.9 million at 30 December 2017 (2016: £2.3 mitlion).
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18. Provisions continued

Dilapigations

The dilapidations provision represents dilapidation costs in respect of the Group’s leasehold properties and will therefore arise over the
lease lives of the Group’s properties, and comprises specific amounts based on surveyors’ reports cn a property by property basis,
where available. The remaining properties are covered by an estimate based on gross internal area. The weighted average dilapidations
provision at 30 December 2017 was £5.10 per square foot {psf) (2016: £3.10 psf). Estimates for future dilapidations costs are regularly
reviewed, and the increase in the cost of the provision pst reflects a change in the estimate of future cost based upon experience
during the year ended 30 December 2017. A £0.50 psf increase in the dilapidations provision would lead to an increase in the provision
at 30 Decemnber 2017 of £1.3 million.

The ditapidations provision has been discounted at a rate of 1.18% (2016: 1.45%) at 30 December 2017 based on 10 year UK gilt yields.
A 1% increase in the discount rate at 30 December 2017 would decrease the dilapidations provision by £0.6 million and associated
dilapidation fixed asset by £0.6 million, respectively.

Onerous contract

The onercus contract represents amounts payable in respect of the agreement reached between the Group and Unipart to terminate
the contract to operate the NDEC. The Group will make total cash payments to Unipart of £33.8 million of which £9.6 million is payable
in 2018. The obligations under this agreement will unwind over the period to 2026. The provision has been discounted at a rate of
1.19% at 30 December 2017 based on 10 year UK gilt yields. A 1% increase in the discount rate at 30 December 2017 would decrease
the provision by £0.9 million.

19. Deferred tax
Deferred tax is provided in full on taxable tempocrary differer ces under the liability methed using applicable tax rates.

Property,
plantand -
aquipment Acquired
and other intangible
Tax losses items assets Total

00

£000s £000s

A3 er 2016 o e o 78 (6,999) (7,423
(Charge)/credit to the income statement (422) 6,438 4,938
Sale of business - - 43 43
At 30 December 2017 (358) {2,282} (518) (2,442)
Deferred tax assets {358) - - (358)
Deferred tax liabilities - {2,282) (518) (2,800)
At 30 December 2017 {358) {2,282) {518) (2,442)
At 26 December 2015 1,900 {1,265) 8,577) (7,942
(Charge)/credit to the income staterment (1,120) 61 1,578 519
Arising on acquisition - - - -
At 31 December 2018 780 {1,204) (6,999) (7,423}
Deferred tax assets 780 - - 780
Deferred tax liabilities - {1,204) (6,999) (8,203)
At 31 December 2016 780 {1,204) (6,999 (7,423

At 30 December 2017 £2.8 million (2016: £7.6 million) of the deferred tax liability is expected to crystallise after more than one year.

At 30 December 2017 the Group had an unrecognised deferred tax asset relating to trading losses of £6.9 million (2016: £1.4 million).
Tax losses generated in the year have been offset against the previously recognised deferred tax liability on intangible assets resulting
in a net cradit to the income statement of £4.9 million {2016: £nil).

The Group alsc has an unrecognised deferred tax asset relating to temporary differences on plant and equipment, intangible assets
and provisions of £18.2 million (2016: £14.8 million).

These potentfal deferred tax assets have not been recognised on the basis that it is not sufficiently certain when taxable profits that can
be utilised to absocrb the reversal of the temporary difference will occur in the future.
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20. Share capital
Number and nominal value of crdinary shares

Share capital  Share capital

Ordinary Ordinary
Number 2000s
At 31 December 2016 170,207,142 1,702
At 30 December 2017 170,207,142 1,702

Share capital ~ Share capital

Ordinary Ordinary

) Number £000s

At 26 December 2015 T T T T 5a761,908 1,548
Issue of 15,445,238 ordinary shares of 1p each 15,445,238 154
At 31 December 2016 170,207,142 1,702

In Dacember 2016, the Company issued 15,445,238 new ordinary shares of 1p each on 28 December 2016 at a placing price of
83.875p per share. The placing raised £13.0 million and the Company received cash proceeds of £12.78 million on 28 December 2018,
net of expenses. The proceeds of the share issue were parcelled into the ‘cash box’ company which was then acquired by way of a
share exchange in circumstances which qualified for merger refief and so avoided the need to recognise a share premium on the share

issue, After additionally accounting for directly attributable expenses, the net amount booked to share capital and reserves was

£12.55 million; £0.15 million aliocated to nominal share capital and the excess of £12.4 million was recorded in the merger reserva
account in equity. All shares are fully paid up.

21. Share based payments
The key points of each of the Group’s share schemes for grants up to 30 December 2017 are summarised below. All schemes are
equity-settled. All disciosure relates to both the Group and the Company.

The Black-Scholes valuation model was used to determine the fair value of the share based payments issued by the Company. The
expected voiatility rmeasured at the standard deviation of continuously compounded share returns was based on statistical analysis
of the Company's histerical share price taking into account the Company's historical volatility since Admission to the Lendon Stock
Exchange in 2015, and the historicat volatility of a comparator group of companies listed on the London Stock Exchange operating
in similar markets.

The total charge for the period relating to employee share-based payment plans during the year endad 30 December 2017 was £4,000
(2016: £103,000}, alt of which related to equity settled share-based payment transactions.

Market Value Options

On 31 August 2017 share awards were granted to eligible employees based on a maximum of 460% of base salary in the form of
market value options over crdinary shares in the Company in accordance with the Company’s 2015 Long Term Incentive Plan (the
“LTIP"). This was following approval by shareholders at a General Meeting on 10 August 2017. The Market Value Cptions were awarded
on 31 August 2017 and will vest subject to performance conditions based on Eamings per Share and Return on Capital Employed
measured over the period ending with the Company’s 2020 financial year. To the extent it vests, each award wilt, ordinarily, be released
to the participant at the end of a further one year holding pericd.

On the same date, tax qualifying share options were granted as part of the Market Value Option awards ((CSOP options') via a
Company Share Option Ptan approved by HM Revenue & Customs ("HMRC"). Each CSOP is subject to the same performance
targets as the Market Value Options apply to the CSOP options and they will vest and be released at the same time as them.

As such the total award to each individual comprises a bundited HMRC approved option in respect of the first £30,000 worth of an
award, and an unapproved Market Value option award for amounts in excess of this HMRC (imit. The table on page 96 reconciles
the options outatanding.
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Year ended Year ended

30 December 31 December

2017 2018

Number of Number of

share share

options optiong

Qutstanding at beginning of periad - -

Granted 7,076,202 -

Qutstanding at end of period 7,076,202 -

Exercisable at end of pericd, number - -~

Weighted average exercise price, pence 57 -

Weighted average remaining contractual life, years 33 -

Weighted average fair value of LTIP options granted, pence 13 ~

CSOP options

The table below summaries the cutstanding CSOP options:

Year ended Year endad

30 December 31 December

2017 2016

Number of Number of

share share

options options

Qutstanding at beginning of periag - -

Granted 666,660 ~

Outstanding at end of period 666,660 ~

Exercisable at end of period, number - ~

Weighted average exercise price, pence 54 -

Weighted average remaining contractual life, years 3.3 -

Weighted average fair value of LTIP options granted, pence 14 -

Long Term Incentive Plan
No awards were made during 2017.

On 7 April 2016, share awards werg granted to etigible employees based on a maximum of 100% cf base salary in the form of nil-cost
options over ordinary shares in the Company in accordance with the Company'’s 2015 Long Term Incentive Plan (the 'LTIP’). The LTIP
awards will vest subject to performance conditions based on Earnings Per Share and Return on Capital Employed measured over the

pericd ending with the Company's 2018 financial year. To the extent it vests, each award will, ordinarily, be reieased to the participant at

the end of a further two-year holding period.

On the same date, tax qualifying share options were granted as part of the LTIP awards {'CSOP options’) via a Company Share Option

Plan approved by HM Revenue & Customs ((HMRC"). Each CSOP is subject to the same performance targets as apply to the nil-cost

options part of the LTIP and will vest and be refeased at the same time as the nil-cost options. If a CSOP option Is exercised as a gain,
Lhe nuinber of shares hal indy be delivered under e associated LTIP award will be reduced at exsrcise by the same value to ensure

that the total pre-tax value of the ariginal LTIP award delivered to the participant is not increased by the grant of the CSOP option.

As such, the LTIP comprises a bundled HMRC approved option in respect of the first £30,000 worth of an award, and an unapproved
LTIP award for amounts in excess of this HMRC limit. Therefore, the fair value of the award in aggregate is deterrmined by reference to

the market value of the original LTIP share awards at the date of grant.
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21. Share based payments continued
The table below reconciles the nil-cost LTIP share options outstanding:

Year ended Year ended
30 December 31 December
2017 2016
Number of Number of
share share
) - options 7 optfon;: B
Outstanding at beginning of period 1,640,364 -
Granted - 2,012,743
Exercised - -
Cancelled (400,742) (372,379)
Qutstanding at end of period 1,239,622 1,640,364
Exercisable at end of period, number - -
Weighted average exercise price, pence - -
Weighted average remaining contractual fife, years 83 9.3
Woeighted average fair value of LTIP options granted, pence 80 80

LTIP nil-cost options are exercisable no later than the tenth anniversary of the date of grant. The fair value of the LTIP nil-cost options
granted during 2016 was 80p, based on the market price of the ordinary shares at the date of grant, adjusted for dividends payable.

2016 3-year Sharesave Scheme (*SAYE Plan’)

On 4 November 2018, the Group offered all employees the opportunity to participate in the 2016 Sharesave Scheme, an SAYE plan
{the ‘SAYE Plan’). The SAYE Plan enables participating employees to save anything from £5 to £250 per month over three years. At

the end of the three years, the employee may use the amount saved to purchase H3S Hire Group ple shares at a discounted price
{compared to the price on the date of issue) of 57.7p per share. Alternatively, the employee may, at their reguest, withdraw their savings
and leave the SAYE Plan at any time. Panticipants will be eligible to exercise their awards between 3 and 3.5 years from the grant date.

No awards were made under the SAYE Plan during 2017.

The table betow reconciles the SAYE Plan share options outstanding:

Year ended Year ended

30 December 31 December

) 2017 2016

Number of Number of

share share

o o o o optionrsr 7 qptiqns
Qutstanding at beginning of period 2,433,039 -
Granted - 2,459,867
Exercised - -
Cancelled (772,146) {26,828)
Outstanding at end of pericd 1,660,893 2,433,039
Exercisable at end of period, number - -
Weighted average exercise price, pence 57.7 57.7
Weighted average remaining contractual life, years 2.3 3.3
Weighted average fair value of SAYE Plan options granted, pence 23 23
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21. Share based payments continued

The fair value of equity-settled share options granted is estimated as at the date of grant, taking intc account the terms and conditions
upen which the awards were granted. The following table lists the inputs to the model used for the year ended 30 December 2017 and
year ended 31 December 2016,

Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended
30 Decoember 31 December 30 December 31 December

2017 2016 2017 2016

" Marketvalue  Marketvalue  Sharesave  Sheresave

Fairvalueinpwts ... . options . options scheme . scheme

Exercise price, pence S 56.7 _ - 57.7
Share price on date of grant, pence 48.0 _ - 705
Expected term before cption exercise, years 7.3 _ - 3.25
Risk free interest rate, % 0.77% - - 0.28%
Expected dividend yield, % 2.37% - - 1.6%

22. Financial instruments

Financial risk management

The Group holds and uses financial instruments to finance its operations and to manage its interest rate and liquidity risks. The Group
primarily finances its operations using share capital, revenue and borrowings. ‘

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk (interest rate risk and foreign exchange risk}, credit risk and
liquidity risk.

Risk management is carried out under policies approved by the board of directors. Financial risk rnanagement is carried out by the

Chief Financial Officer under a policy approved by the board. The board approves written principles for overall risk management, as
weil as written policies covering specific areas, such as interest rate risk, credit risk and liquidity risk and receives regular reports on
such matters. The Group does not engage in trading or specutative activittes using derivative financtal instruments.

Marteet risk
Market risk is the risk that may change prices, such as foreign exchange rates and interest rates. They will affect the Group’s income
or the value of its holdings of financial instruments.

interest rate risk
Interest rate risk is the risk of a change in the Group's cash flows due to a change in interest rates.

The Group’s fixed rate borrowings are now principally the Senior Secured Notes. In addition the Group enters into finance leases in
respect of hire stock assets and these carry a fixed rate of interest set at lease inception.

The Group is only exposed to interest rate risk on its variable interest borrowings, such as the Revolving Credit Facility, the Group’s
overdraft and other short term borrowings. The most recent inflation report from the Bank of England (February 2018) indicates that the
market-implied path for the UK Bank Rate is now higher than reported in the February 2017 report, with base rates now at 0.5% and
expectad to reach 1% by the end of 2019. A year ago rates were not expected to reach 0.7% before Q1 2020. Despite this increase in
the forecast the directors do not consider this to be a significant risk to the Group. The directors will continue to monitor developments
in market interest rates on a regular basis. The effect of a 1% increase in interest rates on the Group's variable loans would be to
increase the interest charge by £0.7 million.

Interest rate sensitivity
The table below demonstrates the sensitivity to reasonably possible changes in interest rates on income and equity for the year when
this movement is applied 1o the carrying value of financial assets and liabilities.

Profit before tax Equity
30 Deoember 31 Dooombor 30 Dogombor 31 Docembor
2017 2016 2017 2016
ilion Emillion Emillion rnillich
Effect on
100 basis points increase 0.7 0.7 Q.7 07
200 basis points increase 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.4

Refinancing risk

The Group manages its refinancing risk by not letting its borrowings run to their maturity, Thers is a risk that market conditions might
preclude a refinancing if this is not done, The existing Senior Secured Notes mature in 2019 and the Revoiving Credit Facility expires
shortly before. The Group maintains good relations with debt investors and has incurred £0.7m of excepticnal expenses during the year
exploring its options ahead of these refinancing obligations.
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22. Financial instruments continued

Foreign exchange risk !
Foreign exchange risk is the risk of a change in the Group's cash flows due to a change in foreign currency exchange rate. The Group

is exposed 1o foreign currency exchange rate risk on the cash flows and carrying values of its Republic of ireland subsidiaries. Given

the relative small size of the Republic of lreland operations compared to the Group the dirsctors do not consider this 1o be a significant

risk to the Group.

Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Group if a customer or counter party te a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual
obiigations, and arises principally from the Group’s receivables from customers.

The directors consider the Group’s credit risk from cash, cash equivalents and deposits to be low as the Group only enters
transactions with banks or financial institutions with a credit rating of A or above.

The Group has palicies in place to manage potantial credit risk from trade receivables. Customer credit terms are determined using \
independent ratings agency data and regularly updated to reflect any changes in customer circumstances or trading conditions. If no 1
independent rating is available an internal assessment is made of the credit quality of the customer, taking into account their financial ‘
position and past trading history of the Group. The directors do not expect any significant losses of receivables that have not been

provided for as shown in note 14,

Liquidity risk

Ligquidity risk is the risk that the Group will not be able to meet its financial abligations as they fait due. The Group finance department

regularly monitors forecasts of the Group’s liquidity requirements to ensure it has sufficient cash to meet operational needs while

maintaining sufficient headroom on its undrawn committed borrowing facilities (note 17) at all times so that borrowing limits or

covenants on borrowing facilities are not breached.

The financial covenant in place on the Group’s revolving credit facility at 30 December 2017 is a minimum Adjusted EBITDA of
£35 million on a roling twelve manth basis.

Asset risk

Asset risk is the risk of loss or damage to an asset adding 1o financiaf loss to the Group. Customears may damage fire equipment if
they don’t have the appropriate skills to use the equipment or lack a duty of care while using it. The cost of repairing or replacing
the equipment can be substantial depending on the type of asset and in turn can lead to a loss of revenue until the asset is again
available to be hired.

Capital management
The Group relies on capital for organic and acquisitive growth, the purchase of rental equipment to replace equipment that has
reached the end of its usefu! economic life and to secure and establish new rental locations and branches.

The Group defines capital as equity as shown in the statement of financial position plus net debt (total borrowings less cash) and seeks
to achieve an acceptable return on gross capital.

The Group manages its capital structure using a number of measures and taking into account its future strategic plans. Such measures
include ensuring the Group maintains sufficient liquidity and compliance with a bank covenant, In addition to the cash that the Group
has generated from its operations, over recent years it has renegotiated its debt structure including the issue of a fixed interest rate
bond, fixed term loan notes and secured shorter term bank borrowing through a revolving credit facility.

The principal bank covenant is to maintain an adjusted rolling EBITDA of £35.0 milion. For the year ended 30 December 2017, Adjusted
EBITDA was £48.9 million (2016: £68.6 million).

Fair value
All financial assets at the balance sheet date which comprise trade and other receivables, cash and cash equivalents are classified as
loans and receivables.

All financial ffabilities which comprise trade and other payabies, obiigations under finance leases and borrowings are classified as
financial liabilities at amortised cost.

The following table shows the fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities within the Group, including their level in the fair value
hierarchy. It does not include fair value information for financial assets or financial liabilities not measured at fair value if the carrying
amount is & reasonable approximation of fair value.

30December 31 December

2017 2016
£000s £000s
Senior securad note 128,778 137,700

128,778 137,700

The Senior secured notes are classified as Level 1 in the fair value hierarchy, as they are listed on the Luxembourg stock exchange and
have been valued at their market vaiue at the year end.
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23. Commitments and contingencies
The Group’s commitments under non-cancellable operating leases are set out below:

30 December 31 December
2017 2018
£000s . EO0Cs

Land and buildings
Within one year 15,030 16,140
Between two and five vears 45,316 48,447
After five years 33,084 35,562
93,430 100,149

Other

Within one year 9,074 9,142
Between two and five years 15,263 15,052
After five years 7 321
24,344 25415
117,774 125,564

Other operating leases predominantly comprise hire stock assets and motor vehicles.

The Group's future minimum sub-iease rental income expected to be received under non-cancellable operating leases is as follows:

30 Dacember 31 Decembar
2017 2016
£000s  ...F000s
Sub-lease rental income
Within one year 452 713
Between two and five years 1,121 1,181
After five years 403 274
1,976 2,168

24. Business disposal

On 16 Novernber 2017, the Group sold its Reintec cleaning asset rentat and Tecserv cleaning equiprment and servicing businesses for

a cash consideration net of costs of £1.2 million.

The table betow shows the assets and liabilities disposed of:

Descriptions of assets and liabilities ’2000 )
Intangible assets 472
Property, plant and equipment 2,453
Inventories 1,575
Trade and ather receivables 1,042
Cash 19
Trade ana other payables (131)
P1ovisions (66)
Deferred tax liabilities (43)
5,321
Proceeds of disposai less transaction cost 1,157
Loss on disposal before goodwill written back (4,164}
Goodwill written back (755)
Loss on disposal 4.919)
Proceeds of disposal less costs 1.157
Cash disposed of (k)]
Nat cash inflow 1,138
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued
For the year ended 30 December 2017

25. Related party transactions

Ultimate parent entity

By virtue of its majority shareholding the Groug's immediate and ultimate parent entity is Expanent Private Equity LLP. During the year
entities managed by Exponent Private Equity LLP charged the Group fees of £42,725 {2016: £40,000; and £nil was outstanding at

30 December 2017 (2016: £nil). Additionally Exponent Private Equity invest in businesses whom the Group trade with. All transactions
are carried out on an arm’s length basis and are immaterial to both parties.

Key management personnel
Related party transactions with key management personnel are disclosed in Note 7.

26. Dividends
Yoar ended Year ended
30 Degember 31 December
2017 2016

o o EQOQ; £000s )

Interim dividend of Nil (2016: 0.57p) per ordinary share paid during the year - 882
Final dividend of Nit (2016: 0.57p) per ordinary share paid during the year - 882
- 1,764

The Board continue to be focused on reducing net debt and, after careful consideration of the significant cash investments made
during 2018 chose not to pay an interim dividend and in"advance of the planned network changes in 2018 the Directors believe it is in
the best interests of the shareholders for the Group to not pay a finai dividend in respect of 2017. During the year ended 31 December
2016, the shareholders approved a final dividend of 0.57p per ordinary share, totaling £0.9 million in respect of the year ended

26 December 2015 which was subsequently paid on 4 July 2016. Additionally during the year ended 31 December 2016, the Directors
paid an interim dividend of £6.9 miilion in October 2016.

27. Note supporting statement of cash flows

At Other At

1 danuary Non-cash 30 December

2017 CashFlows Movements 2017

Cash 15,211 (13,060} - 2,151
Current borrowings (66,000} (3,000) - {69,000)
Non-current borrowings' {133,212) - (1,030) (134,242}
Finance iease liabilities (28,714) 12,504 (9,787 (25,997)
Total (212,715) (3,556) (10,817)  {227,089)
Accrued interest on borrowings (3,859) (12,494) 12,449 {3,904)
Debt issue cost? (2,788) - 1,030 {1,758)
Net debt? {219,362) {16,050} 2,662 {232,751)

1 Non-current borrowings are stated net of debt issue costs,
2 HSS calculation of Net debt includes accrued interest on borrowings and excludes deduction for debt.

28. Post balance sheet events
On 11 January 2018 the sale of the former Mitcham Head Office, which closed in September 2017 as part of the cost reduction
programme was completed for proceeds of £1.5 miltion. The property was an asset held for resale at 30 December 2017

On 13 February 2018 the Group agreed an extension of the maturity date of its £8C mitlion Revolving Credit Facility from 6 February

2012 1o 8 July 2019. This resulted in an increase in the margin payable under the facility from 2.50% to 3.00%. There were no changes
in covenants.

If the Group has not refinanced its senior secured notes by 30 September 2018, the £80 million revolving credit facility will become
repayable at the option of the lenders on 30 April 2019.
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29. Adjusted EBITDA and Adjusted EBITA
Adjusted EBITDA is calculated as follows:

Year ended Year ended
30 December 31 December
2017 2018
Operating loss (71,419) 2,731
Add: Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 37,006 37,729
Add: Accelerated depreciation relating to hire stock customer losses,
hire stock write offs and other asset disposals 10,153 10,446
Add: Amortisation ‘ 6,637 6,237
EBITDA ' (17,623} 51,681
Add: Exceptional items 66,567 16,957
Adjusted EBITDA 48,944 68,638
Adjusted EBITA is calculated as follows:
Year ended Year ended
30 December 31 Decamber
2017 2016
QOperating loss (71,419) 2,731)
Add: Amortisation 6,637 8,237
EBITA {64,782) 3,506
Add: Exceptional items 66,567 16,957
Adjusted EBITA 1,785 20,463

vodey ofiolens
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Company Statement

of Financial Position
At 30 December 2017

30 December 3% December
2017 2016
Note  £000s  £000s
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Investments 2 86,476 86,362
Other recsivables 3 121,688 100,703
208,164 187,072
Current assets
Other receivables 3 22587 18,784
Cash 19 12,786
22,606 31,670
Total assets 230,770 218,642
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities
Other payables 4 (16,016) {11,347)
(16,016) (11,347}
Total liabilities (16,016) (11,347)
Net assets 214,754 207,295
EQUITY
Share capital 5 1,702 1,762
Share premium - -
Merger reserve 97,716 97,716
Retained surplus B8 115,336 107,877
Total surplus attributable to owners of the Company 214,754 207,295

As permitted by Section 408(3) of the Companies Act 20086, the Company's income statement and statement of comprehensive

income and related notes have not been presentad.

The Company made a post-tax profit for the year of £7,459,000 (2016: £10,042,000}.

The notes on pages 106 to 108 form part of these financial statements.

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 5 Aprii 2018 and were signed on its

behalf by:

P Quested
Director
5 April 2018
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Company Statement
of Changes in Equity

For the year ended 30 December 2017

Merger Retained
Share capital reserve eamings  Total equity
£000s £000s  £000s £000s
At 1 January 2017 1,702 97,716 107,877 207,295
Profit for the pericd - - 7,459 7,459
At 30 December 2017 1,702 97,716 115,336 ) 214,754
Merger Retained
Share capital reserve eamings  Total equity
£000s £000s EOOOs ) £000s
At 27 December 2015 1,548 85312 99,496 186,356
Shares issued in the period for cash 154 12,800 - 12,854
Share issue costs - (396) - (396)
Share based payment - - 103 103
Dividend - - {1,764) (1,764)
Profit for the period - - 10,042 10,042
At 31 December 2016 1,702 97,716 107,877 207,295

The notes on pages 106 to 108 form part of these financial statements.
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Notes to the Company

Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 December 2017

1. Accounting policies
HSS Hire Group Plc {the ‘Company’} is a company incorporated and domiciled in the United Kingdom. The Company's registered office
is 76 Talbot Road, Cld Trafford, Manchester, M16 0PQ.

a) Reporting entity

HSS Hire Group Limited was incorporated on 7 January 2015 as a private company limited by shares in the United Kingdom and
re-registered as a public imited company on 19 January 2015, The Company fisted its shares on the London Stock Exchange on
9 February 2015.

The Company's principal activity is to act as ultimate holding company for a group of companies whose principal activities are the
supply and hire of equipment and associated services.

b) Statement of compliance

The Company financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Financial Reporting Standard 100 Application of Financial
Reporting Requirements (“FRS 1007} and Financial Reporting Standard 101 Reduced Disclosure Framework (“FRS 1017 and the
Companies Act 2006.

Disclosure exemptions adopted
In preparing these financial statements the Company has taken advantage of all disclosure exemptions conferred by FRS 101,
Therefore these financial statements do not include:

4 certam ‘camparative | mformatlon as otherW|se reqmred by EU endorsed lFFlS

9 rtain dlsclosures regardl
>a statement of caeh ﬂows
4 the effect of future accourmng standards not yet adopted

- the dlsclosure of the remuneration of key management persormel and

—) d|sclosure of related party transacnons wﬁh other wholly owned members of the HSS lee Group Plc group of companles

In addition, and in accordance with FRS 101, further disclosure exemptions have been adopted because equivalent disclosures
are included in the company's consolidated financial statements. These financial statements do not include certain disclosures in
respect of:

~> ehare based payments .
> ﬂnanmal mstruments (other 1han certam d|sclesures requnred as a result of recordlng flnanc:al Instruments at falr value) or
x4 falr value meaeuremem (other than certaln dlsciosuree requnred asa result of record:ng ﬂnancual lnstruments at falr value)

The directors have taken advantage of the option within section 390 of the Companies Act 20086 o prepare their financial statements
up to a date seven days either side of the Company’s accounting reference date of 31 December, and these accounts therefore cover
the period from 1 January 2017 to 30 December 2017 {2016: 27 December 2015 to 31 December 2016}

The Company complies with the accounting policies defined in Note 1 to the Group consolidated statements on pages 66 to 103
except as noted below.

¢) Merger reserve

The merger reserve is the amount arising on the difference between the nominal value of the shares issued on acquisition of the
subsidiary companies and the Company value of the interest in subsidiaries. The merger reserve arises where more than 90% of the
shares in a subsidiary are acquired and the consideration includes the issue of new shares by the Company, and therefore the
Company adopts merger relief under the Companies Act 2008.
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lnvestments in subsidiaries are included in the statement of financial position at cost less amounts written-off, representing impairment

in value. Impairment charges are recorded if events or changes in circurnstances indicate that the carrying value may nat be

recoverable.

As the investment in subsidiaries arose from a recrganisation of the group structure that satisfies the criteria set out in IAS 27 ‘Separate
Financial Statermnents’, the cost of interest has been measured as the carrying amount of its share of the equity items shown in the
separate financial staterments of the original parent at the date of reorganisation.

2. Investments

AL31 December 2096 86,369
Additions 107
At 30 December 2017 86,476

Additions comprise share based payment charges in respect of equity settled share based payment awards offered to employees in

subsidiary companies.

At 30 December 2017 the Company's subsidiaries, inciuding those held indirectly through direct subsidiaries, are:

Company

Hampsmré Topc;o Limlted
Hampshire Midco Limited
Hampshire Bidco Limited

Hero Acquisitions Limited

HES Hire Service Holdings Limited
HSS Hire Service Finance Limited
Bannagroe Limited

ABird Superior Limited

HSS Hire Service Group Limited
Al Hire & Sales Limited

Laois Hire Services Limited

ABird Limited

Apex Generators Limited

UK Platforms Limited

HSS Financing plc

HSS Training Limited

1st Callection Services Limited

All Seasons Hire Limited

HSS Hire Limited (Previously Reintec Limited)

HSS Hire Trading Limited

Holdlng

Direct

Indirect
Indirect
Indirect
Indirect
Indiract
Indirect
Ingirect
Indirect
Indirect
Indirect
Indirect
indirect
Indirect
Indirect
Indirect
Indirect
Indirect
Indirect
Indirect

Country of
incorporatlon

United ngddmm

United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom

Republic of Ireland

United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom

Repubtic of Ireland

United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom

Princlpai actlvny

Intermediate hoiding company

Intermediate hotding company
Intermediate holding company
Intermediate holding company
Intermediate holding company
Intermediate holding company
Intermediate holding company
Intermediate holding company
Hire and equipment services
Hire and equipment services
Hire and equipment services
Hire and equipment services
Hire and equipment services
Hire and equipment services
Financing

Training services
Administration of group debtors
Hire and equipment services
Intermediate holding company
Dormant

Ordinary

shares
hetd

100%

100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%

The registered cffice of the subsidiaries listed above is 76 Talbot Road, Old Trafford, Manchester, M16 0PQ, except for the following:

-) Apex Generators L.td 125 West Regent Street Glasgow G2 2SA

—} Lacns Htre Serwces I_|m|ted Abbeyle|x Road Portlaolse Co Lao:s Elre S

9 Bannagroe L:rnlted Clonmmam Industrlal Estate Porﬂamse Co Lams E|re

yoday ofexeng
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Company Notes to the Financial Statements continued
For the year ended 30 December 2017

3. Other receivables

30 December 31 December
2017 2016
Nen-current EQOOS o £000s
Amounts due from group undertakings 121,688 100,703
121,688 100,703
30 December 31 December
2017 2016

Current £(_}00§_ ) EOOO_§ )
Amounts due from group undertakings 22,558 18,763
Prepayments 29 21
22,587 18,784

Non-current amourts due from Group undertakings fall due in 2022 and carry a fixed interest rate of 10%.
Current amounts due from Group undertakings carry an interest rate of 3.76% above LIBOR.

4. Other payables: amounts falling due within one year

30 December

31 December

2017 2016

OV . Foo0s - £000s
Amounts owed to group undertakings 15,893 11,084
Accruals and deferred income 121 71
Other creditors 2 192
16,016 11,347

5. Share capital
The details of the Company’s share capital are set out in note 20 to the consclidated financial statements,

6. Profit and joss account

As permitted by section 408 of the Companies Act 2006 the Company has elected not to present its own profit and loss account for
the year. The auditors’ remuneration for audit and other services is disclosed in note § to the consolidated financial statements.

7. Related party transactions
The Company's related party transactions are set out in note 25 to the consolidated financial staterments.

8. Financial instruments

Details of the Group's financial instruments policies are set cut in note 22 1o the consolidated financial statements.

9. Employee and Director costs

The Directors are the onty employees of the Company. Their costs are borne by a subsidiary company H3S Hire Service Group

Limited. Details of the director's remuneration are set out in note 8 to the consolidated financial statements.
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Three Year Summary
For the year ended 30 December 2017

2017 2016 2005
£000s £000s £000s
lncomeStatement e e e e e e e e e et e e e T T
Revenue 335,780 342,410 312,333
Operating (foss)/profit (71,419} 2,731} 6,842
MNet finance costs (13,743) (14,686) (20,682)
Loss before tax (85,162} (17.417) (13,840)
Tax 5,240 104 {405}
Loss after tax (79,922} (17,313} (14,245)
Adjusted EBITDA 48,944 68,638 71,047
Adjusted Depreciation (47,159) {48,175) {50,702)
Adjusted EBITA 1,785 20,463 20,345
Arnortisation (6,637) (6,237) (4,981)
Operating (loss)/profit excluding exceptional items {4,852) 14,226 15,364
Exceptional items - (66,567) (16,957) 8,522
Operating {loss)/profit (71,419) 2,731) 6,842
Assets empioyed
Non-current assets 323,782 358,008 365,355
Assets held for resale 1,500 - -
Inventories 5,519 7,898 9,095
Trade and other receivables 96,503 103,744 97,685
Cash 2,151 15,211 1,812
429,455 434,361 473,847
Current borrowings (69,000} (66,000) (47,635)
Other current liabilities (99,226} (96,082) (93,578)
261,229 322,779 332,734
Non-current borrowings (134,242) (133.212) {132,189)
Other non-current liabilities (53,415) 38,181) (42,276)
Net assets 73,572 153,386 158,269
Net debt (232,751) (219,362) {218,111)
Net leverage ratio (Net debt/Adjusted EBITDA) 48x 3.2x 31x
Capital expenditure 34,5613 42 397 84,039
Average number of empioyees 3,066 3,254 3,344
Weighted average number of ordinary shares 170,207 154,887 144,534
Per Ordinary 1p share
Basic earnings (46.96) (11.18) (9.86)
Adjusted earnings (5.68) 2.98 3.20

HSS Hire Group Plc was incorporated on 7 January 2015 and listed its shares on the Lendon Stock Exchange on 8 February 2015.
Accerdingly only three years of summary financial information are presented.

Hodey oifajeng
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Shareholder
Information

Annual General Meeting

The Company's Annual General Meeting will be held at 11.00am
on 21 June 2018 at Hilton Garden Inn, Hatton Cross, TW6 25Q.
Details of the Resolutions proposed and being voted on

are provided in the Notice of AGM provided to shareholders
and available for download at the Group website,
www.hsshiregroup.com.

Share fraud and boiler room scams

Many companies have become aware that their shareholders
have received unsolicited phone calls or correspondence
concerning investment matters. Share scams are often run from
‘bailer roocms’ where fraudsters cold-calt investors offering them
worthiess, overpriced or even non-existent shares.

These operations are commenly known as ‘boiler room fraud’.
The ‘brokers’ (callers) can be very persistent and extremely
persuasive. They often have websites to support their activities,
their advice and the companies they purport to represent. A 2006
survey by the Financial Services Authority (FSA) reported that the
average amaoeury (05t by an invester is arcund £20,000. It is not
just novice investors that have been duped in this way; many of
the victims have been succassfully investing for several years.

Shareholders are cautioned to be very wary of any unsolicited
advice, offers to buy shares at a discount, sell your shares at
a premium or offers of free company reports.

If you are offered unsolicited investment advice, discounted
shares, a premium price for shares you own, or free company
or research rgports, you should take these steps before handing
over any maney:

-> record the name of the person and organisation
contacting you,

> check the Financial Conduct Authority (FCA )Register

at www.fca.org.uk/register 1o ensure they are properly
authorised;
- use the det

are no contact details on the Register or you are told they
are out of date;

- if you receive telephone calls, emails, letters purporting to
be from HSS Hire Group plc or from companies endorsed by
HSS Hire Group pic and you are unsure if they are legitimate,
please contact our shareholder helpline for clarification
(0371 384 2030 or +44 {0121 415 7047

- ifthe gff:‘l.!lér péréisfs, hang up. )

Piease note that should you use an unauthorised firm to buy
or sell shares or gther investments, you will not have access
to the Financial Ombudsman Service or Financial Services
Compensation Schems (FSCS) if things go wrong.

if you are approached about a share scam you should tell the
FCA using the online share fraud reporting form at www fca.org.
uk/consumers/report-scam-unauthorised-firm where you can
find out about the latest investment scarms. You can also call the
FCA Consumer Helpline on 0800 111 6768.

If you have already paid money to share fraudsters
you should contact Action Fraud on 0300 123 2040 or
online at: www.actionfraud.police.uk/

Further information on this or similar activity can be found at
www.cityoflondon.police.uk/citypolice within the Economic
Crime section.

foverseas)); and =

Forward-looking statements

This document contains certain forward-tocoking statements
concerning the Group’s business, financial condition, results

ot operations and certain of the Group’s plans, cbiectives,
assumptions, projections, expectations or beliefs with respect
to these items. Forward-locking statements are sometimes, but
not always, identified by their use of a date in the future or such
words as ‘anticipates’, ‘aims’, ‘due’, ‘could’, ‘may’, ‘will’, *‘shouid’,
‘expects’, ‘believes’, 'intends’, ‘plans’, ‘potential’, ‘targets’, ‘goal’
or ‘estimates’.

Forward-fooking statements involve known and unknown risks,
uncertainties and other factors, which may cause the Group'’s
actual financial condition, performance ana results to differ
materially from the plans, goals, objectives and expectations set
out in the forward-looking statements included in this document.
Accordingly, readers are cautioned not to place undue refiance
on forward-locking statements.

By their nature, forward-looking statements relate to events and
depend on circumstances that will occur in the future and are
inherently unpredictable. Such forward-looking statements
should, therefore, be considered in light of various important
factors that could cause actual results and developments to differ
materially from those expressed or implied by these forward-
locking statements. These factors include, among other things:
changes in the econormies and markets within which the Group
operates; changes in the regulatory regime within which the
Group operates; changes in interest and, to a lesser extent,
exchange rates; the impact of competitor pricing behaviour; the
occurrence of major operational problermns; the loss of major
customers; contingent liabilities; and the impact of legal or other
proceedings against, or which otherwise affect, the Group.

No assurance can be given that the forward-looking statements
in this document will be realised; actual events or results may
differ materially as a result of risks and unceriainties facing the
Group. Subject to compliance with applicable law and regulation,
the Company does not intend to update the forward-looking
statements in this document to reflect events or circumstances
after the date of this document, and does not undertake any
obligation to do so.

Financtal Calendar

Annual GeneraiMeeting  11.00am, 21 June 2018
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Company Information

Registered Office @
HSS Hire Group plc E’
Oakland House &
76 Talbot Road, Otid Trafford &
Manchester, M16 OPQ 2
Email: investors@hiss.com
Waebsite: www.hsshiregroup.com
Registered number: England and Wales, No. 9378067
Company Secretary g
Daniel Joll g
o
Financial Advisers and Stockbrokers >
J.P. Morgan Cazenove g
25 Bank Street z
Canary Whart §
London, E14 5JP
Numis Securities Limited -
The London Stock Exchange Building g
1C Paternoster Square [+
London, ECAM 7LT »
&
Legal Advisers g
Freshfieids Bruckhaus Deringer LLP 3
65 Fleet Street &
London, EC4Y 1HS
Independent Auditors >
BDO LLP g
55 Baker St g
London, W1U 7EU ;4_
Bankers %
Barclays Bank pic 2
=

One Churchill Place
London, E14 5HP

HSBC Bank plc
8 Canada Square
London, E14 5HQ

Financial Public Relations
Teneo Blue Rubicon

5th Floor

6 More London Place
London, SE1 2DA

Trade Public Relations
Founded Partners Limited
185 Park Street

London, SE1 8DY

Registrars

Equiniti Limited

Aspect House

Spencer House

Lancing

West Sussex, BN99 8DA

Contact Centre:
UK: 0371 384 2030
International: +44 (G121 415 7047

Insurance Brokers
Marsh Limited

1 Tower Place West
Tower Place
London, EC3R 58U
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Additional information

Definitions and Glossary

ABird or ABird Power Solutions

ABird Superior Limited and fits wholly owned subsidiary, ABird Limited

Act

the Companies Act 2006, as amended

ActivShield Bar

a safety feature developed in conjunction with manufacturer Haulotte on the Group's
platform access fleet

Adjusted EBITA

EBITA adjusted to add back exceptional items

Adjusted EBITDA

EBITDA adjusted to add back exceptional items

Adjusted EPS

measure of adjusted profitability per share. Widely recognised measure of sharehclder valuse
{profif) being generated by a business exciuding non-recurring or exceptional items and
amortisation and after charging the prevailing rate of corporation tax

Admission

the admission of the Shares to the premium listing segment of the Offigial List and to trading
an the London Stock Exchange's main market for listed securities

All Seasons Hire

All Seasons Hire Limited

Apex

Apex Generators Limited

Articies

the Articles of Association of the Company

Average revenue per account
customer

calculated by dividing the total revenue from account customers only in a year by the simple
average of the opening and closing number of frading accounts

bn a billion or bilions when used with a number or numbers and a currency unit e.g. £5.7bn
denotes £5.7 billion pounds sterling

B2B business-to-business

CAGR Compounded Annual Growth rate

Carbon emissions in our
built environment

calculated as the total CO, emissions from fuel combustion (a scope 1 emission) and
purchased electricity {(scope 2 emissions) of the Group in kg CO, divided by the total
m? of the Group's freehold and leasehcld portfalio. Calculated for the period 1 April to
31 March in each year period in accerdance with the reporting timeframe required for
annual CRC submissions

Code see 'Governance Code'
Company HSS Hire Group plc
CSOoP Company Share Option Plan

GRC energy efficiency scheme
or CRC

a mandatory carbon emissions reduction scheme in the UK that applies to large
non-energy-intensive organisations in the public and private sectors

Customer Distribution Centres
or CDCs

locations across the UK from which we deliver items of our core hire equipment direct to
customer sites, manage the coliection of eguipment from customer sites at the end of the
hire period and undertake testing and repair of larger non-specialist equipment

Defra Department for Environment, Food and Environmentat Affairs

DTR4 Disclosure and Transparency Rule around Periodic Financial Reporting

EBITA defined as operating profit before amortisation and exceptional items

EBITDA defined as operating profit before depreciation, amortisation and exceptional items. For this
purpose depraciation inciudes the net book value of hire stock losses and write offs, and the
net bock value of cther fixed asset disposals, less the proceeds of those disposals

ERP system enterprise rescource planning software used to manage the business and automate certain
day-fo-day processes

EU European Union

Exponent the investment funds managed by Exponent Private Equity LLP or, when otherwise indicated

or where the context otherwise requires, Exponent Private Equity LLP in its own right

Exponent Shareholders

Exponent Private Equity Partners GP i, LP, Exponent Havana Co-Investment Partners GP
Lirited and Expanent Private Equity Founder Partner GP It Limited

FORS

Fleet Operator Recognition Scheme

Governance Code

the UK Corporate Governance Code issued by the Financial Reporting Council, as amended
from time to time

Group

togsther, HSS Hire Group plc and its direct or indirect subsidiarigs

Hampshire Topco Limited

our parent company as at 27 December 2014 and up until 21 Jaruary 2015 when HSS Hire
Group plc became the new holding company of Hampshire Topco Limited and its subsidiaries
through a share-for-share exchange. Havana Topco Limited was renamed Hampshire Topco
Limited on 23 May 2014

HSEQ Heaith, Satety, Environment and Quality

HSS used to refer to the group of companies within the HSS Hire Group

IAS International Accounting Standards

IFRS International Financial Reporting Standards, as adopted by the European Union




Initial public offering or IPO

the initial publtic cffering and admission cf the ordinary share capital of HSS Hire Group plc
to the premium fisting segment of the Official List of the UK Listing Autharity and to trading
on London Stock Exchange'’s main market for listed securities under the ticker ‘HSS' on

9 February 2015

Ireland the Republic of Ireland

LIBOR London Inter-bank Offered Rate

Live account a customer that has transacted with the Group in the prior 12 months

LTIP Long-Term Incentive Plan. A reward system designed to reward employees’ long-term
performance by reference to defined perfermange conditions, which include Adjusted EPS
and ROCE.

LTM Last Twetve Months

LTM utilisation

for our Core businesses utilisation is calculated as average units hired divided by average units
owned in a reporting month, then averaged over the relevant 52-week pericd (referred 1¢ as
the last 12 months or ‘LTM'); for our specialist businesses utilisation represents the average
utilisation rate of the specialist businesses included in the reporting period, calculated using the
same method as for core utilisation at each business level.

m a million or millions when used with a number and a currency unit 8.g. £70m denotes
£70 million pounds sterling

MEWP Maobile Elevating Work Platform

MTS Mabile Traffic Solutions

National Distribution and
Engineering Centre or NDEC

COperation opened in Cowley, Oxfordshire in March 2016 to centralise and industrialise
the testing, maintenance and repair of our fast moving Core hire fleet upen return from
customer use. Once deemed fit-for-hire, eguipment is moved back into the local branch
and CDC network

NBV Net Book Valug

Net debt the total indebtedness of the Group including senior secured notes {(excluding debt issue
costs}, investor loan notes (2014 only), finance leases, drawings on the Revolving Credit
Facility, any accrued interest on these items and any overdraft net of any cash in the Group

Notes the £200m 6.75% senior secured notes due 2019 issued by HSS Financing plc in February
2014, which after a partial redemption in February 2015 were reduced to a balance of £136m

NPS Net Promoter Score®, a measure of wilingness of customers to recommend a Company’s
products or senvices to others

Official List the Official List of the FCA

RCF Revalving Cradit Facility

Return on assets or ROA

calculated as Adjusted EBITA divided by the total of average total assets {excluding intangible
assets) subtracted by average current liabilities

Return on Capital Employed
or ROCE

calculated as Adjusted EBITA divided by the total of average total assets (excluding intangible
assets and cash) less average current liabifities (excluding current debt items)

Revoiving Credit Facility or RCF

the £80.0m super senior revolving credit facility made available pursuant to the Revolving
Credit Facility Agreement

Revolving Credit Facility Agreement

the revolving credit facility agreement governing the £80.0m super senior revalving credit
facilty dated 30 January 2014

RIDDOR(s) the Reporting of Injuries, Diseases and Dangercus Occurrences Regulations 1995, Within our
KPls we report our RIDDOR rate, which is calculated as: the number of RIDDOR incidents x
100,000, divided by the number of hours worked

RMI used to refer to services provided in the repair, maintain and improve markets, typically to the
built environment

RNS Regulatory News Service

SHEQ safety, health, environment and quality

TecServ TecServ Cleaning Equipment Services Limited (formerly Premiere FCM Limited)

Trading account

a customer account which has been active in the last 12 months

Training days per colleague

calculated as the total training days completed by Group employees within the year, divided by
the average number of colleagues in the Group

UK

the United Kingdom of Great Britain and Northern Ireland

UK Platforms

UK Platforms Limited

Unipart Group

Unipart Group Limited




